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Vardhman Polytex Ltd
An O.w.l Qsrp'Compnny
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Corp. Offic.: Vardhman Park,
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The Listing Department,
BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED
25th Ftoor,
P.J. Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai- 400 001

Scri Code: VARDMNPOLY Scri Code:514175

SUBJECT : Annual Report under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (tODR) Regulations, 2015.

Dear Sir/Madam,

ln compliance with the provisions of Regulation 34 and other applicable provisions of the SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, we submit herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the
financial year 2017-18 containing inter olia Director's Report, Auditors' Report, Audited
I'rnancial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) as approved and adopted by the Company
in its Annual General Meeting held on 24.09.2078, along with statement on impact of
qualification.

Kindly consider the submissions and take the same on your records.

I han king you,

Y our's fartir [u Ily,

For Va man Polytex Limited

(Kul ngla)
Ch ief ncial Officer

info@vpl in

L



@

V

I

Vardhman Polytex Limlted
An Oswal Group'Company



(r*" L Vardhman Polytex Limited

t

'

1.,

DearStakeholders,

I am pleased to shore with you the performance of the compony for the finonciol year ended 37" March 2078. Your
company registered o netoperatingrevenueofRs 627.35 Crores,decreoseogainst 859.25 Croresof previousyeor.

The globol economy has olso perf ormed weok during the lost nine months of the yeor. The economic condition of Europe
ond global finoncial crises creoted uncertainty in the morket ond affected the globol business os whole. The shortfoll in
thelmports of USAond Europearetheexampleof thedeclinetrend of thedemond of theproducts.

The textile industry in lndio wos remoined under pressure and nervous during the lost financiol year. The volotility in
prices of yorn and cotton ond ambiguous Government policy on export of yarn during the first holf of the yeor offected o

lot to the spinning mills ond companies suffered huge loss. The production of yorn wos lower thon the estimote due to
shortogeof power,labour,shorpfollintheyorn prices ondfinonciolliquidity crunch.

The production of cotton in lndio is estimoted to increose by 9.3 per cent year-on-year to reach 37.7 million bales in FY
2077 -78.Thetotol orea under cultivotion of cotton in lndia is expectedto increose by 7 per centto 71.3 million hectores
in 2077-78, on account of expectotions of better returns from rising prices ond improved crop yields during the yeor
2016-17.

The sentiment of the textile industry hos shown positive outlook for the last two quarters bosed on offordable prices of
the cotton, adequote demand both in domestic and exports ond neorly matching price of finished goods but the morgins
willbe still below the expected levels.

ln the tough scenorio, the company is focused on the product innovotions, cost reduction, improving efficiencies and
finoncial restructuringto creote moximumweolthfor its stokeholders ond business portners.

Sincerely,

n irec r

$N
AshokKumorOswol
Ch oi r m a n & M a n o gi n g Di r ecto r
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n irec r
(Bwsiness 0 Corporate Affiirs)

Dear Stakeholders,lt is my privilege to reach you through this Annual Report and share with you the performance

for the financial year 2077-78. This was a challenging year caused by uncertain global macro-economic situation
and the challenges beingfaced bythe Company.

Although our business growth this yearwas not inspiring, it needs to be seen in a wider context includingthe whole
transformation that the industry is going through. Consumer behavior is changing, customers' expectations are

increasing and the competitive landscape is being redrawn. The scope of profit in the yarn segment has attracted
many small players and traders into the market with easy entry biz. This has given birth to an excess of supply of
yarn in the market. The yarn segment in itself is transforming f rom being a specialty product to being a commodity
and therefore, discounting the returns to that of a regular commodity. This is where strengthening of the core
capabilities is important. Despite this challenge we have managed to stand out of the competition with our high
quality product and critical experience that we hold in this segment. We have maintained our market position

whereas, the market as a whole has shown a downtrend. The Competition in the yarn business has also increased
dueto some additionalbenefit/attractive policies promoted bythe Stategovernment in Gujrat, M.Pand Rajasthan.

Wefaced a different operatingenvironmentaldueto high debt, increased input costs and liquidity problems which
adversely aff ected the performa nce of the company.

This Challenging time, there is need to improve our financial returns and operating effectiveness to which we are

trying. Driven by the efforts of our employees, the company continue to lay emphasis to translate business plan to
actions and deliverables.

I express my sincere thanks to all the Banks, business associates, employees and all other stakeholders for their
continued support
Sincerely

W
AdishOswal
Managing Director
Business & Corporate Affairs
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 38h Annual General Meeting of the

members of the Company will be held on Monday, the 24s day of
September, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the

Company situated at Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana-
'I 4.1 1 23 to transact the fol lowing business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1, To receive, considerand adopt:
a) The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the

financial year ended 31 " March, 20.1 8, together with the
Report of Auditors and Directors thereon; and

b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the

Company for the financial year ended 3.1" March, 2018,
together with the Report of Auditors and Directors
thereon.

2. Ratification of Appointment of Statutory Auditors of the
Company.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an 'Ordinary
Resolution':
RESOTVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section

139,142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 201 3 and the Rules framed there under, as

amended from time to time and pursuant to the
recommendations of the Audit Committee, ArVs. Romesh K

Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana
(Firm Registration No. 00071 1N), be and is hereby ratified at

38* Annual Ceneral Meeting (ACM) to conduct the statutory
audit of the company for the financial year ended 31'' March,
2019 (who were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of consecutive three years starting from
conclusion of 3 76 ACM till the conclusion of 40'n ACM) at such

remuneration as may be decided by Board of Director of the
Company.'

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Adish Oswal (DlN'
0000971 0), who retires by rotation in accordance to Article of
Association and being eligible, offers himself for re
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4, To consider and approve the reappointment of Mr. Ashok
Kumar Oswal (DlN: 0fi)09403), Chairman & Managing
Director of the Company
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary
Resolution
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the
provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 2O3 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made

there unde(including any statutory modification or re'
enactment thereofl read with Schedule V of the Companies Act,
201 3, approval of the members by passing a Ordinary
Resolution at this meeting, be and is hereby accorded for the
reappointment of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal (DlN: 00009403),
Chairman & Managing Director for a period of three years from
May 30,2018 to May 29,202.1 whose period of office is liable
to retirement by rotation as wellas forthe payment of salary and
perquisites (hereinafter referred to as "remuneration") as are set

out in the draft of the agreement entered into between the
companyand Mr. Ashok KumarOswal with libertytothe Board

of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the
said agreement as they may consider necessary and as may be

agreed to by Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal within the overall limits
as specified in Paragraph A of Section ll of Part ll of Schedule V
of the Companies Act. 2013 for the time being in force or any

statutory modification(s) or rrenactment(s) thereof and/or any

rules or regulations framed there under. The terms of
reappointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Ashok Kumar
Oswal are set out in the Explanatory Statement and

recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board subject to limits as specified under
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 201 3.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory
amendment(s), modification(s) to the Act, Schedule V to the Act
or any rules made under the Act or relaxation(s) by the Central

Covernment, as may be applicable, the Board be and is hereby
authorized to vary the remuneration, including salary,
perquisites, allowance, etc. within such modified prescribed
limit or ceiling as aforesaid subiect to approval of the members

ofthe company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss, absence

or inadequacy of the profits of the Company in any financial
year, during the term of office of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal, the
remuneration mentioned in the explanatory statement shall be
paid as minimum remuneration and the same shall be subjectto
the limits as set out in Section ll of Part ll of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 201 3.

RESOTVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all
such documents, instruments and writings as may be required
and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any
Committee of Directors or Director(s) to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution."

5. Ratification of Appointment of Mr. Adish Oswal as Managing
Director (Business & Corporate Affairs)
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an 'Ordinary
Resolution':
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,

197, 2O3,Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the approval of the members be and is

hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Adish Oswal as the Managing
Director (Business & Corporate Affairs) of the Company for a

period of 5 years i.e. from 24t November,2017 to 23d
November, 2022 on the terms and conditions of remuneration
as detailed in the explanatory statement of the notice.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any revision in the remuneration
payable to Mr. Adish Oswal shall be within the overall limits as

approved by the members in terms of this resolution and as

recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to the Board of Directors for its approval, from time
totime.
RESOTVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorized to vary and/or modify
the terms and conditions of the said appointment including
remuneration payable in such manner as may be agreed
behveen the Board of Directors and Mr. Adish Oswal within the
limits as prescribed in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
including any amendment, modification, variation or re-
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enactment thereof.
RESOTVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss, absence
or inadequacy of the profits of the Company in any financial
year, during the term of office of Mr. Adish Oswal, the
remuneration mentioned in the explanatory statement shall be
paid to Mr. Adish Oswal as minimum remuneration and the
same shall be subject to the limits as set out in Section ll of Part ll
of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 201 3.
RESOwED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and
execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may
be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein
conferred to Nomination and Remuneration Commiftee to give
effect to the aforesaid resolution."

6. Ratification of Appointment of Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobti as
an lndependent Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an 'Ordinary
Resolution':

"RESOIVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,
152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act,2O1J ("Aa') and the Rules made there under as read with
Schedule lV to the Act, as amended from time to time, Mr.
Damanbir Singh Sobti (DlN: 02312051), a non-executive
independent director of the Company, who has submitted a
declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for
appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an lndependent
Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold
office for a term of five consecutive years up to 3.lst March,
2023.',

7. Ratification of Appointment of Mr. Harpal Singh as an
lndependent Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an 'Ordinary
Reso/ution';

"RESOIVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,
152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 201 3 ("Act") and the Rules made there under as read with
Schedule lV to the Act, as amended from time to time, Mr.
Harpal Singh (DlN: 06932062), a non-executive independent
director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is
hereby appointed as an lndependent Director ofthe Company,
not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of three
consecutive years up to 31st March,2021 .'

8. Ratification of Appointment of Ms, Aarti Rawat as an
lndependent Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an 'Ordinary
Resolution':

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,
152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act") and the Rules made there under as read with
Schedule lV to the Act, as amendd from time to time, Ms. Aarti
Rawat ( Dl N : 07 1 56525), a non-executive i ndependent d i rector
of the Company, who has submifted a declaration that she
meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is
hereby appointed as an lndependent Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of three
consecutive years up to 3 1 '' March,2021 .'

9. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the
financial year ending 31st March, 2019
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an 'Ordinary
Reso/ution':

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section '148

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rules made there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or rrenactment(s) thereof, for the time being in
force), lWs. Ramanath lyer & Company, New Delhi appointed
as Cost Auditors, by the Board of Directors of the Company, to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending 31'' March, 2019, be paid the
remuneration otll ,25,OOO/- plus service tax, travel and actual
out-of-pocket expenses.
RESOTVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effectto this resolution."

By Order of the Board

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 146 August, 2018

sd/-
(Ashok Kumar Oswal)

Chairman and Managing Director
(DlN:00009403)

Registered Office: Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,
Ludhiana -141 123, Punjab (lNDlA)
Ph: 6629888 Fax: 6629988
Website: - www.vpl.in, E-mailrinfo@vpl.in
CIN : - Ll 71 22P81 98OPLCOO4242

1. A MEMBER ENTITTED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE ON A POtt INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSETF
AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. The proxy, in order to be effective, must be
received by the company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. The blank proxy form is
enclosed.
However, a person can act as proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than
ten percent ofthe total share capital ofthe Company.

2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of items specified in special
business and the information required pursuant to SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 201 5,
regarding the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in
the Annual Ceneral Meeting are annexed hereto and both
forms part of the Notice.

3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the
Company shall remain closed from 18.09.2018 lo 24.O9.2O18
(Both days inclusive).

4. The copie of relevant documents are open for inspection at
the Registered Office of the Company on all working days
between 10.30 A.M. to 12.30 P.M. up to the date of the
Annual Ceneral Meeting.

5. Members desiring any information as regards to accounts are
requested to write to the Company at its Registered Office at
least 1 0 days before the date of Annual General Meeting so as
to enable the Management to keep the information ready.

2
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6. Members holding shares in the samey'identical name(s) under

different folios are requested to apply for consolidation of such
folios and send relevant share certificates to the Company/RTA
ofthe Company.

7. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with
their copy of Annual Report at Annual Ceneral Meeting.

8. ln support of the Green lnitiative, your Company proposes to
send the documents !ike Notice calling the General Meetings
and Annual Report containing Financial Statements,
Director's Report etc and other communications in electronic
form. We request you to update your email address with your
Depository ParticipanUCompany/RTA to ensure that the
Annual Report and other communications reach you on youl
preferred email.

9. The Annual Report 2017-18 is being sent through electronic
mode only to the members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s),
unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the
report. The members who have not registered their email
addresses, physical copies of the Annual Report 2017-18 are
being sent by permitted mode.

10. Votinglnstructions:
a) ln compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under,
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 201 5 and Secretarial Standard issued by The
lnstitute of Company Secretary of lndia, the Company is
pleased to provide to its members the facility to exercise
their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in
the Meeting through 'remote evoting' i.e. voting system
from a place otherthan the venue ofthe Meeting.

b) The facility for e-voting i.e. 'Venue voting', will also be
available at the ACM venue and the members aftending
the AGM who have not already cast their votes by remote
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at ACM
through venue voting. Members who have cast their votes
by remote e-voting priorto the ACM may attend the ACM,
but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

c) A person, holding shares in physical form or in
dematerialized form as on the cutoff date, i.e.
17.O9.201A shall only be entitled to avail the facility of e-
votinS.

d) The remote evoting period commences on 21.09.20t8
(09.00A.M.)and ends on 23.09.2018 (05.00 P.M.). The e
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast and
confirmed, shall not be altered subsequently.

e) Mr. Ashwani Khanna of lWs Khanna Ashwani &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer to conduct, remote +voting
and venue voting process, in a fair and transparent
manner.

0 the Scrutinizer shall upon conclusion ofe.voting period,
unblock the votes in presence of atleast two witnesses not
in employment of the company and make a report of votes
casted in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the
Chairman of the company. Thereafter, the result shall be
declared by the Chairman or any other person authorized
by him within 48 hours of conclusion of ACM. The results
along with scrutinizer's report shall be placed on
Company's website i.e. www.vpl.in and website of CDSL
after the result is declared by the Chairman or any other
person authorized by him and the same shall be

fonvarded to the stock exchanges.

O Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the
Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of
the Meeting, i.e.24.09.2O1 I

h) Steps for remote e-voting:
i) Please log on www.evotingindia.com.
iD Click on "Shareholders" tab.
iiD Now enter your User ID

a. FoTCDSL: 1 6digits beneficiary lD,
b. For NSDL: I Character DP lD followed by I

digits Client lD,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form

should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.

iv) Next enter the lmage Verification as displayed and
Clickon Login.

v) lf you are holding shares in demat form and had
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier voting of any company, then your existing
password is to be used.

vi) lf you are a first time user, follow the steps given
below:

For Members holding shares in Demat
Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your '10 digit alpha-numeric PAN
issued by lncome Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as
well as physical shareholders) Members who
have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number,
which is printed on the Postal ballot/
Attendance slip indicated in the PAN field.
Eg. lf your name is Ramesh Kumar with
sequence number 1 then enter RA0000O0O l
in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank
Details
OR

Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of
Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
your demat account or in the company
records in order to login. lf both the details
are not recorded with the depository or
company please enter the member id / folio
number in the Dividend Bank details field as
mentioned in instruction (iii).

vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on
"SUBMlT"tab.

viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then
directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form
will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e.voting through CDSL platform. lt
is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the
details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

x) Click on the EVSN: 180823041 for Vardhman
Polytex [imited.
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xi) On the voting page, you will see "RESOIUTION
DESCRIPTION' and against the same the option
"YES/NO" for voting. Selectthe option YES or NO as

desired. The option YES implies that you assent to
the Resolution and option NO implies that you

dissent to the Resolution.
xii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FltE tlNK' if you wish

to view the entire Resolution details'

xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to
vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box
will be displayed. lf you wish to confirm your vote,
click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on

"CANCEL" and accordingly modify yourvote.

xiv) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xv) You can alsotake out printof the votingdone byyou
by clicking on 'Click here to print" option on the

Voting page.

xvi) lf Demat account holder has forgotten the changed

password then Enter the User lD and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password &

enterthe details as prompted by the system.

xvii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's

mobile app i,e, m'Voting available for android,
Apple and Windows based mobiles. The m-Voting
app can be downloaded from Google Play Store,

App Store and the Windows Phone Store

respectively. iPhone and Windows phone users can

download the app from the App Store and the
Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow
the instructions as prompted by the mobile app

while voting on your mobile.

xviii)Note for Non - lndividual Shareholders and

Custodians
Non-lndividual shareholders (i.e. other than

lndividuals, HUF, NRI etc') and Custodian are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and

register themselves.

A scanned copy ofthe Registration Form bearing the

stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdsl i ndia.com.

After receiving the togin details by custodian a

Compl iance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance user would be

able to linkthe account(s) for which they wish to vote

on.
The list of accounts linked in the login should be

mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia'com and on

approval ofthe accounts they would be able to cast

theirvote.
A scanned copy ofthe Board Resolution and Power

of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF

format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the

same.

xix) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company

and become Member of the Company after dispatch

of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off

date i.e. 'l 7h September, 2018 may follow the same

instructions as mentioned above for eVoting.

xx) ln case you have any queries or issues regarding e'
voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

quesiions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available

at www.evotingindia.com, under help sect ion or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
orcall 18002005533.

EXPTANATORY STATEMENT PUR,SUANT TO SECTION 102 OF

THE COMPANIESACT,20l3
ITEM NO.4
Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal has served as the Chairman & Managing

Director of the Company with the approval of members. The Board

of Directors in its meeting held on 30.05.20'18 has re'appointed Mr.

Ashok Kumar Oswal as Chairman & Managing Director of the

Company forthe period of three years with effect from May 30, 2018

to May 29, 2021 on theterms and conditions given in the resolution.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has also approved

the terms of appointment and remuneration payable to him. The said

re-appointment and payment of remuneration is pursuant to Section

196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable
provisions ofthe Companies Act, 201 3 and subjectto the approval of
Central Covernment.
Accordingly, the approval of the Members is solicited for the re'
appointment of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal as Chairman and Managing

Director of the Company and fixation of remuneration for the period

of three years w.e.f 30.05.2018.
MEMORANDUM OF I NTERTST:

None of the Directors except Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal, being

appointee, Mr. Adish Oswal and Mrs. Manju Oswal, being relative of
the appointee, is concerned or interested in this resolution.

ITEM NO.5
Mr. Adish Oswal has served as Executive Direcloron the Board of the

Company with the approval of members. The Board of Directors in

its meeting held on 24.11.2017 had appointed Mr' Adish Oswal as

Managing Director (Business & Corporate Affairs) of the Company

for the period of 5 years i.e. from 246 November,2O17 lo 23rd

November, 2022. Ihe Remuneration Committee of the Company

has also approved the terms of appointment and remuneration
payable to him. The said reappointment and payment of
remuneration is pursuant to Section 196, 197 and 203 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

20'l 3 and subiecttotheapproval of Central Covernment'

Accordingly, the approval of the Members is solicited for the re-

appointment of Mr. Adish Oswal as Managing Director (Business &

Corporate Affairs) of the Company for the period of period of 5 years

i.e. from 24h November, 2017lo23td November,2022.

MEMORANDUM OF lNTEREST:

None of the Directors except Mr. Adish Oswal, being appointee, Mr'
Ashok Oswal and Mrs. Maniu Oswal, being relative of appointee, is

concerned or interested in this resolution.

ITEM NO.6TO 8
Mr. DamanbirSingh Sobti (DlN:02312051), Mr. Harpal Singh (DlN:

06932062) and Ms. Aarti Rawat (DlN: 07'156525\ arc Non Executive

(lndependent) Director of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions

of Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), an

independent director shall hold office for a term up to 5 (five)

consecutive years on the Board ofa Company and shall be eligible
for re-appointment for another term of five years on passing of a

special resolution by the Company.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobti (DlN:

02312O51t, Mr. Harpal Singh (DlN: 069320621and Ms' Aarti Rawat

(DlN:071 56525), as lndependent Directors under Section 1 49 ofthe

Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)

Regulations, 2015, tor a.term of five consecutive years up to 3 1 st

March, 2023 in case of Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobti and for a term of 3

consecutive years up to 31'' March, 2021 in case of Mr' Harpal Singh

E
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& Ms. Aarti Rawat and further, pursuant to the provisions of Section

1 52(6) of the Act, the term ofthe lndependent Directors shall not be

liableto retire by rotation.
The Company has received the consent in writing from them to act as

Director and a declaration that they are not disqualified to act as

Director under Section 164(2) of the Act and meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act. Notices
under section 16o of the Act have been received from Members
proposing candidature of the above said directors for the office of
lndependent Director of the Company. ln the opinion of the Board,

these directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules

made there under for appointment as lndependent Directors of the

Company.
A brief profile of proposed lndependent Directors, including nature

of thei r expertise, is provided at this Ann ua I Report.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
or their respective relatives except the proposed appointees is

concerned or interested in the said Resolutions.

ITEM NO.9
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has

approved the appointment and remuneration of Ws. Ramanath lyer

& Co., New Delhi, as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 3.1" March,
2019. ln accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, has to be
ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the
members is sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors forthe financial year ending 3 1 " March, 201 9.

The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution set forth in ltem No.
9fortheapproval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
or their respective relatives is concerned or interested in the said
resolution.

By Order of the Board

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 146 August, 2018

sd/-
(Ashok Kumar Oswal)

Chairman and Managing Director
(DlN:00009403)

Name of Director Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal Mr. Adish Oswal Mr, Damanbir Singh Sobti Mr. Harpal Singh Ms. Aarti Rawat

DIN 00009403 0000971 0 o2312051 06932062 07156525

Date of Birth 08.02.1 955 1 8.0r .1 980 31 .O7.1982 20.03.1968 21.01.1 986

Date of Appointment 30.1 2.1 986 31 07.2009 18.-t1.2017 24.O5.2018 30.05.201 8

Expertise in specific functional
area

lndustrialist lndustrialist Leading Lawyer in Civil
law & Company law
matter.

Human Remurces &
Administrations

Sales & Marketlng

No. of eouity shares held in VPL 127748 420511 0 0 0

Oualification B Com, LLb 8.Com LLb B.Com B Com

DirectoBhip of other companies

as on 31o March,20l8

'1. Panchshel Textile Mfg
And Trading Company

Private Limited
2. Kent lnvestments

Private Limited
3. Enakshi lnvstments

h^. Ltd.

4. Pioneer Marcantile
lndia hn. Ltd.

5. Ruby Mercantile
Company hd. Ltd.

6. Cagan Merontile
Company Private

Limited
7. Liberty Mercantile

Company tut. Ltd.

8. Adesh lnvestment and

Trading Company
Private Limited

9. Boras lnvestment and

Tading Company

Private Limited
10. Allepy lnvestment and

Trading Co. h/t. Ltd.

11, Cd8ary lnvestment and
Trading Company Pl,t.

Lrd.

12. Alma tusets
Consultancy Private

Limited
13, Oswal Holding Private

Limited
14. F.M. Hammerle Textiles

Limited

1. Allepy lnvestment

and Trading Co.

hn. Lrd

2. Oswal lndustrial

Enterprise Private

Limited
3. Nightnagle

Dealcom Private

Limited
4. Alma Assets

Consultancy
Private Limited

5. Oswal lnfratech

Private Limited
6, Oswal Holding

Private Limited

't. Siss Enterprises
Private Limited

l. Frist Step

Compusystem
Private Limited

2, Woodland lnfotech
Private Limited

3. Rosewood
Merc2ntile Private

Limited

1. Fortune Metaliks
Limited

Chairmanship /Membership of
Committees of Companies as on
3l'March,2018

Chairmanship -Nil
Membership - 1

Chairmanship -Nil
Membership - 1

Chairmanship
Membership -

-2
Nil

Chairmanship - Nil
Membership - 2

Nil

Relationship with other Directors Spouse of Mrs. Manju
Oswal and Father of Mr.
Adish Oswal

Son of Mr. Ashok

Kumar Oswal and Mn.
Maniu Oswal

Not related to any direclor Not related to any

director
Not related to any
dirstor
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company are presenting 38* Ann ual Report on
the affairs of the Company together with Audited Financial
Statements ofthe Companyforthe yearended 3 1 

*March,201 8.

1. Financial Highlights

[t in Lakh)

PARTICULARS 201G17
Revenue from ooerations (Net) 85.925.1 3

Profit before Depreciation, lnterest & Tax
(PBDIT)

7,618.36

lnterest and Financial exoenses 5,619.58
Profit before Depreciation and Tax (PBDT) -1,998 

78
Depreciation 2,065.05
Profit before Tax & Exceptional ltems 66.27\
Exceptional items

Profit before Tax (PBT) (66.27).

Provision forTax - Current
- Deferred Tax (Net of Adjustment)

Profit for the period after tax (PAT) (42,388.30) \66 27r

Other Comprehensive lncome (34.r 9) 88.89
Total Comprehensive lncome for the
period

22.62

Earnings per share (Rs.)

- Basic (l90.1( (0.30)

- Diluted (0.30)

2. BusinessPerformance

Your Directors are pleased to report the Company's business
performance as follows:

Sales Revenue

During the year under review, net operating income of the
Company was 162,135.95|akhs as against t85,925.1 3 lakhs in
2O16-17, registering a decrease of 27.69%. The FOB value of
exports during the year has decreased by 62.68% to
<11 ,964.97 lakh in 201 7-18 against t32 ,062.60 lakh in 201G
17.

Profitability

Duringthe year under review, the Company has incurred losses

ot13,892.75lakhs before adjusting depreciation, interest & tax
as against profit of <7,618.36 lakhs during the previous year.
The Company has incurred net comprehensive loss of
<42,422.49 lakhs during the current year against net profit after
laxotl22.62lakhs in the previous year.

3. Management Discussion &Analysis Report

a) I ndustry structure and developments

lndia's textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in
lndian economy dating back several centuries. The lndian
textile industry has the capacity to produce a wide variety
of products suitable to different market segments, both
within lndia and across the world. The lndian textiles
industry is extremely varied, with the hand-spun and
hand-woven textiles sectors at one end of the spectrum,
wh ile the capita I intensive soph isticated m ills sector at the
other end of the spectrum. The decentralised power
looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form the largest

component of the textiles sector. Even today, textiles
sector is one of the largest contributors to lndia's exports
with approximately .13 per cent of total exports. The

textiles industry is also labour intensive and is one of the
largest employers. The textile industry employs about 1 05
million people directly and indirectly. lndia's overall
textile exports during FY 2017-18 stood at US$ 37.74
billion.

The fundamental strength of the textile industry is its
strong production base of wide range of fibre and yarns -
from natural fibres like cotton, jute, silk and wool to
synthetic and manmade fibres such as polyester, viscose,
nylon and acrylic. The challenge here is the fluctuation in
prices of the raw materials like wool and increase in oil
prices which increase the input costs. Branded textile
segment has dominant position in the lndian market as a
B2C branded player for suiting and shirting fabrics. The
vertical has grown over the years on the back of strong
channel partner relationships, some lasting more than 50
years as well as wide distribution reach. With a strong
distribution netrvork that addresses robust fabric demand
across Tier 1 cities to Tier 6 towns, the business has
consistently launched new products keeping in with the
customers' needs and preferences. ln FY 201 7- 18, it
witnessed strong groMh driven primarily by recovery in
wholesale channel post CST stabilisation and growth in
institutional category.

Market Size

The lndian textiles industry, currently estimated at around
US$ 150 billion, is expected to reach US$ 230 billion by
2020. The lndian Textile lndustry contributes
approximately 2 per cent to lndia's Cross Domestic
Product (GDP), 10 per cent of manufacturing production
and 14 per cent to overall lndex of lndustrial Production
(llP). The production of cotton in lndia is estimated to
increase by 9.3 per cent year-on-year lo reach 37.7
million bales in FY 201 7-18. The total area under
cultivation of cotton in lndia is expected to increase by 7

per cent to 11.3 million hectares in 2017-18, on account
of expectations of better returns from rising prices and
improved crop yields during the year 201Gl 7. lndian
exports of locally made retail and lifestyle products grew
at a compound annual groMh rate (CACR) of 10 per cent
from 2013 to 201 6, mainly led by bedding bath and home
decor products and texti les.

Clobaleconomy

ln 2017, the cyclical upswing undenuay since mid-20'l 6

continued to strengthen and the global economy
witnessed a pickup in growth. According to the
lnternational Monetary Fund (lMF), the year reported the
broadest synchronised global growth surge since 2010.
The advanced economies witnessed expansion owing to
increased investments and manufacturing output.
Similarly, key emerging markets and developing
economies, including Brazil, China and lndia, posted
strong upward momentum. Civen strongerthan expected
economic activity in 2017 , the IMF has revised its growth
forecast for the United States lrom 2.3olo to 2.7% in 2018
and from 1.9% to 2.5olo in 2019. Stronger domestic
demand in the United States is projected to increase
imports. ln Europe too, economic activity in 2018 and

1rt17-1R

2.O52.1(

t4, 1R8 10

(42,422 49
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2019 is projected to remain stronger than anticipated.
Moreover, the advanced economies ih Asia are expected
to deliver stronger growth, while the emerging and
developing ones are expected to grow at around 6.5%
over 20.1 8-1 9, broadly the same pace as in 2017 .

lndian economy

lndia's economy picked up some pace in FY 201 7-18 and
the gross domestic product growth was befter than FY
201 6-1 7. The structural reform ofThe Coods and Services
Tax (CST) within a year of demonetisation is expected to
provide a boost to the economic growth and investments
in the long run. With an improving business ecosystem,
stable macroeconomic indicators and a liberal FDI
regime, foreign capital inflow has provided impetus to the
domestic economy. According to World Bank's Clobal
Economic Prospects report, lndia's GDP is expected to
riseto7.40lo in FY 2018-'19 and7.8.l, in FY 2019-20.

Global textile and apparel irtdustry

Along with the upbeat outlook for the global economy,
the textile and apparel industry is also expected to witness
growth across developed and emerging markets. While
the apparel industry is still largely dominated by the
European Union and the US, countries like China, lndia
and ltaly are emerging as key exporters of apparel and as

future destinations for consumption. The global trade in
the apparel segment is expected to grow at a CAGR of 5%
and the global textiles trade is projected to grow at a

CACR of 3% over 2016-26. Fabric is expected to lead the
category, fol lowed by yarns and fibre.

lndian textile industry

The lndian textiles industry is among the oldest in the
country. lt is projected to reach USD 230 billion by 2020
from around USD 120 billion. Currently, the domestic
textiles industry contributes 10% to the manufacturing
output of the country, generates about 4% to its C DP and
employs more than 45 million people. lmportantly, the
sector contributes 15% to the export earnings of lndia.
Mitigating the repercussions of currency fluctuation
remains a challenge. Exports have been a core feature of
lndia's textile sector. The lndian textiles export market,
estimated at $18 billion, is expected to grow at a CACR of
4% compared to the global CACRof 3"L over 2O1G26.

Government lnitiatives

The lndian government has come up with a number of
export promotion policies for the textiles sector. lt has also
allowed '100 per cent FDI in the lndian textiles sector
under the automatic route. The government has taken
initiatives to further promote the industry such as the
Directorate Ceneral of Foreign Trade (DCFT) has revised
rates for incentives under the Merchandise Exports from
lndia Scheme (MEIS) for two subsectors of Textiles
lndustry - Readymade garments and Made ups -from 2 per
cent to 4 per cent. The Covernment of lndia plans to
introduce a meBa package for the powerloom sector,
which will include social welfare schemes, insurance
cover, cluster development, and upgradation of obsolete
looms, along with tax benefits and marketing support,
which is expected to improve the status of power loom
weavers in the country. The Covernment has taken
several measures including Amended Technology Up-
gradation Fund Scheme (A-TUFS), launch of lndia

Handloom Brand and integrated scheme for development
of silk industry, for the strategic enhancement of lndian
textiles quality to international standards. Furthermore,
the Covernment has designed Pradhan Mantri Paridhan
Ro.jgar Protsahan Yojana (PMPRPY) to incentivize
employers in the apparel sector for generation of new
employment. Under the PMPRPY, government provides
additional 3.67% of the employer's contribution, in
addition to Covernment bearing 8.33% of employer
contribution of Provident Fund (EPF). The government has
extended duty drawback facility for one year on all textile
products to boost exports, and has increased rates in some
cases for the benefit of lndian exporters.

CST impact on the domestic textile sector

The introduction of CST has resulted in removal of
concessions/exemptions for the textile industry which
saw outrages and protests by various associations and
players in the textile industry. Considering the intent of
CST and peculiar manner of operation of textile industry,
it may take slightly longer for textile industry to off-set the
initial hiccups of CST and grow at a competitive pace.
CST would help reduce costs for manufacturers in the
textile industry as it is likely to consider various fringe
taxes like Octroi, entry tax, luxury tax etc. CST will lead to
a shift in textile industry from unorganized sector to
otganized sector. Positives from Union Budget 2018-19.
The CST Council has exempted taxes on silk and jute
fibre, cotton, natural fibre, while all kinds of yarns and all
categories of fabric willattract 5% tax rate. Manmade fibre
and yarn will attract 12olo lax rate. Due to the extensive
procedure costs and delays made in the processing of duty
drawback, the manufacturers/traders were not inclined
towards exports. Under CST, the system of duty drawback
will lose its significance, which would give a significant
boost for promoting the export of textile products. The
positive impact of CST will be largely felt by companies
engaged in manufacturing and/or dealing with fibre and
yarn components, since the presence of unorganized
units is relatively large compared to the fabric and
garrhent units. However, the CST would affect the cotton
value chain of the textile industry including all garments
for men and women. This near-term disruptions could
take a potential toll on the financial performance of most
players/ the textile industry as a whole is poised to grow as

organized units gain market share back from their
undrganized counterparts. ln the current scenario, there
has been a mixed response to these rates by the textile
industry. Although in the near term, there could be some
disruptions in the context of higher tax rates, but in longer
term CST is expected to be beneficial by creating more
opportunities.

b) Management perception of Risk & concerns

In today's challenging and competitive environment,
strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing
the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The
main risks inter alia include strategic risk, operational risk,
financial risk and compliances & legal risk. The fast
technology obsolescence, high cost of manufacturing and
irrational taxation are the major risk/ concerns of the
business.

The Company has devised and implemented a
mechanism for risk management and has developed a



Vardhman Polytex Limited

Risk Management Policy. The Policy provides for
constitution of a Risk Management Committee, which
consist directors and senior management personnel. The
Company through a risk management committee
oversees the Risk Management process including risk
identification. impact assessment, effective
implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting.
The Audit Committee also evaluates risk management
system of the Company periodically.

To cover foreign exchange risk, the Company transacts its

all exports through secured mode either against LC or
partial advance payment and foreign currency is being
hedged simultaneously against almost all confirmed
contracts. To cover commodity price risk, the orders of
finished goods are usually booked in advance as per stock
of the Raw Material lnventory. The Management procures
raw material and sales orders for finished goods are
booked forward/ in advance upon proper market analysis,
forecasting and information from lnternal & external
sources.

c) lnternal control system & adeqiracy

Your Company has an adequate internal control system.
There is a system of continuous lnternal Audit which aims
at ensuring effectiveness and efficiency of systems and
operations. The internal audit is conducted out-house
lnternal Audit team lead by a qualified Chartered
Accountant along with sufficient qualified & experienced
staff. The scope of the lnternal Audit is not limited to
accounts only but includes operations. inventories,
costing records, physical verifications of immovable and
movable assets etc. on regular basis.

The Audit Commiftee of the Board of Directors approves
and reviews audit plans for the year based on internal risk

assessment. Audits are conducted on an on-going basis

and significant deviations are brought to the notice of the
Audit Committee following which corrective action is

recommended for implementation. All these measures
facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and early
remedial steps.

d) FinancialPerformance

Resource utilisation

The gross fixed assets as at 31" March, 2018 were
<61,912.16 lakh against {61 ,709.24|akh in the previous
year. The Net block of assets as on 31" March, 2018 was
<22,869.17 lakh as against {24,359.87 lakh in the
prevrous year.

lnventory levels as at 31'' March, 2018 were t4,256.88
Iakh as against <7,743.10 lakh in the previous year. The

trade receivable as at 31" March, 2018 were {3,029.98
lakh as against{7,68'l .47 lakh in the previous year.

Financial condition & liquidity

[t in takh)

Particulars 2017-18 201G17

Cash & cash equivalents

Beginning of the year 702.51 626.06

End of the year 168.25 702.5',!

Net cash provided(used) by:

Operating Activities 3,865.04 7,728.48

lnvesting Activities (s16.78) (1,975.09)

Financial Activities (3,882.521 $,674.79\

e) Human Resources Management

Your Company gives utmost importance to human
resource. lt considers "Human Resource as Human
Capital" and believes in the development of Human
Resource. The Company strongly believes in the
Performance Management System and always tries to
explore and tap high potential at the Croup level to meet
new challenges and competition. Our main tool is

training and developing talent at various levels. lnternal
and external trainings are regularly organized for the
development of the members/employees.

0 Safety, Health & Environment

The Company's top priority is safety, with regard to
employment. lt encourages safety measures at all
operational levels, especially at floor level. Regular
training pro8rams are conducted to create awareness
about the importance of safety at work. Medical Camps
are organized periodically for welfare of the members.
Additionally, regular medical facilities are also provided
tothem.

4. ShareCapital

During the year under review, there was no change in the paid-
up share capital ofthe company.

5. Dividend

The Board of Directors of yourCompany has not recommended
any dividend forthe financial year 2017-18.

6. Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, Mr. Adish Oswal has been
appointed as Managing Director (Business & Corporate Affairs)
w.e.f . 24.1 1.2017. Mr. Aiay Chaudhry ceased to be direaor
due to his sudden demise on 16.03.2017. Mr. Vishal Oswal,
Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal, Dr. B. S. Bhatia & Mr. M. D. Kanitkar
resigned from the directorship of the company. Further, Mrs.
Manju Oswal joined the board of the company as the woman
direclor on board on 1 2.08.2017 followed by the appointment
of Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobti, Mr. Harpal Singh & Ms. Aani
Raw at as i ndependent di rectors on the board of the company.

The tenure of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal as Chairman &

Managing Director has expired, and being eligible offers

h i mself for re.appoi ntment.

Further, Mr. Adish Oswal retires by rotation at this Annual
Ceneral Meeting, and being eligible offers himself for re'
appointment.

All the lndependent Directors have confirmed that they meet
the criteria of lndependence as mentioned under Section
146(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 201 5.

7. Remuneration Policyand Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing

Regulations, the Company has adopted Nomination &

Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel.

The independent directors in their meeting held on
14.O2.2O18, through discussion, evaluated the performance of
non independent directors, Board, Managing Director and
Executive Directors. The minutes of the said meeting were
submitted to Chairman of the Company and also placed before
the Board for their consideration. The Board has carried out
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the

I



Vardhman Polytex Limited

directors individually as well the evaluation of the working of
its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholders'

Relationship Commiftee. The Nomination & Remuneration
Policy containing manner of evaluation the performance of the
Board/d i rectors/comm iftees is enclosed as'Annexurel'.

While evaluating the performance, the following points were
considered:

i. Participation in Board Meetings and Board Committee
Meetings.

ii. Managing relationship with other directors and
management.

iii. Knowledge and Skill i.e. understanding of duties,

responsibilities, refreshment of knowledge, knowledge of
industry, abi lity to listens and present his views.

iv. Personal attributes like maintain high standard of ethics
and integrity.

v. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future groMh of
Company and its performance.

8. Board/ Committee Meetings

The details of the Board & Committee meetings held during the
year and Board's Committees composition are furnished in the
Corporate Covernance Report, which forms part of this report.

9. CorporateSocialResponsibility

The Company considers Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

as social obligation, sustainable development, regulatory
environment, human resource management, safety health &
environment and a part of Corporate Covernance and

accordingly framed CSR policy, which is available on the
Company's website i.e. www.vpl.in. The projectV programs to
be undertaken under CSR are specified in the policy.

Due to average loss during preceding three financial years, the
company is not falling under the criteria for spending the
amount under CSR. Hence, reporting on CSR activities as per
the provisions is not required /applicable.

10. listingofsecurities

The Securities of the Company are listed on National Stock

Exchange of lndia Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Limited. The Company
has paid annual listing fee to exchanges for the year 2017-18.
Further, Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of the
company are listed at Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Ltd.

I 1 , Subsidiaries, Associates and loint Venture

The Company has two subsidiaries, namely F.M. Hiimmerle
Textiles Ltd. and F.M. Hdmmerle Verwaltungs GmbH, Austria,
as on 31"March,201B. There is no associate company within
the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 20.1 3

("Act"). There has been no material chdnge in the nature ofthe
business of the subsidiaries.

One of the subsidiary company, F.M. Hdmmerle Textiles Ltd.
has filed a petition in National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),

Chandigarh Bench under the provisions of Section 10 of
lnsolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and vide order dated
01.09.2017, Mr. Rajeev Coel has been appointed as the
Resolution Professional for undertaking the Corporate
lnsolvency Resolution Process (CIRP).

The Company has published the audited consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31o March, 2018 and

the same forms part of this Annual Report. Accordingly, the

Annual Report does not contain the financial statements of our
subsidiaries. As per the provisions of Section 1 29(3) of the Act,
a statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of the Company's subsidiaries in Form AOC-I is

annexed with this Annual Report.

The audited financial statements of these subsidiaries and the
related information will be made available to any Member of
the Company/its subsidiaries seeking such information at any
point of time and are also available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company/is subsidiaries.

12, Fixed Deposits

During the year, the Company has not accepted any fixed
deposits. There is no outstanding deposit as at 31" March,
2018.

13. Loans, Guaranteesor lnvestments

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the
financial statements.

14. Company Petition

A petition filed by M/s Maschinen Umwelttechnik
Transportanlagen CmbH, Austria (a shareholder of F.M.

Himmerle Textiles Ltd.) against the Company UlS 397, 398,
4O2 & 4O3 of the Companies Act, 1 956, has been disposed of
by Hon'ble Company Law Board vide its order dated
13.08.2015. The F.M. Hdmmerle Textiles Ltd. has filed appeals
against the abovesaid order of the Hon'ble Company Law
Board which are pendingadjudication beforethe Hon'ble High
Court for the State of Punjab and Haryana at Chandigarh.

The Company has also filed a Civil appeal under section 10 (fl

of the Companies Act, 1956 (corresponding Section 59 of the
Companies Act, 2013) against the judgement dated
13.08.2015 passed by the Hon'ble Company Law Board, as

modified vide order dated 13.10.201 7 passed by the Hon'ble
Supreme Courtof lndia.

15. Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pu rsuant to Section 1 34 of the Act, the Directors state that:

(a) ln the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and
applied consistently and have made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a

true and fair view of the state of affai rs of the Company as

at 31" March, 2ol8 and of the profit and loss of the

Company for the yearended 31"March,2018;

(c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
201 3 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other i rregularities;

(d) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis;

(e) Proper internal financial controls were followed by the
Company and such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

(0 Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.
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16. CorporateGovernance

The Company has in place a comprehensive system of
Corporate Covernance. A separate report on Corporate
Governance forms part ofthe Annual Report ofthe Company. A
certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Covernance as

stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is annexed to the
Report on Corporate Covernance.

17, RelatedPartyTransactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the
financial year were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary
course of business. All Related Party transactions were placed
before the Audit Committee for approval. The Audit Committee
has granted omnibus approval for related party transactions as
per the provisions and restrictions contained in the Listing SEBI
(LODR) Regulations. There was no material/significant
transaction with the directors or the management, their
subsidiaries or relatives etc. that have any potential conflict
with interest of the Company at large read with details of
transactions as disclosed in Notes on Accounts annexed in the
Balance Sheet as per Accounting Standard (AS)-1 8. The Board
has approved a policy for related party transactions which is

available on the Company's website.

No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions
exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as

per the last audited financial statements, were entered during
the year by your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of
related party transactions as required under Section 

.l 
34(3Xh) of

the Companies Acl, 2O1 3 is not appl icable.

18. Preventionof Sexual Harassmentatworkplace

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment
policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 20'l 3. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. lnternal
Complaints Committees have been framed at various locations
to redress complaints of sexual harassment. The Company has
not received any compliant related to sexual harassment during
the year.

19. VigilMechanism/WhistleBlowerPolicy

ln order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its
employees are conducted in a fair and transparent manner by
adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty,
integrity and ethical behavior, the company has adopted a Vigil
Mechanism Policy, which is available at Company's website.
The brief contents of the policy are explained in corporate
governance report.

20. Auditors

i) StatutoryAuditors

AzVs. Romesh K. Aggarwal and Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Ludhiana (Firm Registration No. 00071 1N),
Chartered Accountants have been appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at 37'h Annual Ceneral Meeting
held on 9'n September, 2017 for a period of three years
subject to ratification by members at every consequent
Annual Ceneral Meeting. Therefore, ratification of
appointment of Statutory Auditors is being sought from
the members of the Company at the ensuing Annual
Ceneral Meeting.

ii) SecretarialAuditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 201 3 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014,
the Company has appointed N,l/s Khanna Ashwani &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Ludhiana to
conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the
financial year 2O1 7-1 8.

iii) CostAuditors

The Board of Directors has appointed lWs Ramanath lyer
& Company, Cost Accountants. New Delhi, as the Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct cost audit for the
financial year ended 31o March, 2019. As per the
requirement of Section 

.148 
of the Companies Act, 201 3

read with rules made there under, the remuneration to be
paid to them is placed for the ratification by the members
at this Annual Ceneral Meeting.

21. Comments on Auditors' Report and Secretarial Auditors'
Report

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted
Auditors' Report on the Accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended 31" March, 2018. ln their reports
(standalone and consolidated), they have made certain
qual ifications/observations. The explanation/comments of the
Board on the same are as under:

Standalone Auditor's Report

The company had credited income of <396.44 lakh due on
payment of FCCB liability to the statement of profit and loss
account during the year ended 31' March, .2017. This profit
should have been credited in the statement of profit and loss on
payment of FCCB liability which is still outstanding as

explained in note no. 52 ofStandalone financial statements.

We state thatthe company had credited the amount on the basis
of seftlement of FCCB liability and out of the settled amount a
major part has already been paid till year ended on 31" March,
2017.

The company is undergoing debt resolution plan with the entire
of its lenders including Axis Bank Ltd which is holder of FCCB
and the issue will be addressed in debt resolution plan.

Consolidated Auditor's Report

The qualificationJobservations in consolidated Auditor's
report are similar as stated above of the standalone Auditor's
Report. Hence explanations/comments of the same are
provided above.

Other points of Auditor's Reports on the accounts of the
company for the year under review are self explanatory and
require no comments.

Secretarial Auditors' Report

The Secretarial Auditors' report does not contain any
qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. Report of the
secretarial auditor is annexed herewith as'Annexure ll', which
forms partof this report.

22. Eneryy conservation, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo

The information on conseryation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated
under Section 1 34(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 201 3 read with
Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules,20'14, is annexed
herewith as'Annexure lll'.
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23. Particulars of Employees

The information required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 201 3 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as 'Annexure lV'.

24. Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in
Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as 'Annexure V'.

25. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals

There are no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the
going concern status ofthe Company.

26. Acknowledgements

Your directors are pleased to place on record their sincere
gratitude to the Covernment, Financial lnstitutions, Bankers

and Business Constituents for their continued and valuable co-
operation and support to the Company. They also take this
opportunity to record their appreciation of the valuable
contribution made by the employees in the successful
operations ofthe Company duringthe year.

27, CautionaryStatement

Certain statements made in the Management Discussion and

Analysis Report relating to the Company's objectives,
projections, outlook, expectations, estimates and others may

constitute 'forward looking statements' within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from
such expectations whether expressed or implied. Several

factors could make significant difference to the Company's
operations. These include climatic and economic conditions
affecting demand and supply, government regulations &

taxation and natural calamities over which the Company does

not have any direct control.

For and on behalf of the Board

Company.

'Chief Financiat Officer' means a person appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of a Company.

'Compliance Officer' means "Company Secretary'of the Company.

'Key Managerial Personnel' in relation to a company. means-
o Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or manager and

in theirabsence, a WholeTime Director.

o Company Secretary;

. Chief Financial Officer; and

Such other officer as may be prescribed.

'The Company' shall mean Vardhman Polytex Ltd.

'Executive Director' shall mean and include Company's Managing
Director, Functional Directors, and such other Directors are in full
time employment of the Company.

'lndependent Director' shall same meaning as provide in
Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015.

'Non-Executive Director' shall mean those members on Board who
are not in whole time employment of the Company.

'Senior Management Personnel' shall mean personnel of the
company who are members of its core management team excluding
Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including all
functional heads.

ROI.E OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as

under:

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors,
persons who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria and to recommend to the Board for
their appointment and / or removal.

2. Tocarryoutevaluationofeverydirector'sperformance.

3. To establish criteria and processes for, and assist the Board and
each of its Comm ittees in their performance evaluations.

4. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel and otheremployees.

5. To recommend / review remuneration of the Managing
Directo(s) and Whol+time Directo(s), based on their
performance and defined assessment criteria.

6. To administer, monitor and formulate detailed terms and
conditions of the Employees' Stock Option Scheme including:

o the quantum of optlons to be granted under Employees'

Stock Option Scheme per employee and in aggregate;

o the conditions under which option vested in employees
may lapse in case of termination of employment for
misconduct;

o the exercise period within which the employee should
exercise the option and that the option would lapse on
failure to exercise the option within the exercise period;

o the specified time period within which the employee shall
exercise the vested options in the event of termination or
resignation of an employee;

o the right of an employee to exercise all the options vested
in him at one time or at various points of time within the

Date: 14'h August, 2018
Place: Ludhiana

sd/-
(Ashok Kumar Oswal)

Chairman and Managing Director
(DrN-00009403)

ANNEXURE.I

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

APPLICABILITY

The policy is applicable to the Board of Direclors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP), Chief Operating Officer, and Senior Management
Personnel (herein after col lectively referred as Managerial Personnel)

or such other persons of the Company as the commiftee may deems
fit forthat purpose.

INTERPRETATION

'Board' shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company, which
comprising all executive, non executive, independent director and
nominee director.

'Chief Executive Otficer' means an officer of a company, who has

been designated as such by it.

'Chief Operating Officer' shall mean an employee who has been

entrusted responsibi I ity of managing any one or more of Units of the
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exercise period;

. theprocedureformakingafairand reasonableadjustment
to the number of options and to the exercise price in case
of corporate actions such as rights issues, bonus issues,
merger, sale of division and others; and

o the granting, vesting and exercising of options in case of
employees who are on long leave; and the procedure for
cash less exercise of options;

7. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board
from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification,
amendmentor modification, as may be applicable.

8. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or
appropriate for the performance of its duties.

IMPTEMENTATION OF POLICIES

The Commiftee will seek to ensure that the remuneration of
executive directors (consisting of basic salary, pension benefits and
benefits in kind) will be competitive with those in other comparable
organisations so as to attract high caliber individuals with relevant
expeflence.

The Committee will ensure that part of the remuneration of executive
directors will be based on the financial performance of the Croup
using predetermined targets so as to motivate and reward successful
business performance in the interest ofshareholders.

AUTHORITY

The Committee is authorised:

o to seek any information it requires from any employee of any
company within the Croup in orderto perform its duties;

o to obtain, at the company's expense, outside legal or other
professional advice on any mafters within its terms of reference;
and

. to call any member of staff to be questioned at a meeting of the
Committee as and when required.

FREQUENCY OF MEET!NcS

The Committee shall meet as per the requirement of Companies Act,
2013 rules made there under read with requirement of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 201 5.

PRESENCE IN ANNUAT GENERAL MEETING

The Chairman of the Committee or, in his absence any other member
of the committee as authorized shall attend the Annual General
Meeting.

ANNUAT AFFIRMATION

The policy shall be disclosed in the Board Report of the Company.

CR!TERIA TO EVATUATE PERFORMANCE

a) Selection Criteria for Directors

The Company shall consider the following aspects while
appointing a person as a Directoron the Board ofthe Company:

Skills and Experience: The candidate shall have appropriate
skills and experience in one or more fields of finance, law,
management, sales, marketing, administration, public
administrative services, research, corporate governance,
technical operations or any other discipline related to the
Company's business.

Age Limit: The candidate should have completed the age of
twenty one (21) years and should not have attained the age of
eighty (80) years. I n case any d i rector has aftai ned age of 80 year
he can be appointed as director with the permission of board.

Conflict of lnterest: The candidate should not hold
Directorship in any competitor company, and should not have
any conflict of interest with the Company.

Directorship: The number of companies in which the
candidate holds Directorship should not exceed the number
prescribed undertheActor undertheSEBl (LODR) Regulations.
2015 requirements.

lndependence: The candidate proposed to be appointed as
lndependent Director, should not have any direct or indirect
material pecuniary relationship with the Company and must
satisfy the requirements imposed under the Act or under the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 201 5 requirements.

b) Selrtion Criteria for Senior Management

As per Selection Criteria Senior Management shall mean
employees hired at the level of Divisional Heads and Corporate
Functional Heads or equivalent positions.

The policy provides that the candidate should have appropriate
qualifications, skills and experience for discharging the role.
The qualifications. skills and experience of each such position
shall be defined in the job description, which will be
maintained by the HR function.

c) Remuneration for Directors, KMP and other Employees

The policy provides that the remuneration of Directors, KMP
and other employees shall be based on the following key
principles:

6 Pay for performance: Remuneration of Executive
Directors, KMP and other employees is a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long
term performance objectives appropriate to the working
of the Company and its goal. The sitting fee shall be paid to
Non-Executive Directors to be decided by the Board from
timetotime.

6 Balanced rewards to create sustainable value: The level
and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to aftract, retain and motivate the Directors and
employees of the Company and encourage behavior that
is al igned to sustainable value creation.

.6 Competitive compensation: Total target compensation
and benefits are comparable to peer companies in the
textile industry and commensurate to the qualifications
and experience ofthe concerned individual.

6 Business Ethics: Strong governance processes and
stringent risk management policies are adhered to, in
order to safeguard our stakeholders' interest.

d) PerformanceEvaluation

The process approved by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee requires the Chairman to initiate the performance
evaluation process in the month of April every year. The
performance evaluation is conducted based on approved
criteria in the evaluation forms. The process highlights are as

under:

a) Board: Each Board member completes the self-evaluation
form. lndependent Directors discuss the selfrvaluation
forms in a separate meeting and share their feedback with
the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman discusses
with the entire Board atthe Board Meeting.

b) Committees: Each Committee member completes the
self-evaluation form and shares feedback with the
Chairman of the Committee. The Chairman of the
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Committee discusses the evaluation form analysis with
the Managing Director and later with the entire Board at
the Board Meeting.

c) Chairman and Executive Directors: Each Board member
completes the peer evaluation form. lndependent
Directors discuss the peer evaluation forms in a separate
meeting and share their feedback with the Chairman. The
Chairman conveys feedback individually to the
concerned Directors.

d) lndependent Directors: Each Board member completes
the peer evaluation and shares feedback with the
Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback individually
to the concerned Directors.

AMENDMENT

The member of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiftee of the
Company has the right to amend or modify this policy in whole or in
part, at any time without assigning any reason, whatsoever.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.20T8

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4l

To,

The Members,

Vardhman Polytex Limited.

Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,

LUDHIANA-141123,

Punjab (lndia).

We have conducted the secretarial audit compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices

by Vardhman Polytex Limited (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compl iances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Vardhman Polytex Limited books,
papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31.03.2018 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance.mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute book, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company for the
financial year ended on 31.03.201 8 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Ac! and the rules nrade
thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and
the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye.laws
framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
lnvestment, Overseas Direct lnvestment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Cuidelines prescribed under the
Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of lndiaAct, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Substantial

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,20l 1;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 201 5;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (lssue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009; not applicable to the company during period of
audit.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee

Stock Option Scheme and Emptoyee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Cuidelines, 1999 and Securities and Exchange
Board of lndia (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations,2014; not applicable during the period of
audit.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (lssue and
listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2o08; not
applicable to the company during period of audit.

(0 The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Registrar to
an lssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; not applicable to the
company during period of audit.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998; not applicable to the
company during period of audit; and

(i) Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 (effective'1"
December 201 5)

I have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The lnstitute of
Company Secretaries of lndia (lCSl) - ICSI had issued
Secretarial Standards numbering l and 2

corresponding with reference to the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (effective 1 July 201 5) and
the Management adheres to them;

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of lndia Limited;

During the period under review the Company has
generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Cuidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

(vi) OtherApplicablelaws

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system
prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof on testrheck

ANNEXURE.II

Form No. MR-3
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basis, the Company has complied with the following laws
applicable specifically to the Company:

1 . The Factories Act 'l 948 and Rules framed there under

2. Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1958 read
with Shops and Commercial Establishments Rules

3. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act- -197O

4. Apprentices Act, I961 read with Apprenticeship Rules,
1992

5. Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1 952

6. The Employees State lnsurance Act, 1948, Employees
State lnsurance (Central) Rules, 1 950 and Employees State
lnsurance (Ceneral) Regulations, I 950

7. Employment Exchanges Compulsory Notification of
Vacancies Act, 1959 and the Employment Exchanges
Compulsory Notification of Vacancies Rules, 1960

8. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and Equal Remuneration
Rules, 1976

9. Minimum Wages Act, 1948 read with State Minimum
Wages Rules framed thereunder.

'10. The Payment of Cratuity Ac1v 1972 read with State
Payment of Cratuity Rules framed thereunder.

1 1. Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986 read
with Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Rules,
1 988.

12. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 read with State Payment of
Wages Rules framed thereunder.

1 3. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1 965 read with the Payment of
Bonus Rules, '1975

.14. 
lndustrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 read
with State lndustrial Employment (StandingOrders) Rules

15. The Sexual Harassment of women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 201 3

Environmental, Health and Safety [aws:
'I 6. Environment Protection Rules,2002

17. Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and
Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008

18. Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules,2000

19. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 read
with StateAir(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Rules:

20. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
read with State Water (Prevention and Control of
Pollution) Rules:

21. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act,
1977 read with Water (Prevention and Control of
Pol lution) Cess Rules, 1 978

Further, We have not visited the factory units situated ati
. Vardhman Polytex Limited, Badal Road, Bathinda - 1 51 005.

. Unit - Vinayak Textiles Mill, D-29511 , Focal Point, Phase.8,
Ludhiana East, Ludhiana lV, Ludhiana, Punjab, lndia.

. Amkryon lnternational, HB-22, Phase -Vl, Focal Point,
Ludhiana- 1410.10

We are issuing this report on the basis of compliance certificates
provided by the functional heads of different departments of the
Company and Manager which were produced before the Board

through agenda papers.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, NorrExecutive Directors
and independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation atthe meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members'
views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in
the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidel ines.

We further report that during the audit period;

. Company has been irregular in making the debt payment to its
lending bankers & has made a default on payment of interest/
repayment of principal amount on loans taken from banks &
f inancial institutions.

. As pointed out by the statutory auditor, company is unable to
meet with the current liabilities with respect to the Foreign
Currency Convertible Bonds ("FCCB").

. Subsidiary Company i.e F.M. Hammerle Textile Limited, has
been referred to the NCLT Chandigarh Bench under the
provisions of Section 10 of lnsolvency & Bankruptcy Code,
2015 and vide order dated 01.09.2017, Mr. Rajeev Goel has
been appointed as the Resolution Professional for undertaking
the Corporate lnsolvency Resolution Process ("ClRP"),

For and on behalf of the Board

Date: 6'h August, 2018
Place: Ludhiana

sd^
(Ashwani Kumar Khanna)

FCS No.3254
CP No.2220

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is

annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part ofthis report.

Annexure: -A

To,

The Members,

Vardhman Polytex Limited.

Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,

LUDH!4NA.141123,

Punlab (lndia).

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on ouraudit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
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the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on
the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and books of accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc and we have relied on such
representation for giving our report.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on random test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with the
management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

ll. ResearchandDevelopment(R&D)

a) Specific areas in which R&D is carried out

The Company's R&D/QC teams regularly focused on product
development, process improvement and quality control at
every stage of production. The Company has given more
aftention to value addition by converting part of carded
production into combed, slub yarns, lycra yarn,
modal/cotton, P/C melange, contamination free yarn, neppy
yarn, grindle yarn, snow yarn etc and thus increasing the
product range and customer base.

b) BenefitsderivedasresultofR&D

The Company initiated the production of value added yarns
and upgraded varieties of normal yarn as a result of effective
R&D techniques and maintaining consistent quality. lt has
been able to improve quality & reduce market feedbacks
without comprom ising on productivities.

c) ExpenditureonR&D

(( in lakh)

Particulars

Capital

Recurring 71.66

Iolal 71.66

Total R&D expenditure as a percentage 0f Turnover 0,1 1 Yo

lll. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

Technology upgradation is one of the ma.jor areas for
development in today's competitive business environment.
Mechanical, electrical engineering and R&D teams at different
locations are continuously studying and analyzing the existing
processes for further improvement. During the year, the
company has upgraded certain machines resulted to
improvement in the quality.

lV. Foreign exchange earnings, CIF value of import & expenditure
in foreign currency

(t in lakh)

Date: 66 August, 201 I
Place: Ludhiana

sd/-
(Ashwani Kumar Khanna)

FCS No.3254
CP No.2220

ANNEXURE.III

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

Conservation ofenergy

The Company initiated several steps to conserve energy, wherever
possible. The Energy Conservation Cell continuously meets,
conducts studies, verifies and monitors the consumption &
utilisation of energy including identification of energy consewation
areas in different manufacturing units of the Company.

a) Energy conservation measures taken, its impact and capital
lnvestmenton equipment

[nergy saving measurcs taken

during 2017-18

Power saving

(Units/KWh

in lakh)

Capital

lnvestment

(Rs. in lalh )

lnstallation of super energy

effi cient motors, variable

frquenq drivers on Hplants,

optimizing air pressure on

spinninB machines, replacement of

ordinary tuh lights with LED tuhs

etc.

l. Unit saving by

installation of energy

efficient 02 no. of fans in

H-Plants.

B0 Units/Day

2. Unissavingbyplug

leakage ofcompresed

atr.

l20UnitdDay

1.46 Lakhs

0.79 Lakhs

b) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of

(FOB of 11,964.97 32,062.60

Clt value of imports 1,566,42 7,540.r 8

Expenditure in foreign currency 92,47 248.29

uticuhn 2017.181 201611

enerSy.

1. Heatrecoverysystems.

2. lnstallation ofVFDs/lnverters.

3. lnstallation of LED Lights.

4. Controlling compressed air leakages.
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ANNEXURE -]V

Particulars of Employees

Details pertaining to remuneration under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 (1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014

1, a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year and the percentage increase in remuneration of
each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:

s,

No

Parthulars lmunerltionpaid

duringlhyear(Rs,

irr lalh)

Ralio to Median

lsnuneration

%incrusein

rumureratinr in th

fimnialyur

I Mr, fulrol l(uma 0swal

Chairman & Managing Directort

26.08 1:6 9

,)
Mr.Adi$0swal

Man4ir4 Dinrlu(Buines & Corprah

Alhid'

25.82 1:6.8 100%

3 Mr, fuhot lfunrar 6oyal

(txcutive Director)

56,70 1:14.9 6,8%

{ Mrs, klihi0swal

(Non hnutile Non lndepe&nt Director)

N.A,

5 r\lrs, [hnju 0nral

(Non hrutirr Noo lrdoerdent Director)

0,10 N,,{..

5 Mr, Alay Clnudhry

flon hrutive lndeocndmt Dircctod

0.n N,A.

7 Dr, B, S, Btrath

(No+ heutire lndocdefl t Dirdu)

0.n N.A,

0 li{r. lil, D, l(anhlar

(Non herutire lndEmdent Dtrlor)

0.29 N,A.

9 [lr, DananbirSingh hbti

(Non txculire lndefn&nl Direcor)

0,30 N.A,

l0 Mr,XulfopSiryla

(Chief tirunialffimr)

16,87 l/,4 5,8%

11, Mr. Sushil Slurma

(Commnykntary)

7.n tr.1 N.A,

12 Mr. ?an[{ Agarwal

(Comparykdary)

1.69 1 N,A.

Note: The Company pays only sitting fee to Non-executive directors.
*The salary being paid to Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal and Mr. Adish
Oswal was reduced to the amount of {1 per month w.e.f.
01.08.2017.

b) The median remuneration of employees of the Company
during the financial year: {3.79 lac (required from HR)

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial yeac 2.93"/" (required from
HR)

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of
Company as on 31o March, 2018: 2,713 employees
(required From HR)

e) The average annual increase in the salaries of employees
other than the managerial personnel during the financial
yearwas around 8.2%.

0 The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company.

2. lnformation as per rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) Rules,2O14.

a) Details of the Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year ended 31o March, 2018.

Note: 1 . All employments are contractual, terminable by notice from either side

2. No employee of the company holds such percentage of equity shares within the meaning of clause (iii) of rule 5(2) of the Compan ies (Appointment and

Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4

3. No employee is relative of any director or manager of the Company except Mr. Adish Oswal and Mr. Abhinav Oswal being sons of Mr. Ashok Kumar
Oswal.

b) There was no employee in receipt of remuneration as mentioned in Ru le 5(2)(i), (ii) and (iii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 201 4.

s.
No.

Name of Employe Date of Birth Deignation Qualifications
Total Exp.
(ln Years)

Date of
commencement
of employment

in VPL

Remuneration
(CTC) drawn

during the year
( Rs in Lakh)

Previous employer

1 Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal 23 10 1959 Executive Director
B.com, LL.B, FCS,

DBM, MEP(IIMA)
27 yea$ 03.06 199r 55-7 Lac

sterling Tools
Limited

Mr. Kamal Kumar Kamila 12 08 2016 VicePresidenF Technical M.Tech 29.5 Years 1 5.03.1964 39 Lac Winsome Croup

3 Mr. Sandeep Bahl 2A.O5.1967 Chief 6eneral Manager
B.Tech Textile
Technology

29 Years 19.09 20r6 38 Lac Spintex Mills

4 Mr. Rohit Bhasker 04 05 1 965 VicePresident P6DBM, PGDCA 27 yea$ 01.06.201 I 32.7 Lac Cheema Spintex Ltd.

5 Mr. Paruinder Singh 22 02 1968 Executive Vice-President ACA 26.5 yea$ 1 5.02.2003 16 Lac Trident Ltd

6 Mr Amitabh Singh Dagar 09.r'r.r 973 Ceneral Manager B.Tech 23 Years 27.O9 2003 23 Lac
Arihant SpinninB
Mills

Mr. Apjit Arora 27 05 1976 Asstriate Vice President C.A., LLB 1 6 Years 28.1 1 2005 21 Lac Avon Group

B Mr. Viiay Arora 02 03 1 970 Associate Vice President B.Com, LLB 23 yea$ 20 10.r998 18 Lac Anant Spinning Mills

9 Mr. Kuldeep Singla 13.12 1980 Chiel Financial Officer c.A I 5 Years 24.01.2005 '18 Lac
A4/S Y.K. Bhushan
& Associates

't0 Mr. Ayan Chakraborty 12 02 1970 Associate Vice-President
M.Tech in Textile
Technology

25 Years 19 09 2016 17 5 Lac Ginni Filaments Ltd

]m% 
|
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ANNEXURE.V

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAT RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31o March,2017

{Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014}

l. Registration & Other Details:

s.

No.
Particulars Details

) CIN L1 7 1 22P81 9BOPLCO04242

) Registration Date 20th August, 1980
iii) Name of the Company Vardhman Polytex Limited
iv) Catesorv/ Sub-Catesory of the Company Company Limited by shares / lndian Non {overnment Company
v) Address of the Registered office and contact details Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road, Ludhianal4'l-123, Punjab, lndia.
vi) Whether listed company Yes (NSE & BSE)

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar

and Transfer Agent, if any
Alankit Assignments Limited, 1Ell 3, Alankit Heights, Jhandewalan
Extn., New Delhi- 1 10055 Phone: 01 1- 4154006G63
Fax: 01 1- 4'1540064, E-mail: rta@alankit.com

l!. Principal Business Activities of the Company (All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated)

S.

No

Name and Description of main products /services NIC Code of the
producUservice

o/oto total turnover of the
company

1 Textiles 131 1 00%

lll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companiesr

s.
No

Name and Address of the
company

CIN/ CLN Holding /Subsidiary
/Associate

"/o ot
shares held

Applicable
section

F.M. Himmerle Textiles Limited
Vardhman Park, Chandigarh road,
Ludhiana-l 41 1 23

u 1 71 1 0P82006P1C02951 B Subsidiary
Company

81 .7 .lo 2(87\ [i\

F.M. Hdmmerle Verwaltungs
Cmbh, Austria

N.A. Subsidiary
Company

r 00.00 2 (87) (it

Vl. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of Total Equity)
A) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year
(As on 01.04.2017)

No. of shares held at the end of the year
(As on 31.03.2018)

% change
during

the yearDemat Physicals Total % of Total
Shares

Demat Physicals Total % of Total
Shares

A Promoters
1.) lndian
a) lndividual /HUF 6,38,650 0 6,38,650 2.86 6,38,650 0 6,38,650 2.86
b) Central Covt./ State
Covt. (s)

c) Banks /Fl
d) Any other (Specify)

e) Bodies corporate 1,27,66,002 0 1.27.66,OO2 57.27 1,27,66,O02 0 1,27,66,OO2 57.27
1t34,04,652 0 1,34,O4,652 60.1 35 1,34,O4,652 0 1,34,O4,652 60.1 35

(2) Foreign
a) NRls lndividuals
b) Covernment
c) lnstitutions
d) Foreign Portfolio
lnvestor
Sub -total (A)(2):.

Total Shareholding of
promoter (A)= (A) (1)

+(A) (2)

13,4O4,652 0 -1,34,04,652 60.13 1,34,O4,652 0 1,34,04,652 60.1 3

1.



Vardhman Polytex Limited

Category of
Shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year
(As on 01.04.2017)

No. of shares held at the end of the year
(As on 31.03.2018)

o/o change
during

the yearDemat Physicals Total % of Total
Shares

Demat Physicals Total "/o of Total
Shares

I lnstitutions
a) Mutual Funds 500 1 300 1 800 0.01 500 1 300 1 800 0.0r
b) Venture Capital
Funds

c) Alternate investment
Funds
d) Foreign venture
Capital
e) Foreign Portfolio
I nvestors

2,55,OO8 1,200 2,56,208 1.15 2,55,008 1,200 2,56,208 1.15

f) Banks /Fl 195 1,134 1,329 0.01 41 ,O40 1,034 42,074 0.20 0.19
g) lnsurance
Companies
h) Provident Funds/
Pension Funds

i) Anv Others (soecifu)

Sub-Total(B)(1) 2,55,703 3,634 2,59,337 1.16 2,96,548 3,634 3,00,182 1.35 0.19
2. Central
Covernment/ State

Covernment(s)/
President of lndia
Sub -total (B)(2)r

3. Non Institutions
A. lndividuals
i. lndividual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
up to Rs. 2 lakhs

41,00,831 3,43,850 44,44,681 19.94 6,446,791 3,35,046 67,81 ,837 30.42 10.48

ii. lndividual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 2

lakhs.

10,90,986 r 0,50,000 21 ,40,986 9.60 2,44,485 2,44,485 1..r0 (8.s0)

b) NBFCs registered
with RBI 1 ,100 1,100 0.01

c) Emplovee Trusts

d) Overseas
Depositories (holding
DRs) (balancine fisure)
e) Any Other (specify)

# CORPORATE BODY 20,05,918 4,603 20,10,521 9.O2 11,54,O53 4,403 11,58,456 5.20 (3.82)

0 Any Other (specify)

# NRI 29,280 400 29,680 0.13 91 ,775 400 92,175 0.41 0.28
g) Any Other (specify)

# CLEARINC
MEMBER

78,001 78,001 0.35 0.35

h) Any Other (specify)

# HUF
2,31 ,169 2,31 ,169 1.04 1.04

SubTotal (B)(3) 72,28,115 13,98,853 86,26,968 38.70 82,46,274 3,39,849 9,596,123 38.52 (0.18)

Total public
shareholding (B) =
(b) (1) +(b) (2) + (b)

(3)

74,83,818 14,02,487 gB,B6,3o5 39.85 85,42$22 3,43,383 gg,g6,3o5 39.86

C. Shares held by
custodian for CDRs &
ADRs

Crand total (A+B+C) 2,O8,8A,470 14,O2,487 2,22,90,9s7 100 2,19,47,474 3,43,383 2,22,90,957 100
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B) Shareholding of Promoter-

(i) Body Corporater

(ii) lndividualsr

C) Change in Promoters'Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

s.

No
Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of

the year
Shareholding at the end of year o/o change in

shareholding
during the

year
No. of
shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

Yo of Shares

Pledged /
encumbered

to total
shares

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of Shares

Pledged /
encumbered

to total
shares

1 Panchsheel Tex. Mfg. & Trdg. Co. (P)

Ltd.

4426917 19.86 19.86 4426917 19.86 19.86 0.00

2 Enakshi lnvestments (P) Ltd 3702s0 r.66 1.66 3 702 50 1.66 1.66 0.00
l Allepy lnvestment & Trading Co. (P)

Ltd.

95500 0.43 0.43 95s00 0.43 0.43 0.00

4 Cagan Mercantile Co. (P) Ltd. 1 63900 0.74 0.74 I 63900 0.74 0.74 0.00
5 Calgary lnvestment & Trading Co. (P)

Ltd.

67300 0.30 0.30 67300 0.30 0.10 0.00

6 Kent lnvestments (P) Ltd. 46950 0.21 0.21 46950 0.21 0.21 0.00
7 Liberw Mercantile Co. (P) Limited 1 20550 0.54 0.54 1 20550 0.54 0.54 0.00
o Pioneer Marcantile Co. (P) Ltd 49350 022 0.22 493s0 0.22 0.22 0.00
9 Ruby Mercantile Co. (P) Ltd. 1 53000 0.69 0.69 1 53000 0.69 0.69 0.00

10. Adesh lnvestment & Trading Co (P) Ltd. 35100 0.1 6 0.16 151 00 0.1 6 0.16 0.00
11 Boras lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd. 32860 0.1 5 0.1 s 32860 0.1 5 0.1 5 0.00
12 Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd 4362325 19.57 19.57 4362325 19.57 19.57 0.00
13 Nightnagle Dealcom (P) Ltd. 660000 2.96 2.96 660000 2.96 2,96 0.00

14 Altfort Merchants Private Ltd. 2 1 82000 9.79 2 1 82000 9.79 0.00
Total (A) 12766002 57.27 47.48 12766002 57.27 47.48 0.00

s.

No
Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of the

year
Shareholding at the end of year o/o change in

shareholding

during the
year

No. of
shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
company

% of Shares

Pledged /
encumberd

to total
shares

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of Shares

Pledged /
encumbered

to total
shares

1 Mr. Adish Oswal 420511 1.89 0.58 420511 1.89 0.58 0.00
2. Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal 127748 0.57 0,57 127748 0.57 0.57 0.00
3 Mrs. Maniu Oswal 52694 0.24 0.24 52694 0,24 0.24 0.00
4. Mrs. Rakhi Oswal 17820 0.08 0.08 17820 0.08 0.08 0.00
5 Mr. Abhinav Oswal 14307 0.06 0.06 14307 0.06 0.06 0.00
6. Ms. Aketa Oswal 5460 0.02 0.02 5460 0.02 0.02 0.00
7 Ashok Kumar & Sons (HUF) 110 0.00 0.00 110 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (B) 638650 2.86 1.55 538550 2.86 1.55 4.56
Total (A+ B) 13404652 60.1 3 49.03 13404652 60.1 3 49.03 0.00

s.

No.

Name Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % oftotal shares ofthe
c0mpany

No. of Shares o/o of total shares of the

Company
1 At the beginning of the year

NIL
2 At the end of the year
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(iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):-

Sr.
No.

Name Shareholding at the
beginning i.e.
01.o4.2017

Date lncrease/Decr
ease in

Shareholding

Reason Cummulative
Shareholding during the
year/ as on 31.03.2018

No. of
shares

o/o of total
shares of the

comDanv

No. of
Shares

"/" of total
shares of the

company
1 SCM lndia Private Limited 402203 1.8

31-Mar-18
No transaction during the

vear 402203 .1.8

2 Hypnos Fund Limited 1 88000 0.84
3'l-Mar-18

No transaction during the
year 1 88000 0.84

f Karvy Stock Broking Ltd. 107411 0.49 7-Apr-17 -3855 Transfer 1 03556 o.46

14-Apr-17 25012 Purchase 128s68 0.58
21-Apr-17 -13276 Transfer 1 1 5292 o.s2

28-Apr-17 2954 Purchase 118246 0.53
5-Mav-1 7 -6387 Transfer 1 

.l '1859 0.s0
12-Mav-17 -8208 Transfer 1 03651 o.46
19-May-17 6361 Purchase 110012 o.49

26-May-17 6558 Purchase 116570 o.52

2)un-17 16512 Purchase 1 33082 0.60

9)un-17 7267 Pu rchase 140349 0.63
16)un-17 -6417 Transfer 133932 0.60

23)un-17 -2546 Transfer r31386 0.s9

30-Jun-l 7 -3411 Transfer 127975 o.57
7)u117 -1 803 Transfer 126172 o.57

14-jul17 -255 Transfer 125917 0.56

21)u117 -349 Transfer 125s68 0.56
28-lul17 -2350 Transfer 123218 0.55
4-Aus-17 2132 Purchase 1 25350 0.56

11-AuH-17 -639 Transfer 12471'l 0.56

18-Aug-1 7 5517 Purchase 130228 0.s8

25-Aug-17 -9766 Transfer 120462 o.54
.l-Seo-1 

7 -2237 Transfer 118225 0.53

8-Seol 7 -2061 Transfer 116164 o.52

15-Ser1 7 -3353 Transfer 112811 0.51

22-Sev17 31 57 Purchase 1 1 5968 o.s2

29-SeV17 -2284 Transfer 113684 0.51

6-Oct-17 5830 Purchase 1 1951 4 0.54

2O-Oct-17 2376 Purchase 121890 0.55

27-Od-17 3856 Purchase 125746 0.56

31-Oct-l 7 71 71 Purchase 132917 0.60

3-Nov-1 7 -8287 Transfer 124630 0.s6

1 0-Nov-1 7 -1452 Transfer 123178 0.55

1 7-Nov-1 7 -2947 Transfer 120231 o.54

1-Dec-l 7 -9321 Transfer 1 10910 0.50

8-Dec-l 7 1 488 Purchase 112398 0.50

1 5-Dec-1 7 -4974 Purchase 107424 o.48

1 8-Dec-1 7 842 Purchase 108266 o.49

22-Dec-17 -969 Transfer 107297 0.48

29-Dec-17 969 Pu rchase 108266 o.49

5-lan-1 8 4826 Purchase 113092 0.51

1 9-lan-1 8 279 Transfer 112813 0.51

26Jan-1 8 1 647 Purchase 114460 0.51

2-Feb-1 8 -2336 Transfer 112124 0.s0

9-Fetr1 8 -4177 Transfer 107947 0.48
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Sr.
No.

Name Shareholding at the
beginning i.e.
01.04.2017

Date lncrease/Decr
ease in

Shareholding

Reason Cummulative
Shareholding during the
year/ as on 31.03.2018

No. of
shares

"/o of total
shares of the

company

No. of
Shares

o/" of total
shares of

the
comDany

1 6-Feb-l 8 -825 Tran sfer 107122 0.48

23-FeL18 1 303 Purchase 1 08425 0.49

2-Mar-18 67 Purchase 108492 0.49

9-Mar-18 1 099 Transfer 107393 0.48

16-Mar-18 5131 Purchase 112524 0.50

23-Mar-18 -4680 Transfer 107844 0.48

30-Mar-18 2642 Purchase 110486 0.50

31-Mar-18 1 1 0486 0.50
4 Master Capital Services Ltd. 68549 0.31 7-Apr-17 -43787 Transfer 66699 0.30

14-Apr17 2135 Purchase 68834 0.31

21-Apr-17 1772 Purchase 70606 o.32

28-Apr-17 -2155 Transfer 6845 1 0.31

5-May-17 -556 Transfer 67895 0.30

12-Mav-17 -39117 Transfer 28778 0.13

19-Mav-17 1250 Purchase 30028 0.1 3

26-Mav-17 2536 Pu rchase 32564 0..1 5

2-lun-17 1 7707 Purchase 50271 o.23
9)un-17 )7 54 Purchase 54025 0.24

16)un-17 1 391 Purchase 5541 6 o.25
23)un-17 -668 Transfer 54748 o.25

30-Jun-l 7 8660 Purchase 63408 0.28
17 7067

I t7 -33571

21 ul- I z- 1 0966

Purchase 70475 o.32

Transfer 36904 o.17

Purchase 47870 o.21

28)u117 Transfer 45092 o.20
4-Aus-17 13136 Pu rchase 58228 o.26

11-Aug-17 -2568 1 Transfer 32547 0.1 5

18-Aug-1 7 -4031 Tra nsfer 28516 0.1 3

25-Aus-17 2831 Purchase 31347 o.14
1-Serr1 7 -3730 Transfer 27617 o.12
2-Sev17 200 Purchase 27817 o.12
8-Sep-1 7 -690 Tra nsfer 27127 o.12

1 5-Sep-1 7 3731 Pu rchase 30858 0.14
22-Sev17 4082 Purchase 34940 0.16
29-Sev17 2BB Purchase 35228 0.16
6-Oct17 -3099 Transfer 32129 o.14

2O-Oct-l7 1 863 Purchase 33992 0.1 5

27-Oc1-17 -6968 Transfer 27024 o.12
3.1-Oct-1 7 4267 Transfer 22757 0.10
3-Nov-'l 7 -1 109 Transfer 21648 0.1 0

1 0-Nov-1 7 -1 363 Transfer 20285 0.09
.l 7-Nov-17 1"t64 Purchase 21449 0.10

1-Dec-1 7 27852 Purchase 4930.r o.22
8-Dec-1 7 -6197 Transfer 43104 0.1 9

1 5-Dec-1 7 -2827 Transfer 40277 0.1 8
1 8-Dec-1 7 -4731 Transfer 35546 0.1 6
22-Dec-17 5087 Purchase 40633 0.1 8
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Sr.

No.
Name Shareholding at the

beginning i.e,
0r.04.2017

Date lncrease/Decr
ease in

Shareholding

Reason Cummulative
Shareholding during the
year/ as on 31.03.2018

No. of
shares

Yo of total
shares of the

company

No. of
Shares

o/o of lotal
shares of the

company

29-Dec-17 -5187 Transfer 35446 0.1 6

3GDec-l 7 100 Purchase 35546 0.1 6

S-.lan-18 -3810 Transfer 3't736 0.14

1 9-Jan-1 B -2649 Transfer 29087 0.13

26Jan-1 B -699 Transfer 28388 0.13

2-Feb-.18 1 109 Purchase 29497 0.1 3

9-Feb-1 B -2099 Transfer 27398 0.12

1 6-Fetrl B 3050 Purchase 30448 0.14

23-Feb-1 B -1172 Transfer 29276 0.13

2-Mar-18 50355 Purchase 79631 0.36

9-Mar-18 -845 Transfer 78786 0.35

16-Mar-18 -1 069 Transfer 77717 0.35

23-Mar-18 1076 Purchase 78793 0.35

30-Mar-18 -954 Transfer 77839 0.35

31-Mar-18 77839 0.3s
5 fspire Emerging Fund 67008 0.3

3 l-Mar-l 8
No transaction during the

year 67008 0.30
6 Anita Carg 42369 0.1 9

31 -Mar-l B

No transaction during the
year

42369 0.19

7 Axis Bank Limited 0 12-Mav-17 5263 Purchase 5263 0.02

26-Mav-17 1 300 Purchase 6563 0.03

2)un-17 4883 Purchase 11446 0.05

9)un-17 1207 Purchase 12653 0.06

1 6-lun-1 7 -816 Transfer 1 1837 0.05

23-lun-17 -30 Tra nsfer 1 1807 0.05

30-Jun-1 7 -1 550 Transfer 10257 0.05

14-lul-17 -1 60 Transfer 10097 0.0s

21-)u117 -340 Transfer 9757 0.04

4-Aue-l7 -6704 Transfer 3053 0.01

11-Aue-l7 16049 Purchase 19102 0.09

1 B-Aus- l 7 3787 Purchase 22889 0.10

25-Aus-17 -379 Transfer 22510 0.10

1-Sep-] 7 -1 1 053 Transfer 11457 0.05

15-Seel 7 23703 Purchase 3s160 0.16

22-SeV17 1751 Purchase 3691 1 0.17

29-Sev17 -1 8203 Transfer 1 8708 0.08

Gocl-l7 11703 Purchase 3041 1 0.14

20-od-17 293 Purchase 30704 0..14

27-Oct-l7 3323 Purchase 34027 0.15

31-Oct-l 7 -5360 Transfer 28667 0.13

3-Nov-1 7 5500 Purchase 34167 0.15

1 0-Nov-1 7 1 600 Purchase 35767 0.16

1 7-Nov-1 7 -10707 Transfer 2s060 0.11

1-Dec-l 7 12203 Purchase 37263 0.17

B-Dec-l 7 -83 Transfer 3 7.r B0 0.17

1 8-Dec-1 7 -9521 Transfer 27659 0.12

0
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Sr.
No,

Name Shareholding at the
beginning i.e.
01.o4.2017

Date lncrease/Decr
ease in

Shareholding

Reason Cummulative
Shareholding during the
year/ as on 31.03.2018

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the

company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

22-Dec-17 9921 Purchase 3 7580 o.17

29-Dec-17 -9921 Transfer 276s9 o.12

5-Jan-1 8 27136 Purchase 54795 0.25
.l 

9-.lan-18 -5100 Transfer 49695 o.22

2-Feb-1 B -725 Transfer 48970 0.22
g-Feb-1 B -1135 Transfer 47835 o21

1 6-FeLr1 B -1440 Transfer 4639s 0.21

2-Mar-1 B -5506 Transfer 4OBB9 0.1 B

23-Mar- 18 7187 Purchase 48076 0.22

30-Mar-18 -7036 Transfer 41040 0.18

31-Mar-l8 41040 0.'18
8 Shuchi Carg 40258 0.18

31 -Mar-1 8
No transaction during the

year
40258 0.1 8

9 Stock Holding Corporation of
lndia Ltd - A/C NSE Derivatives

0 12-May-17 35000 Purchase 3 5000 0.1 6

14)u117 500 Purchase 35500 0.1 6

21-lul17 -500 Transfer 35000 0.16
.l l-Aug-l 7 30000 Purchase 65000 0.29

1-Dec-1 7 -26000 Transfer 39000 0.17

1 8-Dec-1 7 200 Purchase 39200 0.1 8

9-Feb-.lB 274 Purchase 39474 0. r8

2-Mar-18 -200 Transfer 39274 0.18

3GMar-18 -74 Transfer 39200 0.1 I
31-Mar-l8 39200 0.1 8

'10 Shri Parasram Holdings Pvr
Ltd.

10163 0.0s 7-Apr-17 -1230 Transfer 8933 0.04
14-Apr-17 -455 Transfer B47B 0.04

21-Apr-17 6567 Purchase 1 5045 0.o7

28-Apr-17 -4851 Transfer 10194 0.05
5-May-1 7 840 Purchase 1 1034 0.05

12-Mav-17 240 Purchase 1 1274 0.05
19-May-17 2285 Purchase 1 3559 0.06
26-May-17 430 Purchase 1 3989 0.06

2)un-17 3330 Purchase 17319 0.08
9)un-17 5465 Purchase 22784 0.1 0

161un-17 -3863 Transfer 18921 0.08
23-)un-17 7800 Purchase 26721 0.12
30-Jun-1 7 499 Purchase 27220 o.12

7)u117 2751 Purchase 29971 0.1 3

14)u117 1 5174 Purchase 451 45 0.20
21)u117 950 Purchase 4609s 0.21
28)ul-17 -3160 Transfer 42935 0.1 9

4-Aug-17 3780 Purchase 46715 o.21
1'l-Aue-17 51 00 Purchase 51815 0.23
18-Aug-17 4728 Purchase 56543 0.25
25-Aue-17 -1 3925 Transfer 42618 0.1 9

1 -Sep-1 7 -1 300 Transfer 41318 0.1 9

C
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Sr

No.
Name Shareholding at the

beginning i.e.
01.o4.2017

Date lncrease/Decr
ease in

Shareholding

Reason Cummulative
Shareholding during the
year/ as on 31.03.2018

No. of
shares

o/o of total
shares of the

company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the

company

8-Sepl 7 2935 Purchase 44253 0.20

15-Sep17 510 Purchase 44763 0.20

22-Sev17 r 833 Purchase 46596 0.21

29-Sey17 5577 Purchase 52173 0.23

6-Oct-17 '1400 Purchase 53573 0.24

20-Oct-17 221 Purchase 53794 0.24

27-Oct-17 -6675 Transfer 471't9 0.21

3 1-Oct- 1 7 4300 Purchase 51419 0.23

3-Nov-1 7 3980 Purchase 55399 0.25

1 0-Nov-1 7 7242 Purchase 62641 0.28

1 7-Nov-l 7 936 Purchase 63577 0.29

1-Dec-l 7 -1172 Transfer 62405 0.28

B-Dec-l 7 551 Purchase 62956 0.28

1 5-Dec-1 7 s0B9 Purchase 68045 0.31

1B-Dec-'l 7 9594 Purchase 77639 0.35

22-Dec-17 -4864 Transfer 72775 0.33

29-Dec-17 4864 Purchase 77639 0.35

5-lan-1 B 15764 Purchase 93403 0.42

1 9-Jan-1 B 3710 Purchase 97113 0.44

26Jan-1 B -1 400 Transfer 95713 0.43

2-Feb-1 B -33072 Transfer 62641 0.28

9-Fetr1 B -6079 Transfer 56562 0.25

16-Feh1B 1 1007 Purchase 67569 0.30

23-Feil18 1052 Purchase 68621 0.31

2-Mar-18 -77 Transfer 68544 0.31

9-Mar-18 63 Purchase 68607 0.31

16-Mar-18 -4313 Transfer 64294 0.29

23-Mar-18 -7825 Transfer 56469 0.2s

30-Mar- l 8 -1 9909 Transfer 36560 0.16

31-Mar-1 B 36560 0.1 6

11 Vineet Sood & Sons HUF 725000 3.25 28-Apr-l7 -725000 Transfer 0 0.00

31-Mar-]8 0 0.00

12 Suresh Kumar Jain 325000 1.46 '12-May-17 -325000 Transfer 0 0.00

31-Mar-18 0 0.00

t3 lL and FS Securities Services

Limited
300600 1.35 7-Apr-|7 s00 Purchase 301 100 1.35

S-May-17 500 Purchase 301 600 1.35
'12-May-17 2900 Purchase 304500 1.37

19-May-1 7 500 Purchase 305000 1.37

26-May-17 -1 99500 Transfer 1 05500 0.47

2)un-17 -98 1 50 Transfer 7350 0.03

9Jun-1 7 12700 Purchase 20050 0.09

1 6-Jun-1 7 5200 Purchase 25250 0.11

23)un-17 677 Purchase 25927 0.12

30-Jun-l 7 -1 650 Transfer 24277 0.11

7-lul-17 -3 700 Transfer 20577 0.09
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Sr.

No.
Name Shareholding at the

beginning i.e.
01.04.2017

Date Increase/Decr
ease in

Shareholding

Reason Cummulative Shareholding
during the year/ as on

31.03.2018

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the

companv

No. of
Shares

"/o of total
shares of the

company

14)u117 -1750 Transfer 18827 0.08

21)u117 -1 00 Transfer 18727 0.08

2\-lul17 -1634 Transfer 17093 0.08

1 1-Aue-1 7 -1700 Transfer 1 5393 0.07

18-Aug-1 7 -1 038 Transfer 1 4355 0.06

25-Aus-'!7 682 Purchase 15037 0.07

1 -Sep-l 7 -1 00 Transfer 14937 0.o7

1 5-Sep-1 7 -1100 Transfer 11837 0.06

22-Sev17 -600 Transfer 13237 0.06

29-Seo-'17 -2225 Transfer 11012 0.0s

6-Oct-17 25 Purchase 1 1037 0.05

20-Oc1-17 -1 00 Transfer 10937 0.05

3-Nov-1 7 -2000 Transfer 8937 0.04

1 7-Nov-1 7 4976 Purchase 13913 0.06

1-Dec-1 7 1 7000 Purchase 3091 3 o.14

8-Dec-1 7 Bs3 Purchase 31766 0.14

15-Dec-'17 1 100 Purchase 32866 0.1 5

1 B-Dec-1 7 -2825 Transfer 30041 0.1 3

22-Dec-'17 2600 Purchase 32641 0.15

29-Dec-17 -2600 Transfer 30041 0.'l 3

5-lan-1 8 -17379 Transfer 12662 0.06

1 9-lan-1 B 1 000 Purchase 13662 0.06

26Jan-1 B 1 000 Purchase 14662 0.07

9-Mar-18 -1 000 Transfer 13662 0.06

16-Mar-18 100 Purchase 13762 0.06

23-Mar-18 1200 Purchase 14962 0.07

30-Mar-18 201 Purchase 15163 0.07

31-Mar-l B 15163 0.07
14 Surinder Kumar Coyal 1 50000 0.67 28-Aor-17 -23640 Transfer 126360 0.57

26-May-17 -65 1 38 Transfer 61222 0.27

2)un-17 -61222 Transfer o 0.00

31-Mar-18 0 0.00
15 Sanjeev Kumar Coyal

.r 
s0000 o.67 7-Apr-|7 -1 50000 Transfer 0 0.00

31-Mar-l8 0 0.00
16 Anil Kumar Goyal 1 50000 0.67 7-Apr-l7 -1 50000 Transfer 0 0.00

3.1-Mar-18 0 0.00
'17 Manav Coyal 1 50000 0.67 2B-Aor-17 -l 50000 Transfer 0 0.00

31-Mar-18 0 0.00
1B Real Value lnfo Solutions

Private Limited

.r 
32000 0.59 8-Sepl 7 r1500 Purchase 1 43s00 0.64

29-Sev17 -71864 Transfer 71636 o.32

1 5-Nov-1 7 43038 Purchase 114674 0.51

29-Dec-17 -3200 Transfer 11 1 474 0.s0
g-Feb-1 B -r 5000 Transfer 96474 0.43

.lGFeb-18 -68300 Transfer 28174 0.1 3

23-Feb-1 8 0 Transfer 0 0.00

31-Mar-l8 0 0.00
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

(V) lndebtedness:lndebtednessoftheCompanyincludinginterestoutstanding/accruedbutnotdueforpayment

(vi) Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time Directors and /or Manager:

(t in Lakh)

(in {)

s.

No
Name Shareholding Date lncrease/

Decrease in
shareholding

Reason Cumulative Shareholding
during the year (01-0&17

to 31-03-18)

No. of shares at
the beginning
(01.04.1 7)/end

of the year
(31.03.18)

9o of total
shares of

the
company

No. of Shares Yo of total
shares of

the
Company

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal
(Chairman and Managing

Director)

420511 1.87 31-Mar-l8 No transaction during the year 4205"t1 1.87

2 Mr. Adish Oswal
(Managing Director
Business & Corporate
Affairs)

't27748 0.57 31-Mar-1 8 No transaction during the year 127748 0,57

3 Mr. Sushil Sharma
(Company Secretary; upto

5'h lulv. 201 7)

750 0.00 31-Mar-l 8 No transaction during the year 750 0.00

Particulars Secured Loans

excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total lndebtedness

lndebtedness at the besinnins of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 20,482.22 1,067.20 0.00 21,549.42

ii) lnterest due but not paid 5.00 0.00 0.00 5.00

iii) lnterest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (i+ii+iii) 20,487.22 1,067.20 0 21,554.42

Change in lndebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

+ Reduction 574.40 221.47 0.00 795.87

Net Change 2,177.48 0.00 2,032.26

lndebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount
19,912.82 845.73 0.00 20,758.55

ii) lnterest due but not paid 2,751 .BB 76.25 2,828.13

iii) lnterest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (i+ ii+ iii) 22,664.7 921.98 0 23,586.68

s.
No

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MDMTD/Manager Total
AmountMr. Ashok Kumar

Oswal (CMD)
Mr. Adish

Oswal (MD)
Mr. Ashok Kumar

Goyal (WTD)
,l

Cross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1\ of
the lncome Tax Act, 1961

1,95,88,873 23,2"1,873 44,21 ,135 2,63,31,881

b) Value of perquisites uls 1712) lncomeTax Act,196l 4,93,872 28,872 1,20,600 6,43,344

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) lrcome -
Tax Act ,1 961

2 Stock option
3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission
- As % of profit
- Others, specify

5 Others, please Specify 4,79,160 4,79,162 14,13,700 23.72.O22

Total (A) 2,05,61,905 2g,2g,go7 59,55,435 2,93,47,247

Ceiling as per the Act

3

l.

-145.22



Vardhman Polytex Limited

B. Remuneration to other directors

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager /WTD

Vll, Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:
There is no penalty/punishment/compounding of offences levied against company, its directors and officers in default.

(in T)

in t)

s.

No.
Name of Directors Particulars of Remuneration Commission Others, please

specify
Total

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

1 lndependent directors

Late Mr. Aiay Chaudhry 76,500 76,s00
Dr. B.S. Bhatia 76,500 76,500
Mr. M.D. Kanitkar 29,000 29,000
Mr. Vishal Oswal (upto 27.07.2017) 7,500 7,500
Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobti 7,500 7,500
Mr. Harpal Singh

Ms. Aarti Rawat

Sub Total (1 ) 1,97,000 1,97,000
2. Non- lndependent Director

Mrs. Maniu Oswal 30,000 30,000
Sub- total (2) 30,000 30,000
Total (B) 2,27,000 2,27,000
Total managerial remuneration

Company Secretary cro
s.

No
Particulars of remuneration

Mr. Sushil Sharma Mr. Pankai Agarwal Mr. Kuldeep Sinsla

Total

1 Cross salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in

section 1 7(1) of the lncome Tax Act, l 96.l

3,65,948 2,90,470 1 3,51 ,100 20,07,518

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) lncome
Tax Act,1 961

5,53 1 10,850 57,516 73,897

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat EquiW

4 Commission
- As o/o of profit
- Others, specify

5 Others, Please Specifu 4,05,131 67,580 2,78,364 20,81 ,415
Total 7,76,610 3,68,900 15,86,980 41,62,830

Type Section of The
Companies Act

Brief
Description

Details of
penalty/punishmenU

compounding fees imposed

Authority
(RD/NCLT/COURT)

Appeal
made, if any
(give details)

A. Company

N.A.

Penalty
Punishment
Comooundine
B. Directors
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. Others officers in default
Penalty
Punishment
Compoundi

Date : 14'h August, 2018
Place: ludhiana

For and on behalf of the Board

sd/-
(Ashok Kumar Oswal)

Chairman and Managing Director
(DlN-00009403)
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Corporate governance refers to a combination of laws, regulations, procedures, implicit rules and good corporate practices that ensure that a

Company meets its obligations to optimize shareholders' value and fulfill its responsibilities to the community, customers, employees,

Government and other segments of society. Corporate Covernance assumes a great deal of importance in the business life of the Company. The

Company's goal is to find creative and productive ways of delighting its stakeholders, i.e. investors, customers & associates etc. while fulfilling the

role of a responsible corporate representative commifted to best practices. This section besides being in compliance of the mandatory SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 (hereinafter referred as "SEBI (LODR) Regulations') gives an insight into the process

of functioning of the Company.

Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company has executed fresh Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges. The Company is in

compliance with the requirements stipulated under erstwhile Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements and regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V

and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 201 5, as applicable, with regard to corporate Sovernance.

1. COMPANY'SPHILOSOPHY

F Totalcustomerdelight

D Competing with the best

F Total quality people

F Productqualityawayoflife

F Continued improvementthrough innovation & creativity

> StateofArtTechnologywith ultramodern R&Dfacilities

) RespectofeveryVPLParivarMember

F Faith in individual potential and respectfor human values

F Achievingexcellencethroughcultureintegration

D Accepting change as a way of life

F Act as responsible corporate citizen and d ischarge ou r social responsibilities.

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS

a) Composition:

The Board consists of six Directors out of which two are Executive Directors and four are Non-Executive Directors including one

woman director. The half of the Board comprises of lndependent Directors. The Board of the Company is composed of eminent

individuals from diverse fields. However, it is hereby informed that Mr. Aiay Chaudhry ceased to be director of the company w.e.f.

16.03.2018 due to his sudden demise. Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal, Executive Director, Mr. M.D. Kanitkar and Dr. B.S. Bhatia,

lndependent Directors have resigned from the company w.e.f. 31.03.201 7,19.04.2018 and 23.04.2018 respectively due to their pre'

occupation.

b) Board Meetings

During the financial year under review, Six Board Meetings were held on 29.05.201 7,12.08.2017,13.09.2017,24.11.2017,
13.12.2O17 and 14.O2.2O17 and the gap between tvvo consecutive meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty days.

Details of composition of the board, Category of director, Shareholding details, Number of board meeting attended, Attendance at last

ACM, Total number of directorship held, Chairpersonship & Membership of the Committees are as given below:

Name of Director Category

of Director
Share

holding
in the

Company

No. of Board

Meeting

attended

Attendance at
last AGM held

on 30.09.201 7

Total No. of
Directorship held

/ Public ltd Co.t

Total No. of Committee^

Chairpersonship Membership

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal
(DlN:00009403)

Chairman &

Managing Director/
Promoter

1,27,748 616 Yes 1612 1

Mr. Adish Oswal
(DlN: 00009710)^^

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate

Affairs)/ Promoter

4,20,511 616 Yes 711 1

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal*
(DlN:06676556)

Executive Director NIL 616 Yes 111
,1

Mr. Ajay Chaudhry* *

(DlN:00055733)
Non-Executive

lndependent Director

155 616 Yes 313
,l

Dr. B. S. Bhatia***
(DlN:0055'1715)

Non-Executive

lndependent Director
NIL 616 No 211 1

I 28 
I
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Mr. M. D. Kanitkar+**+
(DlN:00551803)

Non-Executive

lndependent Director

NIL 216 No 111 1

Mr. Vishal Oswal*****
(DlN: 00002678)

Non-Executive

lndependent Director

NIL 116 No 713

Mrs. Manju Oswal
(DlN:00009449)&

Non-Executive

Director/ Promoter

52,694 416 Yes 1311

Mr. Damanbir Singh '
Sobti#
(DlN:02312051)

Non-Executive

lndependent

Director

116 No 211

Mr. Harpal Singh##
(DlN:06932062)

Non-Executive

lndependent Director

NIL No 411

Ms. Aarti Rawat###
(DlN:07156525)

Non-Executive

lndependent Director

NIL No 212

$ The Directorship held by directors includes alternate directorships butdoesn't include directorship in foreign company.
^ Committees for this purpose include only AuditCommittee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of all public limited companies.
^^ Mr. Adish Oswal hasbeen appointed as ManagingDirector (Business &Coryorate Affairs)w.e.f.24.11.2017.
* Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal has resigned from the direclorship of the company w.e.f . 31 .0i.201 B.
** Mn Ajay Chaudhry ceased to be directot due to his sudden demise on 16.03.2018.
* + * Dt. B. S. Bhatia has resigned from the directorship of the company w.e.f . 23.04.20 t B.
++++ Mr. M. D. Kanitkar has resigned f rom the direaorship of the company w.e.f . 19.04.2018.
*++++ Mr.Vishal Oswal has resigned from the directorship of the company w.e.f . 27.07.2017.
& Mrs. Manju Oswal has been appointed as non-executive director of the company w.e.f . 12.08.2017.
# Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobtihasbeen appointed as an independentdirectotof thecompanyw.e.f. 18.t 1.2017.

## Mr. Harpal Singh has been appointed as an independent director of the company w.e.f . 24.05.201 8.

### Ms. AartiRawathasbeen appointed as an independentdirector of thecompanyw.e.f.30.O5.2O18.

Notes:

1 . None of the directors on the board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. Further, none of them is a member of more than ten
committees or chairperson of more than fivecommiftees acrossa/lthepubliccompanies inwhich he is a director.

2. There is no inter-se relationship between the directors except Mr. Adish Oswal being son of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal, Mrs. Maniu Oswal being
wifeof Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswaland motherof Mr. Adish Oswal.

c) Meetings Procedure

The Company holds Board Meetings regularly. The directors are informed about the venue, date and time of meeting in advance in
writing at their registered address/e-mail. Detailed agenda papers along with explanatory statements are circulated to the directors in
advance. The Board has complete access to all information with the Company. All information stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations is
regularly provided to the Board as a part of agenda papers along with the action taken report on the mafters previously
approved/discussed. Directors actively participate in the Board Meetings and contribute significantly by expressing their views,
opinions and suggestions. Video Conferencing facilities are used to facilitate directors, who are traveling or present at other locations to
participate in the meeting. Decisions are taken after proper and thorough discussion. The Board periodically reviews the compliance
report of all laws applicable to the Company.

d) Training / Familiarisation programmes for Board Members

The Board members are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal policies enable them to familiarize with
the Company's procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Committee Meetings, on business and
performance updates of the Company, global business environment, business strategy and risks involved. Updates on relevant
statutory changes and landmark judicial pronouncements encompassing important laws are regularly circulated to the Directors. The
details of such familiarization programmes for lndependent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at
http://oswalgroup.com/investor ltdf/corporate-policylF amiliarization-Prcgrammes-for-lndependent-Dircctors.pdf

e) Remuneration of Directors

i) Executive Directors: The Company pays remuneration to Chairman & Managing Director, Managing Director and Executive
Directors as approved bythe Board of Directors and Members of the Company.

ii) Non-Executive Directors: Non-Executive Directors have not been paid any remuneration except sitting fees for aftending Board
Meeting @ {7,500/- per meetingand for the Committees Meeting @ Rs. 3,500/- per meeting.

NIL
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Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors during the year: ({ in Lakh)

Name Designation Salary Allowances &
Other

Perquisites

Contribution to
Provident &
other Funds

Sitting
Fee

Total
Remuneration

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal Chairman & Managing
Director

22.66 1.50 1.92 NA 26.08

Mr. Adish Oswal Managing Director (Business

& Corporate Affairs)
22.46 1.44 1.92 NA 25.82

Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal
(upto 31 .03.201 7)

Executive Director 44.86 5.87 s.98 NA 56.70

Mrs. Manju Oswal (w.e.f,

12.08.2017)
Non- Executive Norr
Independent Director

030 0.30

Mr. Vishal Oswal (upto

27.07.2017')
Non- Executive lndependent
Director

0.08 0.08

Mr. Ajay Chaudhry
(upto 1 6.03.2018)

0.77 0.77

Dr. B. S. Bhatia (upto

23.04.2018\
Non- Executive lndependent
Director

0.77 0.77

Mr. M. D. Kanitkar
(upto .19.04.2018)

Non- Executive Independent
Director

o29 0.29

Mr. Damanbir Singh Sobti
(w.e.f. 18.11.2017)

Non- Executive lndependent
Director

0.30 0.30

Mr. Harpal Singh
(w.e.f. 24.05.2018)

Non- Executive lndependent
Director

Ms. Aarti Rawat
(w.e.f. 30.05.2018)

Non- Executive lndependent
Director

0 lndependentDirectors

lndependent directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The

maximum tenure of the independent directors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act"). All the lndependent Directors

have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations

and Section 1 49(6) ofthe Companies Act, 201 3.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the independentdireclors are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year, a separate meeting of the independent directors was held on 14.02.2018 inter-alia to review the performance of non-

independentdirectors and the board as a whole.

3. COMMITTEESOFTHEBOARD

a) AuditCommittee

The Company has an Audit Committee in terms of Section 177 ol the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 20'l 5 which comprises three lndependent Directors i.e. Mr. Ajay Chaudhry, Mr. M. D. Kanitkar and Dr' B. S' Bhatia. Mr.

Ajay Chaudhry is the Chairman of the committee and the Company secretary acts as the secretary of the Committee' statutory

Auditors, lnternal Auditors & Head of Corporate Finance Department are the permanent invitees to the Committee. The terms of

reference of the Audit Committee is based on the role of the Audit Commiftee as mentioned in Section 177 of the Companies Act,2013

and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Committee met Five times during the year o n 29.05.2017 , 12.o8.2O17 , 13.o9.2017 , 13.12.2017 and 14.o2.2o18. Attendance of

the members of the Committee is given below:

Members Category Meetings
Attended

Mr. Aiay Chaudhry Non-Executive lndependent Director 5

Dr. B. S. Bhatia Non-Executive lndependent Director 5

Mr. M. D. Kanitkar Non-Executive lndependent Director 2

Non- Executive lndependent
Director

30
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Note.- Ifie composition of the Audit Commiltee was changed and with effecl from 28.05.2018 the below mentioned directors form a

part of the committee:

Members Category

Mrs. Manju Oswal Non-Executive No*lndependent Dircclor
Mr. Damanbir Singh Sohti Non-Executive lndependent Director
Mr. Harpal Singh Non-Executive lndependent Dircctor

b) Stakeholders'RelationshipCommittee
The Com pany has a Stakeholders' Relationsh ip Com m iftee to look into the redressal of stakeholders complaints on various issues. The

Committee comprised of Mr. Ajay Chaudhry, Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal and Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal. Mr. Ajay Chaudhry is the
Chairman of the Committee. The composition of the committee was changed and with effect from 28.05.201 B the below mentioned
di rectors fo r m a part of the com m ittee :

Members Category
Mrs. Manju Oswal Non'Executive Director
Ml Ashok Kumar Oswal Chairman & Managing Direclor
Mn Adish Oswal Managing Director (Eusiness & Corporate Affairs)

During the financial year 201 7-18, the Company received Nil complaints which were relating to dividend, interest, redemption and
transfer, non receipt of Annual Report etc. The Company has duly addressed all the complaints and no complaint is pending.

Mr. Pankaj Agarwal, Company Secretary, is Compliance Officer of the Company, may be contacted at 0161-6629888 and fax at 0161-
6629988. As per Regulation 6 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the designated E-mail ld for the purpose of registering
complaints/queries of investors is: secretarial@vpl.in

c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company has Nomination & Remuneration Commiftee in terms of Section 1 78 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is empowered to decide, review and approve the remuneration packages including pension
rights and compensation payments of Directors, KMP & other employees as per remuneration policy of the Company. The committee
comprised of three Non-executive Directors i.e. Mr. Ajay Chaudhry (Chairman), Mr. M.D. Kanitkar and Dr. B.S. Bhatia as members.

The composition of the committee was changed and with effect from 28.05.2018 the below mentioned directors form a pan of the
commiftee:

Mernbers Category
Mr. Damanbir Singh So6fi Non-Executive lndependent Direclor
Mr. Harpal Singh Non-Executive lndependent DirecTor
Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal Chairman of Board & Managing DirecTor
Mrs. Manju Oswal Non-Executive Non-lndependent DirecTor

The commiftee thrice once during the year on 12.08.2O17, 13.09.2017 and 24.11.2017 and requisite quorum was present at the
meetinSs.

The selection and remuneration criteria of directors, senior management personnel and per{ormance evaluation of
directors/board/committee are defined in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy which forms part of the Annual Report.

4. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company's Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel (SMP) of the Company.
The Code of Conduct is available at Company's website. All Board Members & SMP have given their affirmations of compliance with the
Code. Adeclaration to this effectsigned by Chairman & Managing Director is enclosed and forms part of the Annual Report.

5. RISKMANACEMENT

The Company has adopted a well defined procedure for risk management. The Risk Management Policy of the Company provides
procedures for identification and mitigation of internal as well as external risks of the Company. The Company is having a Risk Management
Committee consisting of directors and senior management functionaries within the organization. The Commiftee assesses the risks in
various functional areas of the organization and defines the steps to minimize/mitigate those risks.

6. SUBSIDIARYCOMPANIES

The Audit Committee reviews the significant issues including financial statements pertaining to subsidiary companies. The minutes of the
subsidiary companies are placed before the Board of Directors of the Company and aftention of the Directors is drawn to significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies. The performance of its subsidiaries is also reviewed by the Board
periodically. The Company does not have any material non-listed lndian subsidiary company. The Company has a policy for determining
'material subsidiaries' which is disclosed on its website at the following link:

7. SHAREHOTDERS

a) Details of Directors seekingappointment/reappointment

The brief profile of the directors being appointed/re-appointed is provided in the Notice of convening the Annual Ceneral Meeting,
which forms part of the Corporate Covernance Report.
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b) PreviousAnnualGeneralMeetings

The detailof lastthree Annual Ceneral Meetings (ACM) is given as follows:-

Meeting Day, date & time of the meeting Venue No. of Special
Resolutions

37th ACM Friday, 28'h September, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. Regd. Office:

Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,
Ludhiana - 141 123

NIL

36th ACM Thursday. 31 st August, 2017 at .l 
1 :00 a.m. Regd. Office:

Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,
Ludhiana - 14-l 123

NIL

35th ACM Tuesday, 29th September, 2015 ar l 1 :00 a.m. Regd. Office:

Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,
Ludhiana - 141 123

NIL

Postal BallotrDuring the year 201 7-1 8, the Company has not passed any resolution through postal ballot.

c) Means of Communication

The Company communicates with the shareholders at large through its Annual Reports, placing the information on Company's
website, publication of financial results, press releases in leading newspapers and by filing various reports and returns with the statutory
bodies like Stock Exchanges, the Registrar of Companies and website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The financial results are
published in prominent daily newspapers viz. Business Standard, Economic Times and Desh Sewak (Punjabi).

The financial results, annual report and shareholding pattern of the Company are also available on the Company's website viz.
www.vpl.in

8. DTSCLOSURES

a) Related Party Transactions: All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm's length basis
and in the ordinary course of business. All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for its approval. The
Audit Committee has granted omnibus approval for Related Party transactions as per the provisions and restrictions contained in the
SEBI Listing Regulations. There was no material/significant transaction with the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or
relatives etc. that have any potential conflict with interest of the Company at large read with details of transactions as disclosed in Notes
on Accounts annexed in the Balance Sheet as per Accounting Standard (AS) -18. The Board has approved a policy for related party
transactions which has been uploaded on the Company's website atthe following link:

b) Non-compliances/ Penalties: There has not been any non-compliance made by the Company in respect of which penalties or strictures
were imposed by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority during the last three years.

c) Vigil MechanismAilhistle Blower Policy: The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a

mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy wherein the
employees are free to report violation of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to their immediate supervisor or such other
person as may be notified by the management to the workgroups. The confidentiality of person reporting violation is maintained and
he is not subjected to any discriminatory practice. No person has been denied access to the chairman of Audit Committee. The vigil
mechanism policy is available at Company's website.

d) Mandatory/ Discretionary requirements: All mandatory requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations/Corporate Covernance clause has

been complied with duringthe year.

The Company has also implemented discretionary requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations regarding direct report by internalauditor
to Audit committee.

9. CENERATSHAREHOLDERSINFORMAT!ON

l) 37th Annual General Meeting

Date : Monday, 24" September,2018

Time : 1 1:00A.M.

Venue : Regd.Office:VardhmanPark,ChandigarhRoad,Ludhiana - 14-1123

!!) FinancialYear : 1oApril,2017to31oMarch,20t8

I I l) Financial Calendar for 201 8-1 9 (Tentative)

First Quarter Results August, 201 8

Second Quarter Results November, 2018

Third Quarter Results February, 2019

Annual Results May, 2019
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lU Dividend Payment date: - Not Applicable
V) ListingofSecurities

Sr

No.
Description Stock Exchange Stock Code

Equity Shares BSE Limited
Phiroze leejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001

514175

The National Stock Exchange of lndia Ltd. (NSE)

"Exchange Plaza", Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai4OO 051
VARDMNPOLY

2. Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds (FCCBs)

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd.
2, Shenton Way, # 19-00, SCX Centre 'l Singapore 068804

The Company has duly paid the listing fees to BSE and NSE fortheyear 2O17.:tB.
Vl) StockMarketData

The month-wise highest, lowest and closing stock prices vis-A-vis BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty during the financial year 20.t 7-.18 are given
belowi

Financial Year
2O17-18 (Month)

VPI Share Price at BSE BSE Sensex VPL Share Price at NSE NSE Nitty

Hieh Low Close Hish Low Close High Low Close High Low Close

April 79.8 68.45 73.35 301 84 29241 29919 79.35 68.3 73.65 9367 9075 9304
May 80.85 57.05 60.25 31255 29804 31146 81 58.5 60.10 9650 9270 9621

.lune 6't .s5 52.2 s3.35 31523 3068 1 30922 61.9 53 53.5 9709 9449 9521

lulv 56.9 50 50.05 32673 31017 32515 56.2 49.75 49.95 101 15 9544 10077

August 49.9 37 44.15 32686 31128 31730 50.25 37 43.95 10138 9686 991 B

September 44.75 34.15 34.95 32524 31082 31284 45 34.1 35.05 10179 9688 9789
October 41 30.0s 34.55 33340 31440 33213 40.8 31 34.7 1 0384 983 1 1 0335

November 38.95 32.25 35.85 33866 32684 33149 38.65 32.6 35.7 1 0490 1 0094 10227

December 38.5 33.15 36.7 341 38 32565 34057 37.8 33.s5 36.65 10552 1 0033 10531

January 41.9 33.r 5 33.25 36444 33703 35965 42.1 JJ 33.35 11172 1 0405 11028

February 34.95 22.4 22.95 36257 33483 34184 34.5 22.6 22.95 11117 10276 1 0493

March 28 17.85 18.25 34279 32484 32969 25.35 17.6 17.85 1 0525 9952 101 14

Vll) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA)

lws Alankit Assignments Limited
(Unit: Vardhman Polytex Limited)
1 Ul 3, Alankit Heights, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-t I O 055
Telephone No. : 01 1 42541 234, 23541 234, Fax No. 0t 1 41 54347 4
E-mail: rta@alankit.com, Web Site: www.alankit.com

Vlll) Share Transfer System

The Company has authorised RTA for transfer/transmission/dematerialization/rematerialization etc. who attend the formalities related
thereto on an average once in a week. A status report, ofvalid physical transferVtransmission etc and objectionable cases, received
from RTA is placed before the board ofdirectors periodical Iy. The share certificates are returned /dispatchei to the shareholders by RTA
after necessary endorsements normally within l5 days from the date of receipt. The delays, if any, are mostly due to notice given to
seller for confirmation in case of difference in signatures and/or non receipt of copy of PAN.

!n DematerializationofShares
The shares of the Company are traded on the Stock Exchanges compulsorily in demat form. The lnternational Securities ldentification
N umber (lSlN) for equity shares is lNE835A01 011 . 98.46% of the paid up equity share capital comprising 2,1g,47 ,474 shares were
dematerialized as on 31st March, 2018.

X) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31o March, 2018

Range Shares
(No. of shares) Numbers o/o?;p;€ Numbers o/oiil$E

Upto - 5OO 15,436 44.29 23,40,891 10.50
501 - 1000 1,497 8.1 I 't2,40,236 s.56
1001 - 5000 1,173 6.41 25,44,'t 11 11.41
5001 - 10000 127 o.69 9,22,394 4.14.loo01 - 50000 61 o.33 12,41 ,576 5.57
500O1 & Above 19 o.0r 't,40,o1 ,749 62.81

Total 18,31 3 'to0.00 2,22,9O,957 100.o0

1.

Shareho -irs
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xl) ShareholdingPatternoftheCompany

Sr.
No.

Category of the shareholders As on 31't March, 2O18
No. of Shares o/oiIH€

1 Promoters/Promoter C rouP 1,34,O4,652 60.13

2 Mutual Funds & UTI 1,800 0.01

Banks, Financial lnstitutions, lnsurance Co, 42,174 o.'t 9

4. Bodies Corporate 11,58,456 5.20

5 lndian Public 70,26,322 31 .52

6. NRls, OCBs, Flls 3,48,383 1.56

7 other (HUF, Clearing members etc.) 3,O9,170 1.39

Total 2,22,9O,957 100.00

Xll) Outstanding GDRs/ADRsArVarrants

There are no outstanding CDRsi ADRs/ Convertible Warrants. However, the Company is having outstanding 2% unsecured Foreign

CurrencyConvertibleBonds(FCCBs)fortheprincipal amountof USD 1.1 million.

Xlll) Commodity Price RisldForeign Currency Risk/Hedging Activities

Please refer point 3(d) of the Board's Report forthe same'

XIV) Plant/Unit Locations

. Vardhman Polytex Limited , . Vardhman Polytex Limited (Spinning and Dyeing division)

Badal Road, D-29511, PhaseVlll, Focal Point,

Bathinda-l5l 005. Ludhiana-l4l 010

. Vardhman Polytex Limited,
Village Nangal Nihla/Upperla,
Swarghat Road,
Nalagarh -1 74 101(HP)

Amkryon lnternational,
D- 295h, Phase Vlll, Focal Point,
Ludhiana-l41 0.10

XV) Addressforcorrespondence

Shareholders should address their correspondence to the Company's Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA) at the address mentioned in

point Vll.

Shareholders may also contact Mr. Pankaj Agarwal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the Registered Office of the

Company atVardhman Park, Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana -141 123.

Tel : 01 61 -6629888, Fax: 01 6.1 -6629988

E-mai I : secretarial@vpl.in

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective Depository Participants

(DP)'

XVI) Unpaid/Unclaimed Divided

The unpaid/unclaimed dividend upto the financial year 2OO7-2OOB has been transferred to lnvestor Education and Protection Fund

(IEPF) of the Central Covernment and there is no unclaimed dividend pending with the Company.

10. AUDITOR'SCERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE

Certificate from the Statutory Auditors on compliance is given in this Annual Report.

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OI CONDUCT

The Company has adopted the Code ofConduct for al I Board members and senior management personnel ofthe Company.

It is hereby affirmed that all the Directors and Senior Management personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct and have given a

confirmation in this regard' 
For and on behalf of the Board

Date : 14'n August, 2018
Place: Ludhiana

sd/-
(Ashok Kumar Oswal)

Chairman and Managing Director
(DlN-00009403)

3.
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CERTIFICATE OF CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OTFICER

We have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statementforthe yearended 31'' March,2018 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be

misleading.

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3) No transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company's Code of
Conduct.

Further, we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated

the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors

and the Audit Committee:

a) deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
purpose to take to rectify these deficiencies;

b) significantchanges in internal control overfinancial reportingduringtheyear;

c) sign ificant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been d isclosed in the notes to the financial

statements; and

d) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an

employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system overfinancial reporting.

sd/- sd/-

Date : 14s August, 201 8 Kuldeep Singla Ashok Kumar Oswal

Place: Ludhiana Chief Financial Officer Chairman and Managing Director
(DrN-00009403)

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE FROM AUDITORS

To The Members of
Vardhman Polytex Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Covernance by Vardhman Polytex Limited ("the Company") forthe year ended 31''

March, 201 8, as stipulated in Regulations 17-27 , clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and

Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 ('Listing Regulations') pursuant to the Listing

Agreement of the Company with Stock exchanges.

Management's Responsibility for Compliance with the Conditions of Listing Regulations

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and

implementationthereof,adoptedbytheCompanyforensuringthecomplianceoftheconditionsofCorporateCovernance. ltisneitheranaudit
noran expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Auditors' Responsibility

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Cuidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) 1 , Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial lnformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services

Engagements.

Opinion
ln our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the

conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulatd in the above.mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply with the

requirement ofthe Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may

come without our priorconsent in writing.
For ROMESH K AGGARWAL & ASSOC]ATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00071 1N

Place: Ludhiana
Dated: 30s May, 2018

sd/-
Ruchir Singla

Partner
Membership no.519347



Vardhman Polytex Limited

To The Members of VARDHMAN POLYTEX LtMITED

Report on the Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements We have
audited the accompanying standalone lnd AS financial statements of
VARDHMAN POLYTEX LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31 ,2O18, and the Statement of profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of
Changes in Equiry and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone lnd AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 1 34(5) of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("the Act") with
respect to the preparation of these standalone lnd AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under section I 33
of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 20-l 5, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in lndia.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone
financial statements based on our audit. ln conducting our audit. we
have taken into account the provisions ofthe Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder and the Order issued under section 1 43(1 1 ) ofthe Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone lnd AS financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone lnd AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone lnd AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the standalone lnd AS financial statements that give a

true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
standalone lnd AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
lnd AS financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Note No. 52 of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements regarding
crediting a profit of {396.44 lakhs due on payment of FCCB liability
to the statement of profit & loss during the previous year (March
31 ,2O171which should have been credited in the statement of profit
& loss on payment of FCCB liability which is still outstanding to the
tune of 554,160 USD as on March 31,2018 is not in compliance with
the requirementsof para27 of the lndAS 1- Presentation of Financial
Statements w.r.t. preparation of financial statements on accrual basis.
Consequently, the profit and loss has been overstated by the above
mentioned amount.

We further report that , had the impact of our observations made in
para above been considered, the net loss and the net worth, for the
period ended, would have increased and decreased respectively by
Rs. 396.44 lakhs.

Qualified Opinion

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter
described in the above para of "Basis for Qualified Opinion" of our
report, the aforesaid standalone lnd As financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
general Iy accepted in I nd ia, of the state of affai rs of the Company as at
March 3.1, 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw aftention to the following matters:

i) Note No. 51 of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements
regarding preparation of the Standalone financial statements on
a going concern basis nowvithstanding the facts that the
company has accumulated losses resulting in erosion of net
worth. Keeping in view the above, the company has continued
deferred tax asset (at the same levels as last year) considering
virtual certainty that sufficient taxable income wil! be available
during specified period against which such ileferred tax
asset/MAT Credit Entitlement can be adjusted.

ii) As stated in Note No. 25 to the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements, lenders of the subsidiary, lWs. F.M. Hammerle
Textiles Limited, have invoked the corporate guarantee given
by the company. ln view of the same a provision of tl 7,685.'l 3
lacs has been booked during th is quarter.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we
report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
bel iefwere necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss

including Other Comprehensive lncome, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the lndian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act except as reported
in the para of "basis for qual ified opinion" as above .

e) tn our opinion, the mafters described in the "basis of
Qualified Opinion" and " emphasis of matter " paragraphs

above may have an adverse impact on the functioning of
the company.

0 On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed
as a d i rector in terms of Section 1 64(2) of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and accordingto the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
lnd As financial statements. - Refer note 40 of the
Standalone I nd As financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to betransferred, tothe lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
("the Order") issued by the Central Covernment in terms of
Section 143(1 1) of the Act, we give in 'Annexure B" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For ROMESH K AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000711N

Report on the !nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section '143 of the Companies
Act, 201 3 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reportingof VARDHMAN POLYTEX LIMITED ('the Company") as of
March 31, 20.18 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company forthe year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Cuidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute ofChartered Accountants
of lndia('lCAl"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act,2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Cuidance Note on
Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note') issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of
lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Cuidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
duetofraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes ln accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

Place: Ludhiana
Date: May 30,2018

sd/-
Ruchir Singla

Partner
Membership no .519347

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDlTOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(fl under'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requ irements' section ofour report ofeven date)
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31 ,2018, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia.

Emphasis of Matter

We would draw attention to matters disclosed in paragraph under
'Emphasis of matters' in our main lndependent Auditor's Report
which could indicate possible lapses in internal financial controls

systems at various points in time.

Our opin ion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For ROMESH K AGGARWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000711N

All fixed assets have not been verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular program of verification
which, pursuant to the programme, the fixed assets have
been physically verified by the management during the year.
ln our opinion, the same is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and nature of its business. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us including registered title
deeds, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are
freehold, are in name of company as on the date of balance
sheet date.

The inventory has been physically verified by the
management during the year. ln our opinion, the frequency
of such verification is reasonable. For the stock lying with
third parties at the end, written confirmations have been
obtained. No material discrepancies noticed on such
physical verif ication.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register
maintained undersection 1 89 oftheAct.

ln our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has complied with
the provisions of section 1 85 and 186of the Companies Act,
2013 ln respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

ln our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by
the Reserve Bank of lndia and the provisions of Sections 73

to 76 ot any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with
regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the company pursuant to the Companies (Cost records and
Audi$ Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central
Covernment under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Acl, 2O13, and are of the opinion, that, prime-
facie, the prescribed cost recorCs have been made and
maintained.

According to information and explanations given to us in
respect of statutory dues:

The Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State lnsurance, lncome.Tax, Sales tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax,
Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
the above were in arrears as at March 31 , 201 8 for a period
of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: May 30,2018

sd/-
Ruchir Singla

Partner
Membership no.519347

(b)

(c)

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

(a)

(b)

Annexure "8" to the lndependent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading'Report on Other
Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even date to the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2018)

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitativr: details and situation of
fixed assets.
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(c) Detai ls ofdues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, val ue added taxes which have not been deposited as
on 31'' March, 201 8 on account of any disputes are given below:

Name of the
statute

Nature of
dues

Period to which it
pertains

Amount
in dispute

Forum where dispute
is pending

Amount
deposited

Matter of disputed

Central Excise

4c1,1944
Excise Duty 1997-98 42.34 The Commissioner of

Central Excise,
Chandigarh

42.34 Difference on account of loose and
packed yarn

Excise Dut,v 2004-05 28.93 CESTAT, New Delhi Cenvat credit on input has been
reversed.

Excise Duty 2009-1 0 89.07 Chief Commissioner of
Central Excise,

Ludhiana

Excise Duty 2009-1 0 1.82 Chief Commissioner of
Central Excise,

Ludhiana

Service tax act Service tax 2004 - 05, 2005 - 06
and 2006 - 07

14.11 Additional
Commissioner of C.E.,
Ludhiana

1.41 Service Tax on Overseas
commrSston

lncome Tax
Act

lncome tax 1998-99- 2tJU2. 2003,
2004 -2005,2005-
2006,2011-2012

25.86 CIT (Appeals),

Ludh iana
25.69 Disallowance of deduction under

section 80HHC & B0M,

lncome tax 2003 -2004,200+
200s,200G2007,
2008- 2009

749.83 ITAT, Chandigarh 41.66 Disallowance of lnterest u/s 36(l )(iii)
for investment in subsidiary
companies, computaion u/s l4A,
lnterest disallowance on advances to
subsidiary companies uis 36(lXiii)

lncome tax 1 998 -99 to 2O02-

2003
498.57 Hon'ble Punjab &

Haryana High Court,
Chandigarh

152.65 Disallowance of deduction under
section BOHHC, 80lB & B0M,
Disallowance of lnterest uis 36(l Xiii)
& as revenue expenditure or capital
expenditure though matter decided
by Hon'ble SC in our favor and levy
of interest uls 234 D, Disallowance
uls'14-A.

Punjab

Ceneral Sales

Tax Act

Punjab Vat 200G01,2001-02 17.6'l DETC Appeal 4.40 Incremental production in respect of
additional fixed capital investment.

Punjab Vat 2005-06, 200647 0.48 DETC, Patiala 0.12

Punjab Vat 2009-1 0 79.00 VAT Tribunal, Punjab ITC on diesel, Reversal of 19(5) in
exempted units, reversal of entry tax
in respect of branch transfer & I 9(5).

Punjab Vat 2006-07 33.08 DETC (Appeals),

Faridkot (Pb.)
Disallowance of ITC in respect of
purchases from lWs Chabra lnd. &
ITC on Diesel.

Punjab Vat 2008-09 62.14 VAT Tribunal, Punjab Disallowance of ITC on Diesel &
reversal of entry tax in respect of
branch transfer & 19(5)

Wealth Tax
Act

Wealth Tax A.Y. 1998-99 2.11 ITAT, Chandigarh Dispute on valuation of land
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8. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks

as follows:

Working Capital Demand l-oan

Name of Bank Sanction Amount Default Amount Overdrawn Start

Canara Bank 1 80400000
P 16236000
I 'l o873068 )une,2O17

State Bank of lndia 1 48300000 P-t7796000
I Aa74't7 June,2O17

State Bank of Patiala 34500000
P 4.t40000
I 2351 86 lune,2O17

Punjab National Bank 42300000
P 3807000
I 174158 luly,2o17

Bank of lndia 34200000
P

I

4788000 Febuary,2O17

Punjab & Sind Bank 22800000
P 1176123
I 684000

November,20l 7

Axis Bank 20400000
P 612000
I 90447

September,2O'14

Bank of lndia 4220oo00 P 5618195
I 13s4939

Febuary,2O17

Corporation Bank 20300000
P 1218000
I 529101

September,2017

Andhra Bank 62700000
P 6094997
I 2851332 June,2017

United Bank of lndia 36000000
P so40000
I 1 58991 8 January,2O17

Term Loan

Name of
Bank

Sanction
Amount

Default
Amount

Overdrawn
Start

Canara Bank 2601 00000
P 34781454
I 24694801 )une,2O17

State Bank of lndia 56682000
P 6801 840
t 372619 )une,2O17

Punjab National Bank 420000000
P 3691 3084
r 1936320 )uly,2O-17

Bank of lndia 61 1 00000
P 8572655
I 945742

Febuary,2O'17

Bank of Baroda 309390700
P 40411107

Febuary,2O17

Corporation Bank 69700000
P 9999761
I 4397530

September,2Ol 7

United Bank of lndia 387sssooo
P 47891914
I 't5274351 lanuary,2O17

Bank of Maharashtra 2344AOOOO
P 28137600
I 4442781

March,2O17

.lammu & Kashmir
Bank

236250000
P 26878125
I 1298s442 June,2O17

Allahabad Bank 47174000
P 5528642
I 1aa2707

March,2O17

Cash credit (CC)

Total amount under default in Cash Credit is Rs. 'l 93.90 Crores
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9. The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
term Loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) is not
applicable to the Company.

10. To the best of knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act.

12. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

13. According to information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable lndian Accounting Standards.

14. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly

convertible debentures during the year and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

15. According to information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him and hence the
provision of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

16. According to information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of
the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1 934.

For ROMESH K AGCARWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 00071 1N

Place: Ludhiana
Date: May 30,2018

sd/-
Ruchir Singla

Partner
Membership no .519347
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BATANCE SHEET As AT 31'' MARCH, 2018

Particulars

I ASSETS

a) Property, plant and equipment
b) lnvestment Property
c) Capital work-in-progress
d) Other intangible assets

e) Flnancial assets

i) lnvestments
ii) Loans
iii) Other financial assets

fl Trade receivable
g) Deferred tax assets (net)

h) Other non{urrent assets

Total Non Current Assets

2 Current ass€ts
a) lnventories
b) Financial assets

i) lnvestments
ii) Trade receivables
iii) Cash and cash equivalents
iv) Bank balances other than above
v) Loans
vi) Other financial assets

c) Current tax assets

d) Other current assets

Total Current Assets

TOTAT ASSETS

il EQUTTY AND UAB|tITtES
1 EQUITY

a) Equity share capital
b) Other equity

Total Equity
UABtUTtES

2 Non<urrent liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings
b) LonB term provisions
c) Other non{urrent liabilities

Total Non Current Liabilities
3 Current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables

iii) Other financial liabilities
b) Other current liabilities
c) Short term provisions

Total Current tiabilities
TOTAT- EQUTTY AND UABIUT|ES

Significant accounting policies 'l

The accompanyinB notes form an integral part of these financial

in Lakh)

2
2(a\
2(b)

2

As at

23,837 .55
5r 4.90
53 7.58

7.42

9,',t49.56
35.00

2,331.02

5,01 6.18
1 ,097.40

As at
2016

23,342.2-l
524.74
663.s8

0.1 9

9,149.56
35.00

2,530.37

5,01 6.1 8
1,470.43

3

4
5

6
7
I

42,526.61 42,732.27

9 7 ,743.10 7,295.05

'10

11

12
l3
14
r5
16
17

5.78
7,681 .47

261.58
440.93
32.33

-t,246.66

415.47
2,2'1O.82

18.34
7,411 .88

277.7s
348.31

46.27
1,861.72

450.82
2,268.06

20,038.14 19,978.20
62,564.75 62,710.47

18
19

2,232.s4
8,510.47

2,232.54
8,509.66

-to,743.O1 1O,742.2O

20
21

22

23
24
25
26
27

-16,42-1.92

43.38
'16.81

19,370.26
2r 3.08

16.81

11 1 9,600.1 5

18,649.68
6,884.76
9,420.19

379.11
s.89

16,152.99
6,372.62
9,325.15

293.45
223.91

35,339.63 32,368.12
62,564J5 62,7't0.47

statements

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:-00071 1N

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No. 519347

FOR AND ON BEHATF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OT VARDHMAN POLYTEX I.IMITED

Place
Date

Ludhiana
30th May 2018

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DrN-00009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DtN40009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officer)

Notes No.

23.-t 5

4,2s6.88

16.58
277.89
340.82

2,232.54
(33,912.46)

(31.679-921

13,223.A4
48.97

0. s3

28,558.87
269.36
813.74
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3I', MARCH, 2018
Particulars

tn

For the Year For Year endedNotes
No. March 8 March 31,2O17

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total lncome (l)

Expenses

Cost of Material consumed
Purchase of traded goods

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Excise duty on sale of goods

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (ll)

28

29

30

31

32

62,135.95

420.46
85,92s.13

1,401 .27

33

34

2

35

62,556.41

42,181 .93

4',310.64

2,243.15

0.08

4,794.s8
6,s66.9s
2,O52."tO

12,g',t8.78

87,326.40

52,OO7.50

8,766.93
(692.4s)

.t.08

5,485.73

5,619.58

2,06s.0s
14,139.25

75,068,21 87,392.67

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l - ll = lll)

Exceptional item (lV) 36

Profit before tax (lll - !V = Y;

Tax expense: (Vl)

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the period from continuing operations After Tax (V-
vr = vil)

Other Comprehensive lncome (Vll!)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit obl igation

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period (Vll + Vlll = lX)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive income
for the period)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): (X) 39
1 Basic

2 Diluted
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

@2,422.49) 22.62

(12,51 1.80) (66.27)

29,876.sO

(42,388.3O) (66.27)

(42,388.30) (66.27)

(34.19) BB.B9

-1 90.1 6

-1 90.1 6

-0.30

-0.30

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:-00071 1N

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No.519347

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POTYTEX LIMITED

Place
Date

Ludhiana
30th May 2018

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DtN-00009710)

sd/_
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DrN-00009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officer)
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CASH ttOW STATEMENT ron rHE yEAR ENDED 3l" MARcH,2otr
Particulars For year For year

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2O17

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Add:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference (net)

Sundry balance written off
Provision for doubtful advances
Provision for Subsidiary
Provision for Miscel laneous Recoverable
Less:
lnterest income
Net Profit on sale / discarding of fixed assets
Provisions no longer required wriften back
Profit on buy back of FCCB
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adlustments for changes in Working Capital :

- lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities
- (lncrease)/decrease in trade receivables and other receivables
- (lncrease)/decrease in inventories

Cash generated from Operating Activities
- Taxes (paid) (net of tax deducted at source)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from Operating Activities

B. Cash flow from lnvesting Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Sale of fixed assets
Reduction in value of investments
lnterest received
Net Cash from lnvesting Activities

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Short borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
lnterest paid
Net Cash from Financing Activities
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April (Opening Balance)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March (Closing Balance)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash & cheques in hand
Balance with banks

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(42,388.30)

2,O52.10
6,566.95

16.94
.l 

81 .39
29,876.50

418.90

(116.7s)
(1s.36)

(66.27)

2,O6s.Os
5,619.58

(21.81)
37.32
10.o0

(442.4O1
(1.73].

(1s8.82)
(396.44)

(3,407.63) 6,644.48

68.38
4,469.95
3,486.23
5,015.94

(74.6s)
7,600.52

(3s.3s)
4,942.29 7,565.27

(711.52)
72.21
5.78

1 16.7 5

(2,438.08)
8.03

12.56
442.40

(s16.78) (1,97s.O9)

5,882.s1
(3,198.08)
(7,644.20)

2,496.69
(2,551.90)
(5,4s8.s2)

(4,959.771 (s,s13.73)
(s34.26) 76.44

702.51 625.O7
168.25 702.51

't2.76

1s5.49
24.84

677.67
r 68.25 702.51

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:-00071 1N

sd/-
Ruchir Singia
Partner
Membership No. 519347

FOR AND ON BEHATF OF BOARD OT DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POTYTEX TIMITED

Place
Date

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DtN-00009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DrN40009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Ch ief Financial Officer)
Ludh iana
30th May 2018

R in Lakh)

389.62
1,0.1 4.58
(448.Os)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2018
a. Statement of Changes in Equity Share Capital for the year ended 31o March, 2018

(t in Lakh)

Particulars Number of Shares Equig share capital

Balance as at April 1, 20t5

Forfeited shares

Balance as at April 1,2017

Change durinB the year

22,290,957.00 2,229.09

22,290,957.00 2,232.54

Balance as at March 31, 2018 22,290,957.00 2,232.54

b. Statement of changes in other Equity

345

Particulars Reserues and Surplus Items of other
comprehensive

income

Capital
subsidy

Capital Ceneral Amalgamation
redemption reserve reserve

reserye

Foreign
currency

translation
reserve

Security
premrum

Retained
earnings

Actuarial Gain
/ (Loss)

Total

Balance at April 1,2016
(as previously reported)

Changes in accounting
policy/errors

Restated balance at April
1,2016

0.01 9,865.69

(0.0r )

95.50

(9s.s0)

45.00

(4s.00)

34.07 7,731 .06

(34.071

(9,261.67\

174.58

8,509 66

9,865.69

9,865.69

7,73.1.06 (9,087.09)

7,731.06 (9,087.09)

(21.81)

(66.271

88.89

8,509.66

8,509.66

(21 .81)

(66.27)

88.89

Balance at April '1, 2017

Reinstatement adjustment

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income for the year, net of
income tax

Total comprehensive
income for the year

9,865.69

9,865.69

7,731 .06 (9,175.17)

7,731.06 (9,175.17].

- (42,388.30)

88.89 8,510.47

88.89 8,510.47

- (42,388.30)

(34.19) (34.19)

(0.44)

Balance at April 1, 201 7

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income for the year, net of
income tax

Changes in accounting
policy/enors

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2018 9,865.69

- (42,388.30)

7,731.06 (51 ,563.47).

(34. r 9)

54.70.

\42,422.93)

(33,912.46)



Vardhman Polytex Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March,2018
Corporate lnformation

a) Vardhman Polytex Limited (the'Company) is a public limited listed company registered under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956
(superceded by Companies Act, 201 3). The Company's principal activity is manufacturing of yarn & garments. The company is listed on two
stock exchange i.e at National Stock Exchange & Bombay Stock Exchange.

b) The company's principal place of business is located at 'Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana - 141123' & factorieJunits are
located atthe following premises:

i) Badal Road, Bathinda, Puniab- 1 51005

ii) D29511,PhaseVIll,focal point, Ludhiana,Punlab-141123

iii) Village Nangal N ihla/Upperla, Swarghat Road, Nalagarh, Himachal Pradesh - 1 741 01

c) These financia I statements are presented in lndian Rupees (Rs) which is also its functional currency.

1 Significantaccountingpolicies

a) Statementof compliance& Basisof preparation&presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with lnd ASs notified under the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5 as amended and other relevant provisions of the act. Upto the year ended March 31, 2017,lhe
Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous lndian CAAP, which includes Standards
notified underthe Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The financial statements forthe yearended March 31, 2018 are the
Company's first lnd AS financial statements. The date of transition to lnd AS is April '1, 201 6. Refer Note 3 7 for the details of first-time
adoption exemptions availed bythe Company.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting pol icies below.

b) Use of estimates & f udgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

c) Revenuerecognition

Revenue is recognised atfairvalue ofthe consideration received or receivable. The amountdisclosed as revenue is inclusive ofexcise
duty and net of returns, trade discounts, value added tax, Coods & Service Tax related taxes and amount collected on behalfofthird
parties.

The company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction willflowto the entity.

i) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery ofthe consideration is probable, the associated cost can be reliably estimated and there is no continuingeffectivecontrol
or managerial involvementwith the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized in respect

ofexport sales on the basis of bill of lading.

iD Export lncentives

Revenue in respect ofexport incentives / benefits are accounted for on post export basis.

iiD Dividends

Revenue in respect ofdividends is recognized when the shareholders' right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet

date.

iv) lnterest

lnterest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the amount of income can be measured reliably. lnterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts

th rough the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on in itial recognition.

v) lnsuranceClaim

Claims with insurance companies are accounted on accrual basis to the extent, No significant uncertainty exist and these are

measurable and ultimate collection is reasonably certain.

d) lnventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence. Cost of inventories
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comprises of cost of purchase,conversion and other cost including manufacturing overhead net of recoverable taxes incurred in
bringingthem to their respective present location and condition. The cost in respect of various items of inventory is computed as under:

i. Stores, spares and raw materials are valued at lower of historical cost or net realizable value. However materials & other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold at or above cost.

ii. ln case of work in progress at raw material cost plus conversion cost depending upon the stage of completion.

iii. Finished goods are valued at lower of historical cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises ofcost of purchase, cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. By products are valued
at net realizable value.

iv. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

e) Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of an
otherentity.

l. lnitial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, all the financial asset and liabilities are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are
d irectly attributable to the acq u isition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability except financia I asset or financial liability
measured at fair value through profit or loss account.Transation costs of financial asset and liabil ities carried at fair value through
profit and loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ll. Subsequent Measurement (Non Derivative Financial Instrument)

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to col lect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date
to cash flows that are solely payments on principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial Asset At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive tncome (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and sel I ing financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTP[)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

d) !nvestments !n Subsidiaries

The company has adopted to measure investments in subsidiaries at cost in accordance with lnd AS 27 and carrying amount
as per previous CAAP atthe date of transition has been considered as deemed cost in accordance with lnd AS 101.

e) FinancialLiabilities

The financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one yearfrom the balance sheet date,the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

lll. Derivative Financial lnstruments

The company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is general ly a bank.

Although the company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for
hedge accounting under lnd AS 109, Financial instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge,or is so
designated but is ineffective as per lnd AS 1 09, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liabiliry, at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initial ly at fair value and aftributable transaction costs are recogn ized in net
profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair
value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income. Assets/Liabilities in this
category are presented as current assetsku rrent liabilities if they are either held for trad ing or are expected to be realized with in 1 2

months after the balance sheet date.

fl Property,plantandequipment

Fortransition to lnd AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as of April 1 , 201 6 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
thetransition date.

Land is carried at cost and all other items of property plant, equipments and fixtures are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
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The cost of property, plant and equi pment i ncl udes

1) lts purchase price including import duties and non refundable taxes after reducing trade discount and rebate if any.
2) Anyattributableexpendituredirectlyattributabletobringanassetstothelocationandtheworkingconditionforitsintendeduse.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method except the assets costing Rs 5000 or below on which depreciation
is charged at the rate I 00% p.a. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect ofany changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise

from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is

determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

d lntangibleassets

lntangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. lntangible assets are amortized over expected useful

life on a straight line basisfrom thedate theyare availableforuse.

h) lmpairment of assets

l. FinancialAssets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For

all other financial assets expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month ECl,unless there has been a

significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required
to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss.

ll. Non-FinancialAssets

lntangible assets and property, plant and equipment

lntangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the

recoverable amount(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis

u n less the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such cases. the recoverable
amount is determined for cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

lf such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the
amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is

reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net or any accumulated
amortization ordepreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized forthe asset in prioryear..

i) Foreignexchangetransactions/translation

a. lnitial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction.

b. Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported usingthe closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;
and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

c. ExchangeDifferences

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, form part ofthe company's net investment in a non-
integral foreign operation is accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve in the financial statements until the
disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recogn ized as income or as an expense.

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary items not covered above, or on reporting such monetary
items of company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

d. Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or income
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over the life ofthe contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange
contract is recognized as income or as expense for the year.

k) Employee benefits

i. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the statement of Profit and loss ofthe
year in which the related service is rendered.

ii. Post Employee Benefits

A) Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund & ESI

The company makes contribution to Statutory Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance in accordance with Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State lnsurance Act, 1948 which is a defined
contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in wh ich services are rendered
by the employee.

Superannuation benef it
The Company makes contribution to superannuation fund which is a post employment benefit in the nature of a defined
contribution plan & contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered
bythe employee.

B) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity

The company provides for gratuiry, a defined benefit retirement plan ("The Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees of
the company. The gratuity pian provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirentent,death,incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employmentwith the
company.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurementf comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset cei ling (if appl icable) and the return on plan assets (excluding
net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated Lry' applying the discount rate at the beginn ing of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
. Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and

seftlements);

. Net interestexpense or income; and remeasurement

The Com pany presents the first two com ponents of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Em ployee benefits
expense'. Cu rtai I ment gains and losses are accou nted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the standalone balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resu lting from th is ca lcu lation is lim ited to the present value of any econom ic
benefits avai lable in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

l) Taxes on income

lncome tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. lncome tax expense is recogn ized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case, it is also
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. lt is measured usinB tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes (including those arising from consolidation adjustments such as
unrealized profit on inventory etc.). Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at

the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against cu rrent tax liabilities; and

b) the defened tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same

taxable entity.

m) Government grants and subsidies

Covernment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and thatthe grants will be received.

covernment grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the company recognises as expenses

the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the

Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non{urrent assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet

and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis overthe useful I ives ofthe related assets.

Covernment grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate

financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

n) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period

oftime to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost ofthe respective asset. All other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligiblefor capitalisation.

o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

A contingent liability is recognized for:

i. apresentobligationthatarisesfrompasteventsbutisnotrecognizedasaprovisionbecauseeitherthepossibilitythatanoutflowof
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation is remote or a reliable estimate of the amount of the

obligation cannot be made; and

ii. a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company. Contingent assets are neither

accounted for nor disclosed in the financial statements.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, when

appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiliry. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cost.

p) Earningpershare

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

n umber of equ ity shares outstand i ng d uri ng the year. For the pu rpose of calcu lating d i I uted earn i ngs per share, the net profit for the year

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects

ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Cashandcashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and in hand, including bffsetting bank overdrafts, and short-term highly liquid

investments that are readi ly convertible to known amounts ofcash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in fair value and have a

maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date.
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2. PROPERTY PTANT AND EQUIPMENT
i) tu at 31st March 2018 (t in Lakh)

Pailiolm fa4ibh 66.{s

!4q,utq
Tohl
ds€ls

teaphold tre hold Building

land land

Plut &

mchimry
Other

equipmt
turniture

and fixturu
Vehirls Compuler Total Trade mrt

(bought out)

Tolal

136 77 1,958.r8

407.46

12,917 24

11t8
44,596 42

95 41

193 16

I 0.06

5r6,84

430
61,W.75

618 26

215 42 492.72 1094 61,077 69
. 618 26985

116.77 2,444.85 12,948.42 44,421.30 201.22 245.27 350.59 519.25 61169.57 10.94 6r,280.51

C6t
As at'lst April 20'17 (Refer

note (a))

Additions (Rerer note b))

Relating to dispmk
tu at 31sl illarch 2010

Degreiatim
A6 at lst April 201 7

Charge for the yar
RelatinB to disposh

A6 al 3ld ltbrch 2018

Net bhrl
tu al 31st l$arch 2018

1,829 88

416 06

32,168.40

r,528.08

1247.83)

140.07

15.35

r83.79

12.72

3r5 04

17.94

(109 16)

l9l 02

3r l8
(1 49)

37,229 20

2,U1 53

(3s8.40)

37,232.72

2,U2.26
(3s8.48)

3.52

0.73

ii) As at 31st March 2017

4,245.94 33,648.55 155.42 196.51 244.82 420.91 38,912.25 4.25 38,916,50

136.77 2,44.85 8,702.49 10,772.65 47.N 8.76 105.77 98.34 22,357.42 6.59 22,364.|

(t in Lakh)

Parliculan Tangible mts
lntanBible

Total

asse[s

Lgshold tre Hold

land ldrd

Buildi16 Plmt &

mchimry
Other

equipml
tumiture

and fixlures

Vehicls Sottwars
(Boutht

Tolal Trade mrl
(Bdghl0n)

Total

136 77 r,832 58

125 60

12,27637

660 87

42,875 07

1,722.52

(r r/)

183 47 502.1 1

13.46

(22.8s)

496.41

20.43

58,534.16

2,556.41

(24.02)

58,517 63

2,564.08

.24.021

969

136.77 1,958.18 12,9t7.24 44,5%.42 193.16 2t5.42 492.72 516.84 61,066.75 10.94 51,077.69

As at lst April 2016

Additims

Relating to disposals

tu at 3tst March 2017

Deprechtim
As at lst April 2016

Charge for tfie year

RelatinB to dispoeh

i|s it 3lsi March 20 17

Net Slocl

tu at 3tn ihrch 2017

3,426 44

403.44

30,826 88

1,542 41

124 89

t5 r8
17265

1 l.r4
262.42

50.45

158.88

32 14

3 06 15,195 22

0.45 2,055.2r

35,192.16

2,054.76

1t6.77 1,958.18 9,107.35 12,228.02 s3.09 5t.63 175.58 125.82 21,837.55 7.42 21,844.97

a) The Company's right on leasehold land has been forfeited by Maharashtra lndustrial Development Corporation (MIDC), due to non

compliance of the terms of allotment. The land was allotted for a period of 95 years for amount of tl 36.77lakh (P.Y. tl36.77 lakh) as

on March 3l , 20.1 8. During the current year the company has received a letter from MIDC which states that the total amount paid by
the company has been adjusted with charges and deduction as calculated by MIDC. Keeping in view the same, company has

provided forwhole amount in books.

b) The company has received an order from the Hon'ble Supreme Court regarding payment of enhancement compensation on Land

amountingt449.99Lakh.Outof,theabovethecompanyhadpaidll0l.T5 lakhstoPunjabCovernmenttillMarch3l,20lT. Sothe
company has provided for the balance amount ({348.25 Lakh) as well as interest amounting tl 39.21 Lakh till 31 .03.201 8. Thereby
making total capitalization amount in Land during the year for {487.46 Lakh.

2 (a) INVESTMENT PROPERW

Buil
As at March 31'', 2018

ling
As at March 31", 2017

Cost
As at 1st April 2017 & 2016
Additions
Relating to disposals

631.55 631.55

As at 31st March 2018 & 2017 631.55 531.55
Depreciation
As at'lst April 2017 &2016
Charge for the year
Relating to disposals
Adiustment

116.65
9.84

1 06.
9.

81

84

As at 31st March 2018 & 2017 126.49 1 16.65
Net block
As at 31st March 2018 & 2017 505.06 514.90

ln

23r 58

184
1.27

7.67
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March 3

Capital Work in Progress s3 7.58 663.58

Total 537.58 663.s8

Note:
Expenses amounting to {31 9.45 lakhs pertaining to modernization Project, which were earlier in capital work in progress, have now
been expensed out due to inability to complete the project on account of non achievement of financial closure for the same.

3. FINANCIAL ASSETS: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
tn

As at

2(b) CAPITAT WORK-IN.PROCRESS

Particulars

Particulars

A, Unquoted investments
(Financial Assets carried at cost, except for permanent diminution in

value)
l. Equity lnstruments in Subsidiary

F.M. Hammerle Iextiles Limited
9,1 2,64,07 3 (3 1 .03. 1 7- 9,1 2,64,O7 3 & 0 1 .04.201 69,1 2,64,07 3)

equity shares of Rs lGeach fully paid)
Less: Provision for permanent diminution in the value of lnvestment
F.M. Hammerle Verwaltung GmbH, Austria
(Minimum Registration Capital)
F.M. Hammerle Nfg CmbH, Austria (Minimum
Registration Capital)
Less: Provision for permanent diminution in the value of
lnvestment

ll. Equity lnstruments in Others
(a) Oswal !ndustrial Enterprise (P) ltd

1,000 (31.03.2017-1,000, 01 .04.201Gl000) equity shares of Rs.10

each fully paid
(b) VKM Colour Spin Limited
250 (31.03.201 7-25O,01.O4.201G250) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully
paid
(c) Deluxe Fabrics limited
5000 (31.03.201 7- 5000, 01.04.201G5000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

fully paid

Total aggregate lnvestments

Total investment carrying value
Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Aggregate value of quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments

0.03 0.03 0.03

0.50 0.50 0.s0

23.15 9,149.56 9,149.56
23.15 9,149.56 9,149.s6

23.15 9,149.56 9,149.56

23.15 9,149.56 9,119.s6

As at

2017

(t in takh)

As at

2016

As at
2016

9,126.41

22.54

22.54

(22.s4l.

0.09

March
As at
2017

9,126.41

22.54

22.54

(22.s41

0.09

126.41

126.4't\

009

Note:
.l . lnvestment in the subsidiary, F.M. Hammerle Textiles, has been completely provided for as the said subsidiary is undergoing CIRP

(Corporate lnsolvency Resolution Process) under lndian Bankruptcy Code, wherein a Resolution Professional has been appointed by
Hon'ble NCLT. Further, the entire netlvoth ofthe subsidiary has already been eroded due to losses suffered.

2. Out of total shares held in FM Hammerle Textile Limited, 4,65,44,677 shares (previous year 4,65,44,677 shares) (face value of <10/-
each) are pledged in favour of State Bank of lndia (lead banker of FMH) in dematerialisation form.

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS: TOANS (NON CURRENT)
(a tn aLh)

Particulars As at As at As at

Total

10.00

35.00 35.00

(a) Loan to others

Less: Provision for doubtful loans

35.00

0.00

35.00

0.00

31 1 .39

I url
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5. OTHER FINANCIAT ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST(NON CURREND

Particulars

(a) Advance to Subsidiaries*

Less: Provision for doubtful advances
(b) Fixed more than l2 months

Total

tn

As at As at

2016March 31 2017

2,236.00 2,236.00

95.02 294.37

1.02 7

Note:
+ This amount pertains to the subsidiary F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited which is undergoing CIRP (Corporate lnsolvency Resolution Process) under lndian
Bankruptcy Code where in a Resolution Professional has been appointed by Hon'ble NCLT. Further the entire netwoth ofthe company has already been
eroded due to losses suffered. Keeping in view ofthe above facts, the entire advance to this Subsidiary has been provided for in books.
* * Held with bank(s) as margin money against letter of credit, bank guarantee & others.

5. FINANCIAI- ASSETS: TRADE RECEIVABLES (NON-CURRENT) ({ in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at
I March 31 2017

As at

2016
Receivable from Others

-Unsecured, Considered Cood
-Doubtful

Allowance for doubtful receivable

Total long Term Debtors

18.90

279.23

7. DEFERRED TAX (NED
R in Lakh)

Particulars As at
Mar 31, 2018

As at
Mt 31,2017

As at
Mar 31, 2016

Deferred tax liabilities
Arising on account of timing difference

Opening
Accumulated depreciation

Total (A)

Deferred tax assets

Arising on account of timing difference

Opening
Unabsorbed depreciation
Others

Total (B)

Net tax

2457.32
(368.21)

2272.49
184.83

2336.82
(64.33)

17,288.67)

fl 84.83)

(7,094 97)
64.33

(2 s8.03)
(7, 1 0s.29) (7,473.501 (7,288.67)

16.1 6.1 8)

The company has deferred tax I iability till the end ofthe current year on account of differences arising bewveen depreciation as per books
of accounts and thatas per incometax. However, deferred tax assets are much higherthan thedeferred tax liability. ln view of this, no
further deferred tax assets are being recognised as at March 31, 2018. Based on the company's virtual certaininty of the profit, the
company is carryinga deferred tax asset of 15,016..18 lakh as on March 31, 20-l8.

8. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS (t in Lakh)

As at

31 March 2017

+ 1 5.1 8)

As at
2016

Capital advances

2,236.00
(2,236.00)

2,089.11 2,457.32 2,272.49

17,473.50)
368.21

Particulars
As at

March 31,2018

227.92 444.62

1 .93

632.69

18.1 6

817.09
17.41

1.93

612.21

21.79

Total
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9. INVENTORIES

Particulars

(Valued at cost or Net realizable value whichever is lower)

Raw materials

Work in progress

Finished goodsi

Particulars

A. Unquoted investments (all fully paid, at cost)

l. Mutual funds

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS: TRADE RECEIVABTES (CURRENT)

12. FINANCIAI ASSETS: CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENTS

As at

As at

March

As at

2017

2,343.31

1,898.42

2,941.81

As at
2017

fuat
2015

2,983.93

1,500.74

2,647.03
r 63.35Stores &

Total 7, 10

* Finished goods comprises of the good which were in transit lor 1147.66 Lakhs, t1 044.28 Lakhs, {483.20 Lakhs as on year ending

31 .03.201 8,31 . 03.2O17 ,31.03.201 6 respectively.

10. FINANCIALASSET$CURRENTSINVESTMENT

7

tn

March 3t
As at
2017

As at
2016

1 8.34

r8.34

in Lakh)

As al

({ in Lakh)

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand

at

12.76

March 3l
As at

2017

As at

2016

24.83 41.23

Bank balances:

in current accounls 20'85 125'92 112'53

Total tl'tt zol'Do

+Held with bank against margin money against letter of credit, bank guarantee and others.

13. FINANCIAI ASSETS: BANK BATANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE (< in Lakh)

Particulars

Bank balances:

Escrow Account

Dividend with banks

Fixed

at

28.53

March 31

As at

2017

fuat
2016

0.77

0.40

347.14

348.31

0.77

0.40

439.76than 3 months but less than l2 months matu
440.93Total

+* Held with bank(s) against margin money against letter of credit, bank guarantee and others.

FINANCIAt ASSETS: TOANS (CURRENT) R in Lakh)14.

Total 1 5.58

March

32.33 46.27

Particulars As at As at

2016
tuat
20't7

Carried at amortised cost

(a) Other loans

Loans to emPloYees

Un Secured - considered good l6 58 32.33 46.27

Anril 1. 2O15

Receivable from Others
-Unsecured, Considered Cood :

Less: Non Current Trade Receivable

3,548.88
798.13

8,018.98 7,739.39
0

2750.75 801 I 98 7739.39
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15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) (l in Lakh)

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 1,2016

Advancetosubsidiaries* 828.97 281.80 684.18
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (628.97)

Government Authorities
Tuff Subsidy recoverable

lnterest rreivable
Others

Less: Provision for other doubt advances

21.00
212.57

19 27

61 57

As at

March 31, 20.18

As at

March 31,2017

As at

April 1,2016

281 .80

287.08
230.93
r 40.5 r

306.34

684. r 8

317.96
293.66
r 99.08
366.86

T 1,72

*Thisamountpertainstooursubsidiaries F.M.HammerleTextilesLimited, lndia&F.M.HammerleVerwaltungCmbH,Austria. lncase
ofF.M.HammerleTextilesLtd, lndia hasfiledfordebtresolutionunderlndianBankruptcyCodewhereinaresolutionprofessional has

been appointed by Hon'ble NCLT. Further the entire net worth of the both subsidiary have already been eroded due to continuous
losses. Keeping in view ofthe above facts the entire advance to subsidiary amount has been provided for in books.
+* This includes export incentives recoverable from Covernment
**r Provision created for tuff subsidy t206.45 Lakhs (Previous Year NIL)

16, CURRENT TAX ASSETS

Particulars

Direct Taxes Refundable 340.82 415.47 450.82

Direct taxes refundable represent amounts recoverable from the lncome Tax Department for various assessment years net of provision.
ln respect of disputed demands, company has filed appeals which are pending at various levels and the company is hopeful of gefting the
desired reliefs at various forums. Necessary value adjustments shall be made on final settlement by the department.

17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS tn

Particulars As at
March 31, 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Advance to employees

Advance to Suppliers

Balances with Covernment Authorities

Prepaid expenses

Others

fuses held for sale

482 255.74 450.66

359.05
1,246.0s

202.26

3.78
6.26

1 92.1 0

1 ,561.57
311.76

81.75

Total 2,297.38 2,210.82 2,268.06

a) Balancewithstatutoryauthoritiesincludes{54.28 |akh(PreviousYearll86.83Lakh)being amountofESl,ExciseDuty,ServiceTax&
Sales Tax, deposited under protest.

b) Balance with Government authorities includes, GST, VAT, Excise, Service Tax etc.

18. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAT

Particulars As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

I lakhs t lakhs t lakhs

Authorised
Equity shares of 10/- each

Total

70,000,000 7,000.00

70,000,000 7,000.00

70,000,000

70,000,000

7,000.00

7,000.00

70,000,000

70,000,000

7,000.00

7,000.00

lssued, subscribed and fully paid up

2,22,9O,957 (Previous year 2,22,90,957

equity shares of Rs.1 0 each)

Forfeited shares

Total

22,290,957 2,229.09 22,290,957 2,229.09

3.45

22,290,957 2,229.09

3.45

2,232.54
345

22,290,9s7 22,290,957 2,232.54 22,290,957 2,232.54

R in Lakh)

Total 340.82 415.47 450.82
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18.1 RECONCIIIATION OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES AND AMOUNT OUTSTANDING AT THE BEGINN!NG AND AT THE END OF
THE REPORTING YEAR

Particulars As at 31 2017 As at 31 March 2016

a No. of
shares

No, of t lakh s

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year

Add:

lssued during the year (refer note no. b)

Oustanding at the end of reporting
period (refer note no. a)

Note:
a) Out of total shares held by promoters and promoter grou p li.e.1 ,34,04,6521, 1 ,O9,31 ,2O2 equity shares (face value of {.10 each) are pledged

with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) in favourof Canara Bank (Lead banker).

b) Equ ity shares arising out of conversion of the convertible warrants issued on preferential basis.

1a.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ?1 0 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share.ln

the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders. Duringthe yearended 31st March'2018, the amountof dividend recognized as distribution to equity shareholder was ? Nil
(Previousyear{ Nil)

18.3 Detail of shareholders holding more than 59" shares in the company:

As at 31 March 2017 tuat3I 2016

Name of equity shareholder

Panchsheel Textile Mfg. & Trdg. Co. (P)

Lrd.

Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd.

Swarnim Tie Up (P) Ltd.

Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd.

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders

regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships ofshares

I 8.4 Aggregate nu mber of shares issued for consideration other than cash, bon us share issued and shares bought back du ri ng the period of five
years immediately precedingthe reportingdate: Nil (Previous year Nil)

19. oTHER EQU|TY R in Lakh)

Particulars Reserues and Surplus ltems of Total
other

comprehe

mtve
income

{

22,290,957 2,229.09 22,290,957 2,229.09

22,290,957 2,229.09 22,290p57 2,229.09

4,362,325

4,528

2,182,000

4,426,917

4,362,325

1,400,000

2,182,000

19.86

19.57

0.02

9.79

19.86

19.57

6.28

9.79

Capital
subsidy

Capital

redemption
r*fre

General
rserye

Security
premium

Relained

earnrnSs

Actuarial
Gain /
(Loss)

Amlgamation Foreign

rsrue currency
translation

r6erye

Balance at April 1, 20 1 6 (as

previously reported)

Changes in accounting policy/enors

Rstated balance at April 1. 2016

Balance at April 1,2017

Reinstatement adjustment

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the

year

Balance at April 1, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of income tax

Changes in accountinB pol icy/errors

Total comprehensive income for the

year

Balance at March 3 1, 2018

95 50 0.0'r 9,865.69 45 00

(95.50) (0.01) (45.00) l34.on 174.s8

9,865.69 7,731.06 (9,087.09) 8,509.66

9,065.69 7,731.06 (9,087.09) 8,509.66
(21.81) (21.81)

- 66.2n $6.2n
88.89 88.89

34.07 7,731.06 \9,261.671 B,509 65

9,855.69

9,865.69

7,731.06

7,731.06

i.9,175.17)

19,175.1n
(42,388.30)

88.89

88.89

(34 r 9)

8,510.47

8,510.47
(42,388 30)

(34 1 9)

- (42,388.30)

7,731.06 (51,563.4n

(34.19)

54.70

(42,422.93],

\33,912.46],9,865.69

shares

2,229.09

2,229.09

As at 31 March 2018

No. of
Shares

No.of % Noof %

Shares Sharcs

4,426,917

4,362,325

(0.,u)
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20. FINANCIALLIABlTITY.BORROWING(NONCURRENT)

Rupee Term Loan from Banks (refer note a,b,c below)
Rupee Term Loan from others (refer note a,b,c below)
Working capital term loan -ll kefer note a,b,c below)
Funded interest term loan -ll (refer note a,b,c below)
Vehicle loan (refer note d below)
Total

at
March 31

As at
2017

Rin
As at
201 6

15,932.33
1 ,337.77
5,451.88
1,542.19

41.32

14,627.17
1,016.55
4,943.01

327.60
40.09

Less: Amount disclosed under other current liability (refer note 25) (4,532.50) (4,93s.23)

Crand Total 1.92 70.26

Terms & Conditions of Secured Loan Taken from bank and status of default at the year end as on 31.03.2018
[t in Lakh)

Out oftotal overdue interest amount <1187.43 Lakhs pertains to the interest after the NPA date which has not been charged by bank but
the same has been provided by us keeping accrual concept in consideration.

Details of Securitv

a) Term loans from Financial lnstitutions and Banks as stated as above arelshall be secu red by way of joint eq u itable mortgage of all the
immovable properties (present and future) of the Company ranking on pari- passu basis and hypothecation of all movable assets of
the Company subject to prior charge of the company's bankers on specified movable assets in respect of working capital
borrowings.

b) Term Loan from others is guaranteed by promoter company /Ws Panchsheel Textile Mfg & Trading Co. Pvt Ltd. along with charge on
specific assets.

c) All the Term Loans & Working Capital Term Loan from the banks are guaranteed by Promoter directors & Mrs. Man.iu Oswal (related
party)

d) Veh icle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of the veh icle against such loan.

Detail of Bank wise NPA date:

Name Date of NPA
Canara Bank 30.10.2017
State Bank of lndia 21 .O9.2017
Puniab National Bank 31 .10.2017
United Bank of lndia 30.06.2017
Bank of Baroda 30.06.2017
Andhra Bank 3 r .01 .201 I
Bank of India 30.06.2017
Bank of Maharashtra 10.06.2017
J&KBank 30.12.2017
Corporation Bank 31.01 .2018
Axis Bank 10.o9.2014
Punjab & Sind Bank 28.O2.2018
Allahabad Bank 30.1 1 .2017

Term Loan from Banks Term Loan from others
Types of loan Rupee TL WCTL.II flTt Tt_-l Tt--il
Sanctioned Amount 19712.12 6441.00 4340.90 500.00 290.00
Balance As on 31.03.2018 14641 .34 4719.38 58.43 327.72 1 65.95
Rate of lnterest 1 10/" 110L 11% 13.450L 14.20.1"
Repayment Type Quarterly Quarterlv Quarterly Quarterly Quarterlv
Repayment Schedule As per CDR

3 1 .03.2019 5521.87 1563.29 58.43 64.78 42.75
31 .03.2020 3094.02 1 030.56 56.75 40.r5
31.03.2021 3448.26 r 59.38 64.87 46.24
31.03.2022 2577.19 966.1 5 74.16 36.81
31.03.2023 67.16
Overdue Principle 2401.53 665.26 57.64 11 .41 7.97
Overdue lnterest 1632.25 4r 0.08 7.12 10.77 5.80
Overdue Principle Since )an-l7 lan-l7 Mar-l 7 lan-1 8 lan-1 8

(7,054.02)
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21. PROVTSIONS (NON CURRENT) (t in Lakh)

Particulars fuat
20r8 March 3

As at

2017

As at

201 6

Provision for Employee Benelits

Leave Encashment

Total

43.38

43.38

21 3.08

213.08

22. OTHER NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

Secu received

Total

23, FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINCS (CUR,RENT)

tn

As at

2018 March 31

As at

2017

16.81

r 5.81

As at

2016

16.81

16.81

ln

Particulars

Secured Borrowings

Loans repayable on demand

Working Capital loans from banks (Refer Note no a,b,c below)

Unsecured Borrowings

from related party -body corporate & directors

Unsecured loans from others

As at
201

24,051.51

255.69

As at

1 8,054.68

370.00
225.00

March 31

As at

2017

As at

2016

15,812.99

90.00
250.00

As at

2016

6,372,62

T 152.99

Detail of securities :

a) Working capital loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of all stocks (except the stock of raw material already pledge with third

party), p"resent and future of stores, spare parts, packing materials, raw materials, finished goods, goods in transit/process, book debts,

outsianding money receivable, claims, bills etc. and second charge by way of joint equitable mortSage of immovable properties of

Company.

b) Personal guarantee given by promoter & Director Mrs. Manju oswal. (related party)

(c) lncl udes credit balance in current accounts-

24. FINANCIAI LIABILITIES: TRADE PAYABLES in Lakh)

March 31

As at

2017

Due to Others+ 6,884.76

Total 6,884.76 6,372.62

*The information as required to be disclosed under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2005 ("the Act") has not been received so

far, so the disclosure requi rement for balance outstanding, interest paid/payable as at the year end as required by the Ad has not been given'

25. OTHERFINANCIALLIABlLITIES-CURRENT ({ in

7,054.02
639.02
298.79

91.0,1

8.76
458.95

1,431.43
17,685.11

348.25

As at
2017

4,532.50
1,691.14

220.99
90.47

21.O9

683.05
1,008.15

As at
2016

4,935.23
1,469.80

261.58
88.71

tuat
2018 March 31

Current maturities of long term bonowings(Refer Note 20)

lnterest Payable

Creditors for services & contracts

Trade deposits & advances

Other Payables

Capital payable

Employee related

Trade Expenses payable

Liability for Corporate Cuarantee*

Enhanced Land Compensation (VTM Land)
172.80

19

975.03
15

Total

*This liability (previous Year NIL) pertains to corporate Buarantee given to the borrowers of our subsidiary F.M. Hammerle Textiles

the same has been invoked and we have received a demand notice for the above mentioned amount.
* + lt includes bank book overdraft of t Nil (31 .03.2017- <769.59 Lakh, 31 .03.201 G Rs Nil).

Ltd. During the year

0.53

0.53

33.07
619.94
941.79
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26. OTHER CURRENT TIABILIT]ES (l in Lakh)

Particulars As at
March 31,2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2015

Advances/deposits from customers

Statutory duest

Others

Security deposit received

55.65
182.80

1.88

29.03

172.90

177 .51

1.66

27.O4

60.65

204.98

27.82

Total

*lt includes contribution to ESIC, EPF, TDS, TCS

27. PROVISION(CURRENT)

Employees Benefit-Leave Encashment

Premium on Redemption of FCCB

Provision Against forfeiture of MIDC Land

Provision against Tuff Subsidy

Provision against Advance given to Contractor
Others+

379.11

As at
2017

5.89

293.45

ln

March 3

As at
2016

89.72
134.19

136.00
206.45

51 .20
413.91

Total 813.74 s.89 223.91

' Pertaining to provision against governr
of accounting management has decided

28. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

ment receivable against pending cases at various level. Though decision is pending but in view of the provision
to made necessary provision in books of accounts.

(l in Lakh)
Particulars Year Inded March Year Ended March

31, 20173r,2018
i) Sales of Products

- Crey Yarn
- Dyed Yarn
- Carments
- Waste Sale

- Traded Coods
- Real estate plots

ii) lob charSes lncome

42,306.03

10,094.87
659 80

5,124.00
3,504 17

6r,589.28

(84 79)

56,173.79
12,589.41

866.25
4,940.83
9,653.57

84,223.85

(131.r0)

04t

Less: Rebate and Discount

Other Operating tncome

i) Export lncentivdBenef its

Cain on

Total

Net Sales

transaction and transla tion

438.59

92.87

1,423.98

T 52,135.95 85,925.1 3

Note: During the current year, the company has entered into arranBement with few vendors, from whom company is purchasing raw materials and in turn,
processing the same and sel I ing the finished output back to them. Thus the sales figure in the statement of profit & loss comprises Jf sales of {l 0896.66 Lakhi
which was sold tothe said vendors, from whom raw material was purchased.

29. OTHER INCOME
(l in Lakh)

Particulars Year Ended March

lnterest income on Bank deposits & others
Provision no longer required written back
Profit on sale of fixed assets

Rent received

Miscellanmus lncome
Profit on buyback of FCCB

Total
Less: lnterest on Margin Money reduced from finance cost (Refer Note J4)

2017

502.68

158.82

1 .73

134.33

267.55
396.44

445.59
25.1 3

r,461.55
60.28

Total 420.46 1,401.27

at
March

61,604.49 84,092.75

Year Ended March
31_ 2018

141 .BB

0.00
38.09

r 40.86
i24.76
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30. COST OF MATERIATS CONSUMED

Particulars

Cotton

Cotton Yarn

Synthetic Fibre

R in Lakh)

Year March

2017

39,696.76
4,210.62

6,751.21

3

0

& Chemicals

Total
'.50

The above consumption figures are disclosed on the basis of derived figures and are after adjusting excess and shortages ascertained on physical count,

unserviceable items. etc.

Value of indigenous & imported raw material consumption

Particulars Year 31 2017

% Rs. in lakh

lndigenous 38,585.78 91.47 46,329.s0

Rs.

Total

B9.OB

10.92

.50 100.00

31. PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE tn

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017Particulars

Fabrics

Yarn

Cotton

3772.30

538.34

3,484.48

1,597 .82

3,684.63

Total

32. CHANGES tN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK lN PROCRESS AND STOCK lN TRADE

,766.93

(t in Lakh)

Particulars Ended March Year Ended

2010 March 3 2017

'1563.34 2941.81

1898.41

2,U7.03
.500.74

2941.81

1898.41

Closing inventories

Finished goods (lncluding waste)

Work in progress

Opening inventories
Finished goods (lncludinB waste)

Work in

/ Decrease 2243.15 (692.4s)

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFII EXPENSES

Particulars

Salaries, Wages & Other Benefits

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

4,1 80 53

362.69

251.36

K in Lakh)

Year Ended

March 2017

4,693.71

432.29

359.73

34.

Total 4,794.58 5,485.73

({ in Lakh)t'*o*tt tot' 
*r,=r*'r,.n ,rr,rrr,ror,.,

Particulars 31,201g 31,2017

lnterest Expense

-Term Loan

-Working capital borrowings

- Others

Other Borrowing Cost

Less: lnterest on

5,679.87

60.28

2,311.70

2,307.31

1,762.21

210.86

2,309.08

2,376.M

902.87

91.48

Total

Note 29)
9.58

4310.54

6,592.08
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35. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars

Packing
Power & Fuel

Processing Charges

Repair and Maintenance:

Plant & Machinery

Building
Ceneral
Electric

Rent
Rates & Taxes

lnsurance
Travelling & Boarding Expenses

Legal & Professional

Sundry Balances Written Off
Provision for doubtful debts

Commission on sale

Delivery Expenses (lncluding Freight,Ooroi & Others)

Rebate & Discount
Loss on sale of investment

Bank Charges

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Provision against forfeiture of MIDC Land

Loss on Sale of Raw Material
Provision against tuff subsidy receivable

Miscellanmus

Note: Miscellaneous expenses lnclude payment to statutory auditor the details of which are as follows:

fu auditor:

-Statutory audit fee*

-Tax audit fee*

Other services

-Reimbursement of expenses

Total

r Previous year fee includes service tax and in current year fee doesn't include CST

Value of lndigenous & lmported Stores & Spars Consumption*

lmported

Total

* The break up of stores & spares have been disclosed in various heads of note 35 above as per delails given below:

Particulars

Repairs

Repairs and maintenance-Plant & Machinery

Repairs and maintenance-Electric

Total

( in Lakh)

Ended March

1,1

8,442 07
229.O7

702.64

46.08
175.07

23.04
101 .8'l

90.21

1 r 5.20
150.53

64.99
37.32
10.00

349.65
1,644.70

62.78
8.60

417.28

n

Year March

3 2017

10.35

2.s8

4.tl
r.33

18.57

tor the year ended

31 March 2017

s76.92

268.93

68.21

31.79

84s.85 100.00

162.26

660.55

845.85

6,269.31
203.70

1,O14.02

31.74
140.17

8.73
99.76
61 .63

r 05.48
137.68
147.87

16.94
181.39

222.49
957.33
341.92

11.85

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2018

t in Lakh %

951.28

160.18

85.59

14.41

(l in Lakh)

1111.46 100.00

Year ended

31 March 2018

Year ended

31 illarch 2017

126.30

976 43

8.73

1,111.46
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37,

35. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS [t in Lakh)

Particulars
Year Ended March

2017

Provision ABainst Corporate Cuarantee to Subsidiary

Provision for Diminution in value of investments in subsidiary

Provision for loans & advances to

Total

FIRSTTIME ADOPTION OF IND AS
This financial statement is the first financial statement that has been prepared in accordance with lnd AS together with the comparative period data as at
and for the year ended 3 1 st March 201 7, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The transition to lnd AS has been carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101-'Firsttime adoption of lndian Accounting Standards' with 1st April 20'l 6 as the transition date.
This note explains the exemptions availed by the company on first time adoption of lnd AS and the principal adjustments made by the Company in
restating its lndian CAAP financial statements as at I " April 201 6 and financial statements as at and for the year ended 3 1 st March 201 7 in accordance
with lnd AS 101.
Exemptions applied
lnd AS 10'l allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under lnd AS. The Company has,
accordingly, appl ied following exemptions:
a) The Company has elected to consider carrying amount of all items of property, plant and equipments measured as per lndian CAAP as recognized

in the financial statements as at the date of transition, as deemed cost at the date of transition. The effect of consequential changes arising on the
application ofother lnd AS has been adjusted to the deemed cost of Property, Plant & Equipment.

b) The Company has adopted to measure investments in subsidiaries at cost in accordance with lnd AS 27 and therefore has measured such
investments in its separate opening lnd A1, balance sheet at carryinB amount as per lndian CAAP at the date of transition in accordance with lnd AS
'101.

c) The Company has availed the exemption of fair value measurement of financial assets or liabilities at initial recognition and accordingly will apply
fair value measurement of financial assets or liabilities at initial recognition prospectively to transactions entered into on or after Ol st April 201 6.
However, the transition from lndian CAAP to lnd AS has not had a material impact.

d The estimates at 1" April 20'l 6 and at 31" March, 201 7 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian CAAP (after

adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from the following items under lndian CAAP did not require estimation:
- Fai r values of Financial Assets & Financial Liabi I ities
- lmpairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model
- Discount rates

The estimates used bythe Company to presentthese amounts in accordance with lnd AS reflect conditions as at 1" April, 2015 and 3'l'March, 201 7.
Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1''April 2016 and 31" March 201 7 and Total comprehensive income for the year ended 3l' March 201 7
l. Property, PlantandEquipment(lnvestmentProperty)

The Company has identified building property categorised under Fixed Asset as per lndian CAAP located in Maharashtra, Delhi & Punjab
amounting to {524.74 lakhs and t5'14.90 lakhs as on March 31, 201 6 and March 31 , 20'l 7. The same has been reclassified to lnvestment property
as per lnd AS.

l!. FairValuationof lnvestments
Under lndian CAAP, investments in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long term investments or current investments based on
the intended holding period and realisability. Long term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the
value of investments.
Current anvestments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. lnd AS requires such investments to be measured at fair value except investments in
subsidiaries, associates and ioint venture for which exemption has been availed. The transition from lndian CAAP to lnd AS not had a material
impact on fair valuation of investments.

ll!. Financial instruments measured at amortized cost
Under lndian GAAP, interest free loan to employees and such assets are recorded at their transaction value. Under lnd AS, these loans are to be
measured at amortized cost on the basis of effective interest rate method. The transition from lndian GAAP to lnd AS not had a material impact.

tV. Borrowings
Under lndian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amo(ised upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period.
Under lnd AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount offinancial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective
interest method. There are no material upfront charges paid for the acquisition of the borrowing. Therefore lnd AS transition has no impact on
transaction cost of Borrowi ngs.

V. Capitalgrant
Under lndian GAAP, certain capital grant received from Covernment as 'Promoter Contribution' is shown under the head 'reserve & surplus as

capital subsidy'. Under lnd AS, such grant istreated asdeferred incomeand is recognized as income overthe useful life ofthe assetsforwhich such
grant is received. This grant of {95.50 lacs pertains to the assets which has been fully depreciated before 'l'April 201 6, hence, the same has been
transferred to retained earnings as on 'l '' April 201 6.

Vl. Definedbenefitobligation
Under lnd AS, re.measurements i.e actuarial gains and losses are to be recognized in 'Other comprehensive income'and are notto be reclassified to
profit and loss in a subsequent period. Under the lndian CAAP, these re-measurements were forming part of the profit or loss. Therefore, actuarial
gain/loss amounting to t88.89 Lakhs for the financial year 2O16-17 has been recognized in OCI rhich was earlier recognized under Employee
benefits expense. However, the same has no impact on the total equity as at 31" March, 20'l 7.

Vll. Sale of goods
a. Under lndian CAAP, sale of goods was presented as net of excise duty. However, under lnd AS, sale of goods incl udes excise duty. Thus, sale

ofgoods under lnd AS has increased by t1 .08 Lakhs with a corresponding increase in other expenses.
b. Under lndian CAAP, turnover discount was shown as expense. However under lnd AS revenue is to be shown as net of turnover discount.

Accordingly,turnoverdiscountamountingto{131.'l l Lakhshasbeenreducedfromrevenuewithacorrespondingadjustmentinother
expenseS.

1 768s.1 3

9126.41
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c. Foreign exchange income on forward contracts and exchange fluctuation amounting to t408.40 lakhs for the year ended March 3 1 , 20 1 7 has

beenlho*n under the head under Other income as per lndian CAAP however as per lnd AS same is reclassified under lncome from

Operations as other operating income. However, there is no change in the equity.
Vlll. lnterest income

lnterest income earned from excess of the funds out of borrowings are parked in the form of fixed deposit for short tenure. This interest income is

netted offwith the interest expense incurred on such borrowings. Therefore, the interest income amounting to { 60 28 Lakhs as on 3.lu Marci 2O17

has been netted offwith interest expense with a corresponding adjustment in interest income. However, the same has no impact on the total equity

as at 3'l' March, 201 7.

lX. DeferredTax
Despite the fact that the net worth of the Company has been fully eroded in the current year, the Mana8ement is of the view that the company is an

opeiative company and with all necessary steps and continuinB professional management, sufficient taxable income will be available in the

specified period against which deferred tax asset would be adjusted.. ln view of the same, the financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

X, Statementofcashflows
The transition from lndian CAAP to lnd AS has not had a material impact on statement of cash flow.

Reconciliation of Equity as on 31st March 2017 and 1st April 2016

As at March, 31 2017 As at April, 1 2016

Notes
As per

lndian
CAAP

lnd AS

AdjustmentNo As per INQ AS

lnd AS As per IND
Adjudment AS

As per

lndian
GAAP

ASSTTS

Non<urrent ass€ts

a) Property, plant and equiPment

b) lnvestment Property

c) Capital work-in-progress

d) Other intangible assets

e) Financial assets

i) lnvestments
ii) Loans

iii) Other financial assets

0 Trade receivable
g) Defened tax assets (net)

h) Other non{urrent assets

Total Non Current Assets

Curlent assets

a) lnventories
b) Financial assets

i) lnvestments
ii) Trade and other receivables

iii) Cash and cash equivalents

iv) Bank balances other than above

v) Loans

vi) Other financial assets

c) Current tax assets

d) Other cu(ent assets

Total Current fusets

TOTAT ASSETS

EQUITY AND TIABITITIES

EQUITY
a) Equity share capital

b) Other equity

Total Equity

TIABII,ITIES

Non<urrent liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings
b) Long term provisions

c) Other non-current liabilities

Total Non Current tiabilities

Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables

iii) Other financial liabilities
b) Other current liabilities
c) Short term provisions

Total Current tiabilities
TOTAT EQUITY AND TIABITITIES

24,226.60

53 7.58
133.26

9,149.56
1s.00

2,331.02

(389.0s)

514.90

(1 2s.84)

23,837.s5
514.90
s37.58

7.42

23,729.22

663.58
137.92

9,149.56

2,530.37

(387.01 )

524.74

23,342.21
524.74
663.s8

0.19

9,149.56
35.00

2,530.37

9, r 49.56
35.00

2,331.02

5,01 6.1 8

1 ,097.40

5,01 6.r 8
1,097.40

5,016 18

1,470.43

5,016.',I8
1,470.43

42,526.61 42,526.61 42,697.27 35.00 42,732.27

2
7,743.10

5.78 5.78

7,681 .47

26r.58
440 93

32.33
1,246.66

415.47
2,210.82

7,681.47
26'1 58
440 93

32.33
1,246.66

415.47
2,210.82

7,743.10 7,295.05

1 8.34

7,411 .88

626.06

4,655.60

626

7,295.05

18.34

7,411.88
277 75

348.31
46.27

1 ,86-1.72
4s0.82

2,268.06

(348.3r)

348.3r
(4,609.33)

1 ,861.72
450.82

2,261.80

20,038.1 4 20,038.14 20,013.20 19,978.20

62,564.75 62,564.75 62,710.47 62,710.47

il
.l

2,232.54
8,510.47

2,232.54

8,510.47

2,232.54

8,509.66

2,232.54
8,509.66

10,743.01 10,743.01 10,742.20 (0.00) 10,742.20

2

16,421.92
43.38

16,421.92
43.38
16 8l

213.08
16.81

19,370.26
2 r 3.08

19,370.26

r 6.81 16.81

1 6,465.30 16.81 16,482.11 19,583.34 16.81 19,600.15

3

1 8,649.68
6,884.76

9,816.'l I
5.89

18,649.68

6,884.76
9,420.19

379.11

5.89

16,152.99
6,372.62

16,152.99
6,372.62
9,325.15

293.45
223.91

9,325.1 5
(9,341.96)9,635.41

223.91

35,355.44 06.81) 3s,339.53 32,384.93 (15.81) 32,368.12

62,564.75 0.00 62,sU.75 62,710.47 (0.00) 62,710.47

1

9,420.19
(9,437.00\

(137.n;

35.00
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Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive lncome for the Year Ended March 31,2017
(l in Lakh)

Particulars Notes As per lndian GAAP lnd AS Adjunment Year ended March
No. 31

Revenue operations
Less : Excise duty
Other income
Total Revenue (l)

Expenses

Cost of Material consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods

Excise duty on sale of goods

Purchase of traded goods

Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Finance cost

Total expenses (ll)

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l - ll = lll)

Exceptional item (lV)

Profit before tax (lll - lV = V)

Tax expense: (Vl)

(-) Current tax

C) Deferred tax

Profit for the period from continuing operations After Tax (V

vt = vil)

Other Comprehensive lncome (Xll)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i)Remeasurement of def ined benef it obligation

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period (Xl + Xtl = Xlll)
(Comprising Profit ([oss) and Other Comprehensive income
for the period)

52,007.50
1692.45\

- 1.08
8,766.93
5,396.83 88.90
2,065.05

vll 14,270.36 (131.11)
vlll 5,679.87 (60.28)

vI

vilt

85,647.84
(1.08)

1,869.95

277.29
1.08

(468.68)

85,925.1 3

0
1,401.27

87,516.71 (190.31) 87,726,40

52,007.50
i.692.4s\

1.08

8,766.93
5,485.73
2,065.05

14,139.25

5,6r 9.58
87,494.09 (r01.42) 87,392.57

22.62 (88.89) $6.2n

22.52 (88.89) (66.2n

22.62 (88.89) (66.27\

88.89 88 89

22.62 0.00 22.62

38. FINANCIAT INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY

The carrying value and fair value of the financial instruments at the end of each reporting period is as follows:
( in takh)

Particulars Notes At cost At

Amortised

At fair value through P&L

Designation Mandatory

upon initial
recognition

Al fair value through OCI

Designation Mandatory

upon initial
recognition

Total

Grrying
value

Total tair
ValueNo.

Cost

fusets:

i) lnvestments (Non Cunent)

ii) Trade receivable (Non Cunent)

iii) Trade and other receivables
(Current)

iv) Cash and cash equivalents

v) Bank balances other than above

vi) Loans (Cunent)

vii) Other financial assets(Curren0

Total

tiabilities:

i) Bonowings (Non Current)

ii) Borrowings (Cunent)

iii) Trade payables (Current)

iv) Other financial liabilities
(Current)

Total

03

6

23.15 23.1 5

279.23

2,750.75

38.95

129.30

1 6.58

277.89

23.15

279.23

2,750.75

38.9s

r 29.30

t6.58

277.89

279.23

l1

12

r3

14

15

2,750.75

38.95

1 29.30

1 6.58

277.89

3,492.70 23.15 3,515.85 3,515.85

20

23

24

25

13,223.84

24,532.20

3,769.14

28,558.87

13,223.84

24,532.20

3,769.14

13,223.84

24,532.20

3,769.14

28,558.87 28,ss8.87

70,084.05 70,084.05 70,084.05
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K in Lakh)

Particulars Notes At cost At

Amortised

At fair value through P&[

Designation Mandatory

upon initial
recognition

At fair value through OCI

Designation Mandatory

upon initial
recognition

Total

Grrying
value

Total Fair

ValueNo.
Cost

tu at March 3I,2017

Assets:

i) lnvestments (Non current)

ii) Loans (Non current)

iii) Other financial assets (Non

current)

iv) lnvestments (current)

v) Trade and other receivables

(current)

vi) Cash and cash equivalents

vii) Bank balances other than above

viii) Loans (current)

ix) Other financial assets (current)

Total

liarbilities:

i) Borrowings (Non current)

ii) Bonowings (Current)

iii) Trade payables ((Current)

iv) Other financial liabilities
(Cunent)

Total

As at April 1,2016

Assets:

i) lnvestments (Non current)

ii) Loans (Non current)

iii) Other financial assets (Non

current)

iv) lnvestments (Current)

v) Trade and other receivables

(Current)

vi) Cash and cash equivalents

vii) Bank balances other than above

viii) Loans (Cunent)

ix) Other financial assets (Current)

Total

Liabilities:

i) Borrowings (Non Cunent)

ii) Borrowings (Current)

iii) Trade payables (Current)

iv) Other financial liabilities
(Cunent)

Total

3

4

9,126.41 23.15 9,149.56

35.00

9,1 49.56

35.00

l0

3s.00

2,331.02

7,681.47

261.58

440.93

32.33

1,246.66

5.78

2,331.02 2,331 .02

5.78 5.78

l'l
12

l3
14

15

1l

12
'13

14

l5

7,581.47

261.58

440,93

32.33

1,246.66

7,681.47

261.58

440.93

32.33

1,246.66

9,126 41 12,028 99 23.1 5 5.78 21,184.33 21t184.33

20

23

24

25

20

23

24

25

16,421.92

18,U9.68

6,884.76

9,420.19

16,421.92

r 8,649.68

6,884.76

16,421.92

18,U9.68

6,884.76

51,375.55 51,376.5s 5r,376.55

3

4

5

10

9,126.41 23.15 9,149.56

3s.00

2,530.37

18.34

7,411.89

277.75

348.31

46.27

1,861.72

9,149.56

35.00

2,530.37

1 8.34

7,411.89

277.75

348.31

46.27

1,861.72

35.00

2,530.37

I 8.34

7,411.89

277.75

348.3 1

46,27

1,861.72

9,126.41 12,51 t.31 23.1 5 r8.34 21,679.20 21,679.20

19,370 26

16,152.99

6,372.62

19,370.26

l 6,1 52.99

6,372.62

19,370.26

16,152.99

6,372.62

9,325.1 5 9,325.15 9,32s.15

.02 51,221,02 51,221.02

(b) Fair Value Measurement

(i) Fair Value hierarchy

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - lnputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

38
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(ii) fhe following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value: As at 31st March 2O18

Particulars Fair Value measurement usin8

Long Term lnvestrnents

Fair Value through Profit and Los (designated upon initial recognition)

Current lnvestments

Fair Value throush Profit and Loss

23.1 5

fiD fhe following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value: As at 31st March 2017

Particulars Fair Value measurement

Fair Value Level 1 t level 3

0

Long Term lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (designated upon initial recognition)

Current lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Los 5.78

(ii) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value: As at l st April 2016

Particulars Fair Value measurement

tair Value

23.1 5

level 1 2 3

Long Term lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Los (designated upon initial recognition)

Current lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Los 18.34

39. EARNINC PER SHARE R in Lakh)

Particulars
fuat tuat

2017March 3l

The basic and diluted eaming per slnre is as undet:

Net Profit after tax attributable to quity share holders ({ in Lakhs)

Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding

Nominal value of per equity shares (in 0
Basic earnings per share (0

Diluted earnings per share (0
tThere are no potential equity shares

40. CONTINGENT tlABlLlTlES NOT PROVIDED FOR lN RESPECT OFr

(42,388,30)

22,290,957

10

(1 90.1 6)

fl90.16)

(66jn
22,290,957

l0
(0.30)

(0.30)

(( in takh)

Particulars

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as

Bills discounted with bankers.

Lener of credit & bank guarantee issued

Enhancement Compensation on WM land

lncome Tax demands under appeal

Service Tax demands under appeal (net of (l .41 Lakhs; Previous Year tl .91 Lakhs)

Demand of PSEB for voltage surcharge and DSA

Subordination letter for not to withdraw the loan from foreign subsidiary until negative equity

situation reverses

fuat
3l March 2017

'18.09

0.00

128.83

221.25

7,572.81

1 28.83

174.01

774.U
12.20

1 04.56

237.33

953.01

12.70

0.00

237.33

23.15

fuat
3l March 2018

66
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41 Litigation status of the company as on 31 st March 2018 are as follows:

a) The following is a summarized status of pending litigation involving Vardhman Polytex Limited against the Company:

Figures in brackets in aforesaid note represent previous year figures

b) The following is a summarized status of pending litigation involving Vardhman Polyex Limited by the Company:

Figures in brackets in aforesaid note represent previous year figures

Obligations and commitments outstanding:42

in Lakh)

(t in takh)

Disclosed as Contingent
Liability

Amount Depmited
Under Protest

Amount lnvolved Provision MadeNalure oI
Dispute

Name of Statute

lndirect Taxation

Direct Taxation

Labour laws

42.34

142.34)
1.41

(1.9r)

8.33
(5.48)

220.00
(220.00)

(1 04.s6)

2.20
(2.20t

300.30

1 58.52
(1 s8.s2)

42.34

{.220.79)
-14.11

(14.1 1)

18.09
(0.46)

953.02

1774.Ul

(r 04.s6)

Central Excise Act 2002

Service Tax Act

Puniab Vat Act

lncome Tax Act

Wealth Tax Act

ESI Act

PSEB

417.21

.572.67)
15.38

(33.s3)

196.12
(200.94)

1,274.26
(1,094.9n

2.11
(2.1 1)

2.20

12.20\

(1 04.s6)
Commercial
matters

1 ,027.56
(1,r 14.56)

274.28
(376.49).

1,907.28
(2,010.98)

458.82
(l 58.s2)

ii)

)

iii)

iv)

Total

s.

No.

Nature of Dispute Amount lnvolved Provision Made Amount Decreed in favour

of the Company

(under execution)

Balance Amount

Still contested by the

Company

1 Commercial matter - LeBal cases

customers

563.55

1334,75)

5l 8.90
(1 sl.7l)

44.65

(1 83.04)

As at

31 March 2018

As at

31 March 2017

a)

b)

Enimated value of contracts remaininS to be executed on capital account and not 21.26

provided for (net of advances)

Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on other than capital account and 2,782.47 7,839.92

not provided for (net of advances)-Pending cotton purchase commitment

43 Derivative hedged instruments and un-hedged foreign currency exposure

a) Particulars of hedged foreign currency forward contracts and derivatives outstanding at the balance sheet date

Currency tu at 31 March 2018

ln million t in talh
tu al 31 March 2017

ln million { in lalh

Foruard cover (trade receivables)

Total

USD

2.98 2,073.12

2.98 2,073.12

Currency tu at 31 March 2018

ln million t in lakh
fu at 31 March 2017

ln million t in l-akh

Trade Receivables

Loan (including interest, current year-Nil,

previous year-l NIL)

Total USD

USD

USD 0.s5

3.90

0.55

2,535.30

370.73

lnventories, loans & advances, trade receivables and other current / non-current assets are reviewed annually and in the opinion of the

Management do not have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, less than the amount at which they are stated in the

Balance Sheet.

0.55 365.04

44

b) Particulars of foreign currency exposure un'hedged at the balance sheet date

365.04

4.45 2,906.03
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45 Employee benefit obligation

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan recognized as expenses for the year are as under:-

i)

ii)

iii)

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund

Employer's contribution to Superannuation Fund

Employer's contribution to Pension Scheme

For year ended

31 March 2018

170.17

6.30

84.84

For dre year mded
31 March 2017

208.1 I
7.95

96.42

Defined Benefit Plan

The Employees' C ratuity Fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligations.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances o{ Defined Benefit Obligation
({ in Lakh)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended

31 March 2017
Defined beneJit obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cosl

lnterest cost

Actuarial gain / (los)

Benefit paid

Past Service Cost

Defined obligation at year end

409.s0

55.96
29.09
14.85

(1 42.00)
r 0.00

502.49
55.1 6

35.70
(89. r 0)

(9s.7s)

377.41 409.50

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets (l in Lakh)

For the year ended

31 March 2018
tor the year ended

31 March 2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the Year

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain / (los)

Employer contribution
Benefit paid

Fair value of plan assets at year end

Reconciliation of fair value of assets & obligation

569.s2 532.90

(t in Lakh)

For the year ended

31 March 2018

tor the year ended

31 March 20t7
Fair value of plan assets at the end

Present value of obligation

Net asseV(liability) recognized in the balance sheet

(a) Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

569.52

377.41

192.11

532.90

409.50

123.40

(l in Lakh)

tor the year ended

3l March 2018

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Past Service Cost

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

55.96

29.09
(37.86)

10.00

56.16

35.70
(38.1 0)

57.20

532.90 491.66
37.86 38.10
(1.241 3.14

For the year ended

31 March 2017

53.76
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(b) Other comprehensive(income)/expense(Remeasurement) (t in Lakh)

For the year ended

31 March 2018

For the year ended

31 March 2017

Actuarial (gain)/loss obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss -plan assets

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity Ior the Company's plans are shown below :

14.85

1.25

16.10

(89.10)

(3.14)

(92.24\

For the year ended

31 March 2018

For the year ended

31 March 2017

Discount rate

Anrition rate

Expected rate of return on assets

Mortality rate

Salary rise

Amount for the current year and previous 4 years in respect of gratuity are as followsr

7.75%

5.00%

7.75%

IALM 200G08 Ultimate

5.00%

For the year

ended

31 March 2018

t in l-akh

For the year

ended

31 March 2017
{ in takh

For the year

ended

31 March 2016
( in Lakh

For the year

ended

31 March 2015

t in lakh

For the year

ended

31 March 2014

t in Lakh

Defined benefit obligation

Plan assets

Surpluy'(deficit)

Experience adjustment on plan

assets

Experience adjustment on plan

liabilities

377.41

569.52

192.11

(1.24)

409.50

532.90

123.40

3.14

502.49

s03.1 I
0.69

(1.70)

4.90

453.54

419.88
(33.66)

13.27)

398.94

380.96
(23.63)

3.21

31.23fl17.1s) fl s8.96) (1 1 .8s)

Employee Benefit obligation continued..
Leave Encashment (unf unded)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation

tor the year ended

31 March 2018

t in lakh

For the year ended

31 March 2017

t in Lakh

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Actuarial (gain) /los
Benefit paid

Defined obligation at year end

year 49.27

15.35

3.50

r 8.09

137.78\
48.43

21 3.08

12.43

15.14
(36.06)

0 ss.l2)
49.27

Reconciliation of fair value of assets & obligations

For the year ended

31 ltilarch 2018

tor the year ended

31 March 2017

t in takh(tn
Fair value of plan assets at the end

Present value of obligation

Amount recognized in balance sheet

(a) Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

48.43

48.43

49.27

49.27

tor the year ended

31 March 2018

t in lakh

For the year ended

31 March 2017
( in Lakh

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Expected relurn on plan assets

Amount rrognized in the statement of profit & los

'15.35

l.s0
12.43

1 5.14

18.85 27.56

a aadt-t)h

5.00%
1 1tdI.IJrc

IALM 2006{8 Ultimate

5.00%
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(b) Other comprehensive(income)/expense(Remeasurement)

For the year ended

31 March 2018

t in Lakh

For the year ended

31 March 2017

t in l-akh

Actuarial (gain)fl oss obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss alan assets

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

18.09

18.09

(36.06)

(36.06)

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment for the Company's plans are shown below :

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 172018

Discount rate

Attrition rate

Expected rate of return on assets

Mortality rate

5alary rise

Related party disclosures in accordance with IND AS24 "Related Party" :-

i) List of related parties and relationships (as identified & certified by management)

7.75%

5.001"

NA

|ALM 2005{8
Ultimate

s.00%

7.75%
5.00%

NA

IALM 200648
Ultimate

5.00%
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Particulars 2017-18 201G17

a) Subsidiary Company

b) Key management personnel

c) Relative of KMP

d) Enterprise over which KMP

is able to exercise

significant influence

F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd

F M Hammerle Verwaltung Gmbh, Austria

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal

Mr. Adish Oswal

Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal (Upto 31.03.2018)

Mr. Sushil Sharma (upto 5th July, 201 7)

Mr. Pankaj Agarwal (w.e.f 1st November, 201 7)

Mr. Kuldeep Singla

Mr. Abhinav Oswal

Mrs. Manju Oswal

Ms. Aketa Oswal

Mrs. Rakhi Oswal

Oswal lndustrial Enterprise Private Limited

Panchsheel Textile Mfg & Trading Co. Pvt Ltd

Enakshi lnvestments Private Limited.

Liberty Mercanti le Co.(P)Ltd.

Allepy lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Kent lnvestments Private Limited.

Ruby Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Boras lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Cagan Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Pioneer Mercantile lndia Private Limited.

Adesh lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Calgary lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Oswal Infratech Pvt. Ltd.

Oswal Tradecom Pvt. Ltd.

Oswal Holding Pvt. Ltd.

Nightangle Dealcom Pvt. Ltd.

Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd

Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd

Vardhman Amarante Private Limited

F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd

F M Hammerle Verwaltung Cmbh, Austria

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal

Mr. Adish Oswal

Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal

Mr. Sushil Sharma

Mr.Parvinder Singh (upto 31th August 2016)

Mr. Kuldeep Singla (w.e.f lst September 2016)

Mr. Abhinav Oswal

Mrs. Manju Oswal

Ms. Aketa Oswal

Mrs. Rakhi Oswal

Ms. Shruti Coyal (upto 16th July 2016)

Oswal lndustrial Enterprise Private Limited

Panchsheel Textile Mfg & Trading Co.Pr,t Ltd

Enakshi lnvestments Private Limited.

Liberty Mercantile Co.(P)Ltd.

Allepy lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Kent lnvestments Private Limited.

Ruby Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Boras lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Cagan Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Pioneer Mercantile lndia Private Limited.

Adesh lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Calgary lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Oswal lnfratech fut. Ltd.

Oswal Tradecom Pvt. Ltd.

Oswal Holding Pvt. Ltd.

Nightangle Dealcom tut. Ltd.

Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd

Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd

Vardhman Amarante Private Limited



Vardhman Polytex Limited o@o
ii) Transaction with related parties during the yearr 1r in Lakh)

particulars Subsidiaries KMP Relatives of KMP Enterprise over which Total
KMP is able to

exercise Significant

Loan received
Loan repaid
Advance received back against

goods

Sale of goods

Purchase of fabridbed sheet
(net)

Advance given against goods

Advance given(net)

Expense reimbursement
(Receivable)

Rent paid

.lob charges Paid

Rent received
lnterest received

lnterest paid

Remuneration
Managerial remuneration
Cheque received against

advance
Corporate guarantee

OUTSTANDINC BATANCES AT
YEAR END
Corporate guarantee by
subsidiary
lnvestment in equity shares

Unsecured loan

Amount payabld(recoverable)

732.OO

452.00
649.O4

399.72
68.52

644.35
380.57
1 08.36

40.85
29.63

1.31

295.75
23.93
54.43

193.49
650.00

1,500.00

9,149.04
370.00

46

Advance 17.8-l

Related party disclosuresr

Transactions during the year-

a) Loan received from KMP includes loan received from Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal of { Nil lakh(previous year {539.50 lakh) and loan

received from enterprise over which KMP has significant influence is 146.50 lakh (Previous year-165.5 lakh) from Altfort Merchants
(P) Ltd and tl 554.06 lakh from Vardhman Amrante Private Limited (Previous year-{1 27.00 lakh ).

b) LoanrepaidtoKMPincludesloanrepaidtoMr.AshokKumarOswal oftl60.81 lakh(Previousyear{325.00 lakh)andloanrepaid
to enterprise over KMP T Nil (previous year { Nil lakh) to Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd and {1 554.60 lakh (Previous year-{l27 lakh) to

Vardhman Amrante Private Limited.

c) Advance receivd against goods includes advance received from Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Ltd. of { Nil lakh (previous year

t649.04 lakh).

d) Sale of goods includes transactions of t Nil lakh (Previous year-{5.29 lakh) with F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited & {637.98 lakh

(Previous year-{394.43 lakh) with Oswal lndustrial Enterprises (P) Ltd and {18.84 lakh ( Previous Year -{ Nil lakh) from Vardhman

Amrante Private Limited.

e) Purchase of fabrics/bed sheets includes transactions of {55.13 lakh (Previous year {68.52 lakh) with F.M. Hammerle Textiles

Limited {290.10lakhfromOswal lndusrial Enterprises(P) Ltd.&{25.61 LakhfromVardhmanAmrante(P)Ltd

fl Advance given against goods includes transactions with Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Ltd.of t N il lakh (previous year {644.35 Lakh).

g) Advance given (net of funds received) includes transactions with F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd. tl 23.97 lakh (Previous Year {380.57
lakh).

h) Expenses reimbursement to F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd. of {21 .1 3 lakh (Previous year{103.67 lakh)

i) Rent paid to Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal 149.52 lakh (previous year{40.85 lakh).

i) JobchargespaidtoOswal lndustrial Enterprises(P)Ltd.{2.28 lakh(previousyeart29.63 lakh)

k) RentreceivedincludesrentfromOswal lndustrial Enterprises(P) Ltd{0.48 lakh(Previousyeartl .31 lakh).

l) lnterest received from subsidiary includes { Nil lakh (previous year-{ 295.75 lakh) from F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited.

m) lnterest paid to KMP includes {1 8.54 lakh (Previous year {1 6.76 lakh )paid to Mr Ashok Kumar Oswal.

n) lnterest paid to enterprises over which KMP has significant influence {15.23 lakh paid to Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd. (previous year

t5.95 lakh) and (64.87 lakh to Vardhman Amrante Private Limited (Previous year-{1 .22 lakhs ).

207G17 201G17 201G17201G17
t 92.50
127.OO

u9.04

394.43-

M4.35

4.59

0.09
1 I 50

7.17

29.63
1.31

5.29
68.52

380.57
103.67

2g5.7;

650 00

2.517.81

539.50
325.00

16.76
36.38

193.49

254.50

40 85

I

l8 05

160.8',I

123.97
21.13

123.97
21.13

1,554.06

656.82
3 r 5.71

556.82
370.84

'18.54

25.48
107.96

49.52
2.28
0.48

98.64
30.67

107.96

2.28
0.48

1,600.00 1,600.00

9,148.95 9,t.18 95

195

80

009

0

1 62.00
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o) Remuneration includes transaction with Mr. Abhinav Oswal {5. 19 lakh (previous year {18.05 lakh), Mr. Kuldeep Singla t] 7.91
lakh (previous year{9.85 lakh) & Mr. Sushil Sharma {3.62 lakh (Previous year{1 3.95 lakh)till 5th Ju1y,2018, Pankaj Agarwal t3.95
lakh (w.e.f I st November, 2018)

p) Managerial Remuneration includes transactions with Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal 129.27 lakh (previous year t72.06lakh), Mr. Adish
Oswal{24.38 lakh(previousyeartTO.T4 lakh) andMr.AshokGoyalt54.3'l lakh(previousyear{50.69 lakh).

q) Cheques received against advance includes cheques received from F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd. t N il lakh (Previous Year t650.00
lakh).

Closing balance at the year endr
a) Corporate Cuarantee to subsidiary company: Cuarantee outstanding given to lenders of F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd. t8,233.00

lakh (Previous Yeart8,233.O0 lakh).

b) Corporate Cuarantee by subsidiary company: Cuarantee outstanding received from F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd. tl,600.00 lakh
(Previous Year {1 ,600 lakh)

c) lnvestmentoft9,l49.O4lakh(previousyear19,149.O4lakh) includes investmentinF.M.HammerleTextilesLtd.?9,126.41 lakh
(Previous year19,126.41 lakh), in Oswal lndustrial Enterprise (P) Ltd. t0.09 lakh (Previous year{0.09 lakh), in F.M. Hammerle
Venvaltung CmbH, Austria t22.54 lakh (Previous Year{22.54|akh).

d) Unsecuredloansof{255.69 lakh(previousyear{370 lakh) includesloantakenoftl62.00 lakh(previousyear{1 15.50 lakh) from
AltfortMerchants(P) Ltdand {93.69 lakh(previousyear(254.50 lakh)fromMrAshokKumarOswal.

e) Advance of {3064.96 lakh (previous year{2517.81 lakh) includes, F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd. t2829.51 lakh (Previous year
<2282.36 lakh) and in F.M. Hammerle Venvaltung CmbH, Austria {235.45 lakh (Previous Year {235.45 lakh). ln previous year
subsidiary company had issued cheque against advance worth {650 lakhs which did not materialize due stressful position of subsidiary
company, th us the advance given to subs id iary company increased by net amount of t547. 1 5 Lakhs.

Financial Risk Marragement

The principal financial assets of the Company include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances that derive directly
from its operations. The principal financial liabilities ofthe company, include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and the
main purposeof thesefinancial liabilities istofinancethedaytodayoperationsof thecompany.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of
these risks and that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.
This note explains the risks which the company is exposed to and policies and framework adopted by the company to manage these risks:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financia I instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate rlsk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans & borrowings and deposits. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as
at 31 March 201 8 and 31 March 2017.
() Foreign Currency risk management

The company undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
4fl5e.

(iD Interest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the income and operatinB cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company's debt obliBations with floating interest rates, which are included in interest bearing loans and borrowings in these
financial statements. The company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest
rate risk, since neither the carrying amount northe future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. A change of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate instruments at the reporting date would have
increased./(decreased) profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown below. With all other variables held constant, the
Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

47.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instrument is at its fair value: 
R in Lakh)

Particulars fu at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Variable rate instruments

Long term borrowings

Cunent maturities of long term debt

Short term borrowinqs

16421.92

4532.5

1 8649.68
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tn

Particulars As at 31st March 2017

lncreasd in 100 basis 396.04

tiquidity Risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The

Company hai outstanJing bank borrowings. The Company is passing through a phase of liquidity stress and there is a mismatch in cash

flowi. Due to this, the capacities of the Company are running at sub-optimal level. The Company is working towards devising a plan

which would correct the cash flow mismatch. The Company believes that the Company would be able to generate enough cash inflows

to meet its working capital requirements in the medium and long run. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate

reserves, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company.

Credit risk has always been managed by the company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring

the credit worthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of

lnd AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company has exposure to credit risk

from trade receivable balances on sale of Yarns & Readymade Carments. The Company ensures concentration of credit does not

significantly impair the financial assets since the customers to whom the exposure of credit is taken are well established and reputed

in-dustries engaged in their respective field of business. The creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit in the

normal course of the business is monitored regularly.

The Foltowing is the detail of revenues generated from top five customer of the company and allowance for life time expected credit

loss:

(< tn

fu at March 2017

(a) Revenue from top five customers

- Amount of Sales

- % oftotal Sales

(b) Revenue fiom top five customers

Balance at the begining of the period

Recognized during the Year

Balance At the end of the period

1 3092.1 8

15.54%

327.51

10

337.51

47A

48

The maximum exposure to credit risk atthe reporting date is the carryingvalue of trade receivables as disclosed at Note 6 & 1 1.

Writeoffpolicy

The financials assets are written off in case there is no reasonable expectation of recovering from the financial.

CapitalManagement

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. The director's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain

future development of the business. No Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 3l st March

201 8 and 31 st March 201 7.

a) Value of imports calculated on C! F basis in respect of: (accrual basis)

For the year ended

31 March 2017

[akh ( in lakh

Raw 6,215.29

Components & spare parts 27 4.47

Capital Coods

Total

1,050.42

7,540.18

b) Expenditure in foreign currency on account of:

For the year ended tor the year ended

31 March 20lB 31 March 2017

t in l-akh { in l-akh

Commission, consultancy, travelling, interest and others 92.47 248.29

r 5264.85

24.74'L

337.s1

1,386.39

1 80.03

1,566.42
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49. Earnings in foreign currency

[or year ended

31 March 2017

{ in lalh
Export on FOB basis 32,062.60

50. The details of prior period expenses are as follows: (t in

Padiculars tor the year ended lr{arch

2017

Bonus

Total

51. i) ThecreditfacilitiesoftheCompanywererestructuredunderCDRmechanismvideLOAdatd2Sll2120l2.TheCompanycompliedwith
the conditions stipulated in the LOA. Reserve Bank of lndia, vide its circular datd 12/O212O18 has withdrawn the Corporate Debt
Restructuring Scheme. The accounts ofthe Company have been declared NPA byall of its lenders. Refer Note 20 forfurtherdetails.

ii) As the company accounts have been declared as NPA, therefore no interest in being charged by the lenders post the NPA classification.
Keepingthe accrual concept in consideration, the company has provided for interest based upon terms ofthe CDR package.

iii) Despite the fact that the net worth of the Company has been fully eroded in the current year, the Management is of the view that the
company is an operative company and with all necessary steps and continuing professional management, sufficient taxable income will
be available in the specified period against which deferred tax asset would be adjusted.. ln view of the same. the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

52. During the previous year, the Company had credited profit of t396.44 lakh due on payment of FCCB liability (Total Liability as on 3ll03
/201 7 being1868.64 lakh). Outof the above mentioned FCCB liabilityt 365.04 lakh is srilloutstanding as on 31lO3l2O1O.

53. The Central Covernment vide its letters dated 1 8.1 1 .201 5 has approved the re-appointment and increase in the remuneration of Mr.
Ashok Kumar Oswal, Managing Director and Mr. Adish Oswal, Managing Director(Corporate & Business Affairs) of the Company w.e.f
O1|O4/2O15till 3l103/20lSundersection'196,197,l98readwithScheduleVofthe CompaniesAct,20l3.Theremunerationduring
the currentyear has been paid to them as perthe said approval.

54. The Company is paying rentals for office premises taken on rent which are not in the nature of operating lease agreements. Therefore,
disclosure requirements of lN D AS-1 7 are not applicable.

55. ln accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standard on impairment of Assets, ( IND A$36), the management has made assessment
ofassets in use & considering the business prospects related thereto, no provision is considered necessary in these accounts on account of
impairment of assets.

56. Details of loans and advances in nature of loans to subsidiaries, parties in which Directors are interested and investments by the loan in
the shares of the company as required by clause 53(0 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 as

follows: 
ft in Lakh)

Ortstanding

amount as at

2017-18

Maximum amount

outstanding during the

financial year 2017-18

Outstanding

amount as at

201G17

Maximum amount

outdanding during the

financial year 2016-17

FM Hammerle Textiles Ltd

Oswal lndustrial Enterprise (P) Ltd

FM Hammerle Venvaltung CmbH, Austria

2,829.15

235.45

2,662.93

r60.01

257.26

2,282.3s

235.45

2,662.93

160.01

257.26

57. The company has given loans / advances to various companies. Amount outstanding at year end is as follows:

Description fuat
,vkrh 31,2018

t in lalh

fuat
March 31,2017

( in Lakh

Opening Balance

Add: Given during the year

Less: Rreived back during the year

Closing Balame

81.36

21.13
(1 02.49)

461.93

374.55
(755.12)

81.36

The above loans have been given for business purpose. The company has charged interest on these loans @10% to 14% per annum
(P.Y. 9.5% to r4.40%).

The balances of Trade Receivables, Loan and Advances, Deposits and Trade Payables are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and

subsequent adjustments, if any. During the year, letters have been sent to various parties with a request to confirm their balances as on
3lstMarch,20l8. Exceptfortheprovisioncreatedagainstthesereceivables,theyarerealizableaspermanagementofthecompany.

58.

vuo
31 [hrch 2018

{ in Lrkh

11,9U.97

0.72

0.72
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The business of company falls within a single primary segment viz, Textile and hence, the disclosure requirement of IND AS - 108
'Operating segment' is not applicable.

Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year classification.

59.

60.

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:{0071 1N

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No. 519347

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOAR,D OF DIR,ECTORS OF VARDHMAN POTYTEX LIMITED

Place
Date

Ludhiana
3fth May 2018

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DlN{0009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DtN{0009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officer)



Vardhman Polytex Limited - Consolidated

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of VARDHMAN POTYTEX tlMlTED
Report on the Consolidated !nd AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated lnd AS financial
statements of VARDHMAN POLYTEX LIMITED ("the Holding
Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the
Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2018, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated lnd AS Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated lnd AS financial statements in
terms of the requirements of the Companies Acl, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement oichanges in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Croup in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the
lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section .133 of
the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Croup are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets ofthe Croup and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consol idated lnd AS f inancial statements by the Di rectors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated lnd
AS financial statements based on our audit. While conducting the
audit. we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated lnd AS financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated lnd AS

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding

Company's preparation of the consolidated lnd AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made, as

well as evaluatingthe overall presentation ofthe consolidated lnd AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report
referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Note No. 52 of the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements
regarding crediting a profit of <396.44 lakhs due on payment of
FCCB liability to the statement of profit & loss during the previous
year (March 31 ,2o1n which should have been credited in the
Consolidated statement of profit & loss on payment of FCCB liability
which is still outstanding to the tune of 554,160 USD as on March
31 ,2018 is not in compliance with the requirements of para27 olthe
lnd AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements w.r.t. preparation of
financial statements on accrual basis. Consequently, the profit and
loss has been overstated by the above mentioned amount.

We further report that, had the impact of our observations made in
para above been considered, the net loss and the net worth, for the
period ended, would have increased and decreased respectively by
t396.44 lakhs.

Qualified Opinion

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter
described in the above para of "Basis for Qualified Opinion" of our
report, the aforesaid consolidated lnd As financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Croup as at March 31 , 2018, and its consolidated profit,
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equ ity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Mafter

We draw attention to the following matters:

i) Note No. 37 (lX) of the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements
regarding preparation of the Consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis notwithstanding the facts that the Croup has

accumulated losses resulting in erosion of networth. Keeping in view
the above, the Croup has continued deferred tax asset (at the same
levels as Iast year) considering virtual certainty that sufficient taxable
income will be available during specified period against which such
deferred tax asset/MAT Credit Entitlement can be adjusted.

The independent auditor of F.M. Hammerle Textiles limited
(Subsidiary Company) in their audit report on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31,2018 have drawn Emphasis
ofMafter paragraphs incorporated by us as under:

i) The company as on the date of the balance sheet has accumulated
losses of {23318.94 lacs which has eroded 100% of its share capital
and the company's current liabilities has exceeded its current assets
as at the ba lance sheet date. U nder sick ind ustrial compan ies (specia I

provisions) act (SISA) of 1985, the company had been classified as

"sick company " under section 15 of said act and accordingly a

76



Vardhman Polytex Limited - Consolidated

reference had been filed with board of industrial and financial
reconstruction (BIFR). w.e.f. from 1st December ,2016, ministry of
finance vide notifications no's, S.O. 3568(E) and 3569(E) , has

dissolved BIFR due to applicability of insolvency and bankruptcy
code. These conditions raise doubt about the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. The management of the company is

working on reviving the company by exploring possibilities of
finding different resolutions plans for its revival. ln view of this the
accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties to the

recoverability and classifications of assets carrying amounts or the

amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary

should the company be unable to continue as a Soing concern.

ii) The company is in shortage of one independent directors more
fully explained in the said note which is inconsistent with the

requirements of the act.

iii) There is an uncertainry related to the outcome of the matter
pending with Hon'ble high court of state of Punjab and Haryana at

Chandigarh which is pending adjudication in relation to filling
petition u/s 397,398 of the erstwhrle companies act, 1956. The

amou nt of compensation is not determ inable at th is stage.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of the above matters'

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of tlvo subsid iaries namely,

F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited and F.M. Hammerle Verwaltung

Cmbh, Austria, whose financial statements reflect Total Assets of
<11,777.57 lacs as at March 31, 2018, Total Revenue{2,1 38.31 lacs

and Total Loss {4,456.33 lacs for the period ended March 31 , 20.1 8,

as considered in the consolidated lnd AS financial statements. The

financial statements of Ws F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited have

been audited by other Auditors whose report has been furnished to

us by the management. Also financial results of lv1/s F.M. Hammerle
Verwaltung Cmbh, Austria are unaudited and have been furnished to
us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated lnd AS

financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and

disclosures included in respect ofthese subsidiaries and our report in
terms of Section 143 (3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports as mentioned
above. The Holding Company's management has converted the
financial statements of the subsidiary located outside lndia from
accounting principles generally accepted in their country to I N D As.

We have audited these conversion adiustments made by the Holding
Company's management.

Our opinion above on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements,

and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below,
is not modified in respect of the above mafters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 1 43(3) ofthe Act, based on our audit we
report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
lnd AS financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the
report ofthe other auditor.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flowsdealtwith bythis Reportare in agreementwith
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose

of preparation of the consolidated lnd AS financial
statements.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated lnd As financial
statements comply with the lndian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 1 33 ofthe Act except as reported

in the para of "basis forqual ified opinion" as above.

e) ln our opinion, the matters described in the "basis of

Qualified Opinion" and " emphasis of matter " paragraphs

above may have an adverse impact on the functioning of
the company.

fl On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia, none of
the directors of the Croup companies is disqualified as on

31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in

terms of Section 1 64 (2) of the Aa.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated lnd AS financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Croup. - Refer
note 40 of the Consolidated lnd As financial
statements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated lnd A5
financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or lnd AS, for material foreseeable
losses, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia during the year ended 31

March 2018.

For ROMESH K ACGARWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 00071 1N

sd/-
Ruchir Singla

Partner
Membership no .519347

Place: Ludhiana
Date: May 30,2018

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and
Regu latory Requi rements' section ofour report of even date)
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Report on the lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 201 3 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of VARDHAMN POLYTEX LIMITED ("the Company") as of
March 31,2018 in conjunction with our auditof the consolidated lnd
As financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies,
which are incorporated in lndia, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia('lCAl"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its
assetsf the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting recrrrds, and the timely
preparation of reliable finan:ial information, as ,equired under the
Companies Act, 201 3.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in lndia, based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Cuidance
Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the 'Cuidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 1 43( 1 0) ofthe Compan ies Act, 201 3, to the extent appl icable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Cuidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Holding Company's and its subsidiary companies incorporated in
lndia, internal financial control system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliabiliry of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial stalements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internalfinancial controls over
financial reporting, includingthe possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia, have in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial control system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 201 8,
based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, considering the essential components of internal
controls stated in the Cuidance Note issued bythe lCAl.

Emphasis of Matter

We would draw attention to matters disclosed in paragraph under
'Emphasis of matters' in our main lndependent Auditor's Report
which could indicate possible lapses in internal financial controls
systems at various points in time.

For ROMESH K AGGARWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000711N

Place: Ludhiana
Date: May 30, 20'18

sd/_

Ruchir Singla
Partner

Membership no.519347
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CONSOLIDATED BATANCE SHEET AS AT 31,'MARCH,2018
Notes No.

March 31
As at
2017

As at
2015

I ASSETS

1 Non<urrent assets
a) ProperV, plant and equipment
b) lnvestment Property
c) Capital work-in-progress
d) Other intangible assets

e) Financial assets

i) lnvestments
ii) Loans
iii) Other financial assets

0 Trade receivable

B) Deferred tax assets (net)

h) Other non-current assets

Total Non Current Assets

2 Current assets
a) lnventories
b) Financial assets

i) lnvestments
ii) Trade receivables
iii) Cash and cash equivalents
iv) Bank balances other than above
v) Loans
vi) Other financial assets

c) Current tax assets

d) Other current assets

Total Current Asets

IOTAT ASSETS

il EQUTTY AND UABTLTTIES

1 EQUITY
a) Equity share capital
b) Other equity
c) Preference Share Capital

Total Equity

r_tABrilTtEs
2 Non{urrent liabilitis

a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings

b) Long term provisions
c) Other non<urrent liabilities

Total Non Current Liabilities

3 Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables
iii) Other financial liabilities

b) Other current Iiabilities
c) Short term provisions

Total Current tiabilitis
TOTA|- EQUTTY AND UABIUT|ES

Significant accounting policies

2

2lal
2(b)

2

35,441.26
514.90
666.61
3'l 5.93

35,682.06
524.74
663.57
547.78

o.62
35.00

294.37

5,016.18
1,505.45

't 36.1 4

107.28
281.99

3

4

6
7

8

o.62
35.00
95 02

5,01 6.1 8
1,124.26

43,2O9.74 44,269.77

9 8,834.00

5.78
8,582.80

344.52
564.O7
35.s3

1,103.44
434.95

2,4-17.O9

8,596.82

18.34
9,088.63

455.68
473.47

46.1',l
-t,434.27

474.74
2,695.89

10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17

22,322.14

65.531.96

23,284.15

67,553.93

l8
19

20
21

22

2,232.s4
(8,578.09)

1,220.75

2,232.54
15,280.67)

't,220.75

(5,124.80) (1,827.38)

27,284.02
357.83

50.12

30,550.89
508.1 4

77.11
27,691.97 31,1 36.15

23
24
25
26
27

-t9,978.49

8,1 63.53
14,202.99

570.39
49.39

17,881 .79
7,678.62

1 1,931 .1 1

452.18
301.45

42,964.79 38,245.16
65,531.95 67,5s3.93

ents

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POTYTEX tlMlTED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:-000711N

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No.519347

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DtN-00009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/_

Ashok Kumar Oswal
Chairman & Managing Director

(DrN-00009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officer)Place
Date

Ludhiana
30th May 2018

o.62

279.23

2,232.54

418.44
6.86

24,368.77

49,262.91
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31', MARCH,2OIs

For the

Revenue from operations 92,549.25

1,209.39Other income

Total lncome (l) 93,758.64

Expenses

Cost of Material consumed

Purchase of traded goods

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Excise duty on sale of goods

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (ll)

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l - ll = lll)

Exceptional item (lV)

Profit before tax (tll - lV = V)

Tax expense: (Vl)

Current tax

Defened tax

Profit for the period from continuing operations After Tax (V - Vl = VID

Other Comprehensive lncome (Vlll)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

30

31

32

33

34

35

54,933.56

8,693.1'l

(s60.89)

r.08

7,258.34

7,246.16

3,047.84

16,483.38

97,102.58

(3,343.94)

(3,343.94)

1.27

41 .59

-r 5.01

36

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period (Vll + Vlll = lX)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive income for the
period)

Earnings per equity share (for conlinuing operation): (X)

1 Basic

2 Diluted

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

39

50r-1

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:-00071 1N

FOR AND ON BEHATF OF BOAR,D OF DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POLYTEX TIMITED

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No.519347

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DrN-00009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DtN40009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officed
Place
Date

Ludhiana
30th May 2018

({ in Lakh)

Particulars

64,096.45

543 14

42,673.88

4,255.51

8,245.80

2,990.72

(16,962.79)

(17,165.521

(17,166,84\ (3,345.21)

(17,205.45) (3,303.62)

-77.01

-77.01
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CONSOTIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT TON THE YEAR ENDED 31,, MARCH,2018

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Add:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference (net)

Sundry balance written off
Loss on sale of investment
Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for Miscellenous Recoverable
Net Loss on sale / discarding of fixed assets

Less:

lnterest income
Net Profit on sale / discarding of fixed assets

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Adjustments lor changes in Working Capital :

- lncreasey'(decrease) in trade payables & Other Liabilities
- (lncrease)/decrease in trade receivables & other receivables
- (lncrease)/decrease in inventories

Cash generated from Operating Activities

- Taxes (paid) (net of tax deducted at source)

Net cash (used in)/ generated from Operating Activities

B. Cash flow from lnvesting Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of fixed assets

Reduction in value of investments
lnterest received
Net Cash from lnvesting Activities

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Short borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Interest paid

Net Cash lrom Financing Activities

ended
March 2017

(3,345 21\

3,047.84
7,246.16

(21 .81)
37.32

30.46

(1 s7.89)
(1.73)

5,83s.14

841 .12
1,738.29
(237.181

9,177.37

(1.27)

9,176.10

(2,60s.1 1 )

68.96
12.56

157.89
(2,36s.70)

2,096.70
(3,266.87)
15.660.79\
(6,830.96)

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at lst April (Opening Balance)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March (ClosinB Balance)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash & cheques in hand

Balance with banks

Total

(20.s6)

929.15

908.59

344.52
564.O7

908.59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:-00071 1N

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POLYTEX TIMITED

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No. 519347

Place: Ludhiana
Date : 30th May 2018

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DtN{0009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DrN-00009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officer)

22.86
5.78

2-18.17

(1 28.39)
(1 5.35)

5,087.55

(1 32j

(720.66)

72.62

(7,627,87)
(5,085.90)

908.59

389.28

107.28
281 .99
389.28
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31" March 2018
a. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(t in Lakh)

Number of Shares Equity share capital
Balance as at April 1,2017
Forfeited shares

Balance at April 1,2017

Change durine the vear

22,290,957.00

22,290,957.00

2,229.09

2,232.54

345

Ealance at March 31, 2018 22,290,957.00 2,232.54

b. oTHER EQUTTY
(t in Lakh)

Particulars and Items of
other

comprehen

sive

income
Capital

subsidy

Capital General Amalgamation

redemption reserve reserve

reterue

Foreign

currency

translation

Security

premium

Retained

earnings

Actuarial

Cain /
([oss)

Total

reserve

Balance at April 1, 2016 (as previously

reported)

Changes in accounting policy/e1106

Restated balance at April 1, 2016

0.01 9,865.69

(0.01)

182.77 45.00

(4s.00)

(3.84) 7,731.06 \23,014.09)

3.84 136.67

(s,1 93.38)

(87.271i.182.771

9,865.69 7,731.06 122,877.421

7,731.06 122,877.421

(3,345.21 )

(s,280.67)

15,280.671

(3,339.00)

Balance at April 1, 20 15

Reinstatement adjustment

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

ended 3 l st March 201 7

Balance at April 1, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2018

9,86s.69

6.21

4r.59 41.59

9,865.69

9,86s.69

6.21 7,731.06 l.26,222.6! 41.s9 (8,s78.09)

6.21

9.6n

7,731.06 126,222.631

'17,166.84)

41.59 (8,578.09)

0 (17,176.s1]'

(38.62) (38.62)

9,86s.69

19.6n - (7,166.84]'

(3.46) 7,731.06 (43,389.471

138.62) (17,21s.13]'

2.97 (25,793.211
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2018
CORPORATE INFORMATION

a) The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of "Vardhman Polytex Limited" ("the Holding Company") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Croup") for the year ended 31 st March 201 8. The principal activity of group is manufactur ing of
yarn and garments. The company is listed on two stock exchange i.e at National Stock Exchange & Bombay Stock Exchange.

b) These consolidated financial statements are presented in lnd ian Rupees (Q wh ich is also its functional currency.
c) ln case of Subsidiary Company, F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd, the company as on the date of the balance sheet has accumulated losses of

?233.18.94 lakh which has eroded 100'/" of its share capital and the company's current liabilities has exceeded its current assets as atthe
balance sheet date. Under sick industrial companies (special provisions) act (SISA) of 1985, the company had been classified as "sick
company " under section 15 of said act and accordingly a reference had been filed with board of industrial and financial reconstruction
(BIFR) w.e.f. from 1" December,2016. Further BIFR has been dissolved due to applicability of insolvency and bankruptcy code. Later
company has filed its petition in Hon'ble National Company Law tribunal (NCLT) which was admitted on 27s.lune 2017 ro initiate the
corporate lnsolvency resolution process (CIRP). Resultantly resolution professional was appointed who is currently managing the operations
of the company and are in process of inviting bids for resolution. The financial stakeholders of the company are working on reviving the
companybyexploringpossibilitiesoffindingdifferentresolutionsplansforitsrevival. lnviewofthistheaccompanyingfinancial statements
have been prepared on going concern basis.

1. SICNIFICANTACCOUNT!NGPOLICIES

a) STATEMENT OF COMPTIANCE & BASIS OF PREPARATION & PRESENTATTON

The Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance lnd ASs notified under the Companies
(lnd ian Accounting Sta ndards) R u les, 20'l 5 as amended and other relevant provisions of the act. U pto the year ended March 3l , 2O17 ,
the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous lndian CAAP, which includes
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The consol idated financial statements for the year ended
March 31 , 201 8 are the Company's first lnd AS Consolidated Financial Statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1 , 201 6.
Refer Note 3 Tforthe details of firsftime adoption exemptions availed by the Company.
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end ofeach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
H istorical cost is genera lly based on the fa ir value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these Consolidated Financial Statements is determined on such a basis,
except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 1 7, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in lnd AS 2 or value in use in lnd AS 36.

b) PRINCIPATOFCONSOTIDATION

i) Thefinancial statementsof theHoldingCompanyanditssubsidiariesaretombinedonalinebylinebasisbyaddingtogetherlike
items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances 

"nd 
intrr-grorp

transactions.

Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as lnventory and Property, plant and
Equipment, are eliminated in full.
ln case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue itents are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets
and liabilities are converted at rates prevai I ing at the end ofthe year.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances.

Since Foreign Subsidiary is in same line of business wh ich function in d ifferent regu latory environ ment, certain policies such as in
respect of reinstatement of forex liabilities are different from the policies followecl by the Holding Company. The notes on
accounts and policies followed by subsidiary and holding company are disclosed in their respective finincial statements.
Figures pertaining to the subsidiaries have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in the line with parent company's
consold iated fi nancial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements conrprises of Vardhman Polytex Limited and its subsidiaries, being the
entities that it controls. Controls are assessed in accordance with the requirement of lnd AS li0 - Consolidated Financial
Statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES & IUDCEMENTS
The preparation of co n contbrmity with lnd AS requires the rnanagementto make judgments, estimates
and assumptions tha of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitils and the disciosure of contingent
liabilities, at the date ough these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of cuient
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material aljustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptionl are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognised at fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. The amount disclosed as revenue is inclusive of excise
duty and net of returns, trade discounts, value added tax , coods & service Tax related taxes and amount collected on behalf ofthirdparties.

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

v)

c)

d)
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The company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

i) sAtEoFGooDs
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,

recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost can be reliably estimated and there is no continuing effective
control or managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized in
respect ofexport sales on the basis of bil I of lading.

ii) EXPORT INCENT]VES

Revenue in respect of export incentives/ benefits are accounted for on post export basis.

iiD DIVIDENDS
Revenue in respect ofdividends is recognized when the shareholders' right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet

date.

iv) INTEREST

lnterest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the amount of income can be measured reliably. lnterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts

through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

v) INSURANCECtAIM
Claims with insurance companies are accounted on accrual basis to the extent, No significant uncertainty exist and these are

measurable and ultimate collection is reasonably certain.

e) INVENTORIES

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence. Cost of inventories

comprises of cost of purchase, conversion and other cost including manufacturing overhead net of recoverable taxes incurred in

bringing them to their respective present location and condition. The cost in respect of various items of inventory is computed as under:

i. Stores, spares and raw materials are valued at lower of historical cost or net realizable value. However materials & other items

held for use in the production of inventories are not written below cost if the finished products in wh ich they will be incorporated

are expected to be sold at or above cost.

ii. ln case of work in progress at raw material cost plus conversion cost depend ing upon the stage of completion.

iii. F i n ished goods are val ued at lower of h istorical cost or net real izable val ue. Cost of i nventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost

of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. By products are valued

at net real izable value.

iv. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

O FINANCIATINSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of an

other entity.

l. lnitial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, all the financial asset and liabilities are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are

directly attribuiable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liabi lity except financial asset or financial liability

measured at fai r value through profit or loss account. Transation costs of financial asset and liabi I ities carried at fair value through

profit and loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ll. Subsequent Measurement (Non Derivative Financial lnstrument)

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose obiective is to hold

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date

to cash flows that are solely payments on principal and interest on the principal amount outstandinE.

b) Financial Asset At Fair value Through other comprehensive lncome (FWocl)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business

model whose objective is achieved by both col lectinB contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FWPL)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and Ioss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value

through other comprehensive income'

d) lnvestments ln Subsidiaries

The company has adopted to measure investments in subsidiaries at cost in accordance with lnd AS 2 7 and carrying amount

as per previous CAApat the date of transition has been considered as deemed cost in accordance with lnd AS 1 01 .

e) FinancialLiabilities
The financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method- For trade and other

payables maturing within one yeai from the balance sheet date,the carrying amounts approximate fair value due tothe short
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maturity of these instruments.

lll, Derivative Financial lnstruments

The company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange fonvard and option contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Although the company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for
hedge accounting under ind AS 1 09, Financial instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge,or is so designated
but is ineffective as per ind AS 1 09, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net
profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,these derivatives are measured at fair
value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income. Assets/Liabilities in this
category are presented as current assets/current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized with in I 2
months afterthe balance sheet date.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For transition to lnd AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as of April 1, 201 6 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
the transition date.

Land is carried at cost and all other items of property plant, equipments and fixtures are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes

1 ) its purchase price including import duties and non refundable taxes after reducing trade d iscount and rebate if any.

2) any attributable expenditure directly attributable to bring an assets to the location and the working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful I ives, using the straight-line method except the assets costing Rs 5000 or below on which depreciation
is charged at the rate 100o/o p.a. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effectofany changes in estimate accounted foron a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use ofthe asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement ofan item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recogn ised in profit or loss.

d TNTANGTBTEASSETS

lntangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. lntangible assets are amortized over expected useful
I ife on a straight I ine basis from the date they are avai lable for us

h) IMPAIRMENTOFASSETS

l. FinancialAssets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For
all other financial assets expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the .l 

2 month ECl,unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required
to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss.

ll. Non-FinancialAssets

lntangible assets and property,plant and equipment

property,plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,the
the higher ofthe fair value less cost to sel I and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
Senerate cash flows that are Iargely independent ofthose from other assets. ln such cases,the recoverable

amount is determined forcash generating unitto which the asset belongs.

to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the
he estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,
mount that would have been determined (net or any accumulated
ecogn ized for the asset in prior year..

D FOREIGN EXCHANGETRANSACTTONS/TRANSTATION

a. lnitial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign curreniy at the date oft'he transaction.
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b. Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical

cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange

rates that existed when the values were determined.

c. ExchangeDifferences

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, form part ofthe company's net investment in a non-integral

foreign operation is accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve in the financial statements until the disposal of the net

investment, atwhich time they are recognized as income oras an expense.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items not covered above, or on reporting such monetary items of
company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial

statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

d. Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or income over the life of
the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the

exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as

income or as expense for the year.

EMPTOYEE BENEFITS

i. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the statement of Profit and loss ofthe
year in which the related service i-. rendered.

ii. Post Employee Benefits

A) Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund & ESI

The company makes contribution to Statutory Provident Fund and Employee State lnsurance in accordance with Employees

Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State lnsurance Act, 1948 which is a defined

contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered

by the employee.

Superannuation benefit
The Company makes contribution to superannuation fund which is a post employment benefit in the nature of a defined

contribution plan & contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered

by the employee.

B) Defined Benefit Plans

Cratuity
The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("The Cratuity Plan") covering eligible employees of

the company. The gratuity plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or

termination of empioyment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the

company.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit

method, with actuarial valuations being carried outat the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising

actuarial gains and losses, the effect ofthe changes to the asset cei ling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excl uding

net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive

income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected

immediately in ietained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the

period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginn ing of the period to the net

defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: service cost (including current service cost,

past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and seftlements); net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits

expense'. Cu rtai I ment gai ns and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the standalone balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the

Company,s defined benefit plans. Any iurplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic

benefits avai lable in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the

termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

TAXESON lNCOME

lncome tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and

Loss except tothe extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case, it is also

recognized in equity or othercomprehensive income respectively'

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adiustment to the tax

k)

t)
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m)

payable or receivable in respect of previous years. lt is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising betlveen the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposeslnd the amounts ,r"d fo, taxation purposes (including those arising from consolidation adiustments such as

unrealizij profit on inventory etc.). Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible

temporary iiff"r"n.", to the extent that it is probabte that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are rec uced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax

benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves-

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that

future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates

enacted orsubstantivelyenacted atthe reportingdate.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at

the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off cu rrent tax assets against cu rrent tax liabilities; and

b) the defened tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same

taxable entity.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and thatthe grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recogn ises as expenses

the related coits for which th1 grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the

Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire nonrurrent assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet

and tiansfened to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful I ives of the related assets.

Covernment grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate

financial supfort to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

BORROWINGCOST

Borrowing costs d irectly aftributable to the acq u isition, construction or prod uction of an asset that necessarily takes a su bstantia I period

of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
pRovtsloNs, coNTINGENT LIABIUTIES AN D CONTINCENT ASSETS

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

A contingent liabiliry is recognized for:

i. a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recogn ized as a provision beca use either the possibility that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation is remote or a reliable estimate of the amount

ofthe obligation cannot be made; and

ii. a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company. Contingent assets are neither

accounted for nor disclosed in the financial statements.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cost.

EARNING PERSHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

number ofequity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose ofcalculating di luted earnings per share, the net profit for the year

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects

ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

CASH AN D CASH EQUIVATENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and in hand, including offsetting bank overdrafts, and short{erm highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in fair value and have a

maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date.

o)

n)

p)

q)



Vardhman Polytex Limited - Consolidated

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
March 20'18 in Lakh)

Total 6slsIrft Building Plant &

mhinery
Other

equipmentland land md fixture mrk
(bousht

out)

172 90 r,958.r8
487.46

(0.79)

19,649 57

43.80

58,334 r I
200.96

(270.s3)

649.90

222 s5

r0.06
410.89 519.M

fl 50 38)

667 72

410
(1.89)

985
82,17516 2,570.92 2,570.92 84,746.28

756.43 756.43
(423 59) (423.59)

649.90

C6t
As at lst April 201 7 (Refer

note (a))

Additions (Refer note (b))

Relating to disposals

Transfer from

Transfer to

tu at 31st March 2018

Depreiatim
As al lst April 201 i
Charge for the year

Relating to disposls
Adjustment

As at llst March 2018

Net bltrk
As al 31st March 2018

167.12

t566
133 26

25.r8
475 72

54.17

(r 49)

t2

2,25499 2,254.99 48,989 10

179.79 179.79 2,980.88
(366.32)

234
26 90 5,6]r.70

622.62

39,748 40

2,018.53

1247 84)

142 01

42.59

0 r6.99)

46,734.1'l

2,801.09
(365.32)

41 182 78 158 44 5l

343.55 2,444.85 13,430.05 16,725.45 49.83 82.30 121.45 141.73 33,339.32 136.14 136.14 31,475,46

b) As al 3'lst Mdch 2017

Partiolar Tangible asts lnlangible fusts Total
Lea*hold rrenoH ffiicl6 softwm rolal Trade Tolal as*tr

land land mchimry eqripmt and fixturs (Bo4ht mrk
0!t) (Bought

out)
Cosl

As at lst April 201 6

Additions

Relating to disposals

As at 3 | st lr,hrch 201 7

Deprrciation

As at ln April 2016

Charge for the year

Relating to disposk
Adiustment

As at 3'lst March 20'17

Nel Blak
tu at 3lst lthrch 2017

372.90 1,83258 18,98870 56,58974 21240 46938 548.83 f/'729 79,661.82 2,56325 2,563.25 82,225.07
- 12550 66087 1,745.54 l0t5 18f7 13.46 20.43 2,594.42 7.67 767 2,@2.09
- fl.I 7) - (56.86) (22.85) (80.88) (80.80)

2456 - 5,031.58 17,707.U l5t l8 320.2t 303.70 44120 43,979.77 2,015.45 2,01545 45,99522234. ' 60e02 '*;;.;;, ts74- 
;;;l ,i,l;1,1 

34's2. ''i::i; 23e's4- 23e54 3'o38oo

l9

a) The Company's right on leasehold land has been forfeited by Maharashtra lndustrial Development Corporation (MIDC), due to non
compliance of the terms of allotment. The land was allotted for a period of 95 years for amount of {1 36.77 lakh (P.Y. tl 36.77 lakh)
as on March 31, 2018. During the current yearthe company has received a letter from MIDC which states thatthe total amount paid
by the company has been adjusted with charges and deduction as calculated by MIDC. Keeping in view the same, company has
provided for whole amount in books.

b) The company has received an order from the Hon'ble Supreme Court regarding payment of enhancement compensation on Land
amounting{449.99Lakh.Outof,theabovethecompanyhadpaid{101.75 lakhstoPunjabGovernmenttillMarch3l,20lT. So

thecompanyhasprovidedforthebalanceamountK34B.25Lakh) aswell asinterestamountingll 39.21 Lakhtill 31.03.2018.
Thereby making total capitalization amount in Land during the year for {487.46 Lakh.

2 (a) INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Particulars
As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

Cost
As at 1st Aptil 2017 &2()16
Additions
Relating to disposals

63r.55 631.55

As at 3'lst March 2O18 & 2017 531.55 631.55
Depreciation
As at lst April 2O17 &2O16
Charge for the year
Relating to disposals
Adiustment

1 I6.65
9.84

106.81
9.84

As at 31st March 2O18 & 2017 126.49 1 16.55
Net blmk
As at 31st March 2O18 & 2017 505.O6 514.90

167 12 333.26 34201 47572

18 55.43 97.63

6 )61 1'.))9 )4 2h7 61

)69

346 00 192.0{t :r5.441.26

Br nq
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2(b) CAPITAL WORK-I N-PROCRESS

Particulars at

March 31,

As at
March 31,2017

As at
April 1,2016

Capital Work in Progress 31 1.39 666.61 663.57

Note:
Expenses amounting to (319.45 lakhs pertaining to modernization Project, which were earlier in capital work in progress, have now

been expensed out due to inability to complete the project on account of non achievement of financial closure for the same.

({ in Lakh)

Particulars at As at
2017

As at
201 6

Unquoted investments
(tinancial Assets carried at cmt, except for permanent diminution in
value)

Equity lnstruments in Others
(a) Oswal lndustrial Enterprise (P) Ltd 0.09 0.09 0.09

1,000 (31.03.201 7-1,000, 0'l 04 2016-,l000) equity shares of
{1 0 each fully paid
(b) VKM Colour Spin Limited 0.03 0 03 0 03

25O 13 1 .03.201 7 -250, 0'l 04. 201 6-250) equity shares of {1 0

each fully paid
(c) Deluxe Fabrics Limited 0.50 0.50 0.50

5000 (3'l .03 2017 - 5000, 01 .04.201 6-5000) equ ity shares of
{1 0 each fully paid

Total 0.62 0.62 0.62

trt"t 
"Sgr"Brt" 

r. 0.62 0.62 O 62

4. FINANCIAI- ASSETS: I-OANS (NON-CURRENI) R in Lakh)

Particulars fuat
March 31,2018

As at

March 31,2017
As at

April 1, 2016

Carried at amortised cost

(a) Loan to others

Less: Provision for doubtful loans

10.00 35.00

0.00

35.00

000
35.00 35.00

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST (NON CURRENT) ({ in Lakh)

Particulars

As at

March 31,2018

As at

March 31,2017

As al
April 1,2015

(a) Fixed deoosits (With more than l2 months Matu ritv)l 95.02 294.37

Total 95.02 294.37

Note:
* Held with bank(s) as margin money against lenerofcredit, bank guarantee & others.

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLTS (NON CURRENT) (l in Lakh)

Particulars
fuat

iilarch 31,2018
As at

March 31,2017
As at

April 1,2016

Receivable from Others

-Unsecured, Considered Good :

-Doubtful

Less: Allwance for doubtful receivable

279.23

5 1 8.90

Total

(l in Lakh)

Total 311.39 666.61 663.57

3. FINANCIAL ASSETS: INVESTMENTS (NON - CURRENT)

March 31,2018 March

B9
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) K in Lakh)

Particulars As at
Mar 31, 2018

As at
Mat 31,2O17

As at
ADril 1,2015

Deferred tax liabilities
Arising on account of timing difference
Opening
Accumulated depreciation

4302.47 4371.99
1 84.83

4493.9
(64.33)

Total (A)

Deferred tax assets

Arising on account of timing difference :

Opening
Unabsorbed depreciation / losses and Sec 43B items

Others

(9,31 8.65)
368.21

(9,388.1 7)

(1 84.83)
19,252.05)

64.33

Net tax liability/(Assets) (A) + (B) (s,016.18) 18) (5,016.18)

a) The Holding company has deferred tax liability till the end of the current year on account of differences arising betlveen
depreciation as per books of accounts and that as per income tax. However, deferred tax assets are much higher than the defened
tax liability. ln view of this no further deferred tax assets are being recognised as at March 31 , 201 8. Based on the company's virtual
certaininry of the profit, the company is carrying a deferred tax asset of t 5,01 6.1 8 lakh as on March 31 , 201 8.

b) The Subsidiary company i.e. F.M Hammerle Textiles Limited has deferred tax liability of tl845.15 lakhs upto the end of this year

on account oi differences arising b ttween depreciation as per books of accounts and as per lncome tax. However deferred tax assets

on account of unabsorbed depreciation as per income tax computation are much higher than the defened tax liability. ln view of
absence of virtual certainity bf profits in the near future deferred tax assets have been restricted to the extent of deferred tax Iiability
on account of unabsorbed depreciation and those on account of unabsorbed losses have not been recognised at all.

8. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
R in Lakh)

Particulars fu at As at As at

Unsecured - considered good 227.92 444'62 81 7 09

Prepaid expenses 17 41

Security Deposit With P&T 1.76 1 93 1 93

Security deposit with Sovernment authorities 644.88 644.88 624-40

Security DeposirOthers 78.52 32 83 44 62

Total Other Non curent Assets 953'08 1,124,26 -l-E!

9. INVENTORIES tn

As at
2018

As at
Mar 31,2017

As at
Aoril 1, 2016Mar 31,

(Valued at cost or Net realizable value whichever is lower)

Raw materials 1,493'26 2,602'15 3,327 '06

work in progress 1,043.54 2,520.38 2,252.15

Finished goods 1,571.09 3,12238 2,829.73

Stores & spares parts 337'77 589'09 ,187'88

4,/t45.56 8,834'00 8,596'82

10. FINANCIAL ASSETS: INVESTMENTS (t in Lakh)

Particulars

A. Unquoted investments (all fully paid, at cost)

L Mutual funds

As at

2017

5.78

As at

2016

18.34

5.78 18.34

unquoted investments

March 31

5.78 1 8.34

(368.21 )

As at

201 B
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11. FINANCIAL ASSETS: TRADE RECEIVABTES (CURRENT)

Particulars
March 31,2018

As at
March 31, 2017

(l in

As at
Aoril 1, 2016

at

Receivable from Others
-Unsecured, Considered Cood

Less: Non Current Trade Receivable

Doubtful
Less Provision for doubdul debts

3,548.88
798.13

8,018.98
0.00

7,739.40
0.00

2,750.7s 8,018.98
1,160.77

t796.9sI

7,739.40
r,91 1 .83
(s62.60)

593.9 1

(s03.46)

Total 2,&{1.20 8,582'80 9,088'63

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS K in Lakh)

Particulars tuat tuat
2017

As at

2016March 31

Cash and Cash

Cash on hand

Bank balances:

in current accounts

in deposit accounts with original maturity upto 3 months*

81.78

1 1.10

166.12

141.12

14.40 37.28 61.83

167.81

226.04

Total 107.28 344.52 455.68

*Held with bank against margin money against lefter of credit,bank guarantee and others

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS: BANK BATANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE

As at

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

tn

As at

April 1, 2016
As at

Bank balances:

Escrow Account

Dividend with banks

Fixed deposits (More than 3 months but less than 12 months

maturity)t r 281.99 562.90

0.77

0.40

472.30

0.77

0.40

Total 281.99 564.07 473.47

i* Held with bank(s) against margin money against letter of credit,bank guarantee and others.

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS: TOANS (l in Lakh)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2018 March 31,20't7
As at

ADril 1, 2016
As at

Grried at amortised cost

(a) Other loans

Loans to employees

Un Secured - considered good 16.86 3 5.53 46.31

Total 16.85 35.53 46.31

15. OTHER FINANCIAT ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST (t in Lakh)

As at As at As at

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April t,2016

Covernment Authorities * 2'1.@

Tuff Subsidy recoverable ** 226.46

lnterest receivable 22.71

Others 62.62
Less: Provision for other doubt advances 36.52],

287.08
268.19

240.36

307.81

0.00

317.96

371.95
375.97

368.39

0.00

Total

* This includes export incentives recoverable from Government.
++ Provision created for tuff subsidy Rs 206.45 Lakhs (Previous Year NIL)

296.27 103.44
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16. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (l in Lakh)

Particulars As at

March 31,2018
As at

March 31, 2017

As at

April 1,2015

Direct Taxes Refundable 367.88 434.95 474.74

Total 367.88 434.95 474.74

Direct taxes refundable represent amounts recoverable from the lncome Tax Department for various assessment years. ln respect of
disputed demands, company has filed appeals which are pending at various levels and the company is hopeful of getting the desired
reliefs at various forums. Necessary value adjustments shall be made on final settlement by the department.

17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(l in Lakh)

Particulars fuat
lltarch 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 20'17

As at
April 1,2015

Advance to employees
Advance to Suppliers

Statutory dues -Balances with Goverment Authorities+
Prepaid expenses

Others

Assets held for sale

5.75
443

2,101 .81

89.57
192.04

273.44
48.97

1,681.67

331.23

81.78

472.91

598.'l 8

1 ,387.54
222.72

8.28
6.26

Total 2,393.60 2,417.09 2,695.89

'Balance with Covernment authorities includes, CST, VAT, Excise, Seruice Tax etc.

18. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAT
R in Lakh)

Particulars

Authorised
Equity shares of 1 0/- each

Tohl

lssued, subscribed and fully paid up

2,22,90,957 (Previous year 2,22,90,957 equity
shares of Rs.10 each)

Forfeited shares

Total

fu at 3l March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

Number Amounl Number Amount Number Amount
Rs lakhs Rs lakhs Rs lakhs

7,000.00 7,00,00,000 7,000.00 7,00,00,000

7

2,22,90,957 2,229.09 2,22,90,9s7

3.45

2,229.09 2,22,90,957

3.45

7,000.00

7,000.00

2,229.09

3.45

7,q09.00 7,00,00,000 7,000.00 7,00,00,000

2,22,90,9s7 2,232.54 2,22,90,957 2,232 s4 2,22,90,957 2,232.s4

18.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year R in Lakh)

Particulars at As at 31 March March 2016

Rs lakhs No. of
shares

Rs lakhs No. of Rs lakhs

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year

Add:
lsued during the year kefer note

no. b)

Outstanding at the end of reporting periodr (refer

note no. a)

2,229.N 2,22,90,9s7 2,229.09 2,22,90,957 2,229.09

2,229,09 2,22,90,957 2,229.09 2,22,90,957 2,229,09

Note:

a) Out of total shares held by promoters and promoter group (i.e.1 ,34,O4,652),1,O9,31,2O2 equity shares (face value of {10 each)

are pledged with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) in favourof Canara Bank (Lead banker).

Equity shares arising out ofconversion ofthe convertible warrants issued on preferential basis.

2,22,90,957

b)
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18.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of {1 0 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share.ln

the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company,

after distribution of all preferential amounts.The distribution wilt be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders. During the year ended 31st March'2018, the amount of dividend recognized as distribution to equity shareholder was {
Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)

18.3 Detail of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: K in Lakh)

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 3l March 2016

Name of equity shareholder No. of

Shares

No, of
Shares

No.

Shares

olo

Panchsheel Textile Mfg. & Trdg. Co. (P) Ltd.

Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd.

Swarnim Tie Up (P) Ltd.

Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd.

44,26,917

43,62,325

NA

21,82,000

44,26,917

43,62,325

4,528

21,82,000

44,26,917

43,62,32s

1 4,00,000

21,82,000

19.86

19.57

6.28

9.79

19 86

19 57

002
979

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders

regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

1g.4 Aggregate n umber of shares issued for consideration other than cash, bonus share issued and shares bought back du ring the period of five

years immediately precedingthe reporting date: Nil (Previous year Nil)

19. OTHER EQUITY R in Lakh)

Particulam Rmrves aqd Srrplus

etmom
Gpilal Gpilal Gmeral Amltamtim Foreign Security Retained emings Actuarial Cain

subsidy redemption erye tffde curffiy prmium / (Los)

rffrye translation

llems of olher
comprehensiv

Total

tesrye

182.77

\182.7n

9,865.69 (23,014.09)

\36.67

(5,193.38)

$7.2n
0.01

(0.01)
45.00

(45.00)

(3.M) 7,731.06

184

Balame al April I, 2016 (ro peruiously

repoiled)
ChanBes in accounting policy/erors

R6rared balance at April '1, 2015

Balarcc at April 1, 2015

Reinstatement adiustment

Total comprehensive income lor the year

ended 3l st March 201 7

Balance at &ril 1, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of income ld
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2018

9,865.69

9,865.69

7,731.06

7,731 06

122,877.421

(22,877.421

(3,345.21)

-38 62

(8,578.09)

(8,578 09)

117,176 51)

l]8 52)

621

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of income tax 41.59 41.59

9,865 69

9,865 69

6.21

621
(9.67)

7,731 06

7 ,731 06

41.59

4r.59
0

126,222.61t

126,222.63)
(17,166.84)

\9.6n
(3 46) 7,731.06

0 7,r 66.84)

143,189 471

117,2't5.13)
l.25,793 211

08 62)

2979,865.69

20, FINANCIALLIABIIITY.BORROWING(NONCURRENT) R in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at As at

Rupee Term Loan from others (refer note a,b,c below) 858.71 1 ,016.55 1 ,337 .77

Working capital term loan -ll (refer note a,b,c below) 4,719.38 4,943 01 5,451.88
Funded interest term loan -ll (refer note a,b,c below) 58.43 327.60 1,542.19
Vehicle loan (refer note d below) - 40.09 41 .32

Unsecured Loan 107.00
Total 30,997.49 31,816.52 35,486.12

Grand Total 23,943.47 27,284.02 30,550.89

ln case of holding company, during the previous year ending 31'' March, 2017 , the company credited profit of t396.44 lakh due on
payment of FCCR liability (total liability as on 31"March 201 7 being 1868.64 lakh) out of the above mentioned FCCB liability, t 365.0a
lakh is stilloutstandingas on 3l oMarch 2018

19.86

19.57

NA

9.79

15,280.67t

(5,280.6n
(3,339.00)

93



Vardhman Polytex Limited - Consolidated

B) Terms & Conditions of Secured Loan Taken from bank and status of default in case of holding company at the year end as on

A)

B)

3r.03.2018:-
tn

Term Loan from Banks Term Loan from others
Types of Loan Rupee TL wcTt-il HTt- Tt.I Tt--il
Sanctioned Amount 19712 12 6441.00 4340.90 s00.00 290.00
Balance As on 3 I .03.201 8 14641 .34 4719.38 58.43 327.72 1 65.95
Rate of lnterest 1 1.t" 1 1.t 11% 13.45.t" 14.20'l;
Repayment Type Quarterly Qua(erly Quarterlv Quarterlv Ouarterlv
Repayment khedule As per CDR
31 .03.2019 5321.44 1 567.00 58.05 64.78 42.75
3r.03.2020 3094.02 1 030.56 56.75 40.1 5
31.03.2021 3448.26 1 1 59.38 64.87 46.23
31.03.2022 2577.19 966.1 5 74.16 36.81
31 .03.2023 67.16
Overdue Principle 2401 53 665.26 57.64 1 1.41 7.97
Overdue Interest 1612.25 410.08 7.12 10.77 5.80
Overdue Principle Since lan-l7 Mar-17

Out of total overdue interest amount <1187 .43 Lakhs Pertains to the interest after the NPA date which has not been charged by bank but
the same has been provided by us keeping accrual concept in consideration.

Details of security of Holding Company are as follows:-

a) Term loans from Financial lnstitutions and Banks as stated as above arey'shall be secured by way ofjoint equitable mortgage ofall
the immovable properties (presen' and future) of the Company ranking on pari- passu basis and hypothecation of all movable
assets of the Company subject to prior charge of the company's bankers on specified movable assets in respect of working capital
borrowings.

b) Term Loan from others is guaranteed by promoter company lWs Panchsheel Textile Mfg & Trading Co. Pvt Ltd. along with charge
on specific assets.

c) All the Term Loans & Working Capital Term Loan from the banks are guaranteed by Promoter directors & Mrs. Manju Oswal
(related party)

d) Veh icle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of the veh icle aga inst such loan.

Details of security of subsidiary company i.e F.M. Hammerle Textiles [imited are as followsr

i) Term loans from financial institutions and banks as stated above are secured by way of joint equitable mortgage of all the
immovable properties (present and future) ofthe company ranking pari- passu basis and hypothecation ofal I movable assets ofthe
company (except book debts).

ii) Corporate guarantee has been given by Vardhman Polytex Limited, holding company.

iii) Personal guarantee has been given by promoters - Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal & Mr. Adish Oswal.

iv) Collateral security of residential flat situated at Vasant Vihar, Delhi held in the name of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal.

ln case of subsidiary, during the reporting year, the company has filed the petition with NCLT under the lndian Bankruptcy Code
for lts debt resolution. The same was accepted by the concerned authorities and the resolution professional was appointed who
has taken the control of management and operations ofthe company. The resolution professional has appointed for bids as a part
of resolution process. Keeping this in view, in absence of certainity of repayments of all term loans and principle amount
outstanding as on balance sheet date is being classified as long term borrowings.

Further on third March 20 1 8, State bank of lndia, the substantial financial creditor has issued a demand notice to holding company "lv'l/S

Vardhman Polytex Ltd" demandingtl 7685.13 Lakhs in lieu of corporate gaurantee given bythem to the lenders

Periodofdefault Principal lnterestaccrued Total Paid Balance

01.07.141o31.03.18 6,049.26 4,968.78 11,018.04 146.28 1,0871.76

01.07.14to31.03.17 3,677.45 3,638.32 7,315.77 415.23 6,900.54

21. PROVTSTONS ( NON CURRENT) R in Lakh)

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits

Leave Encashment

C

As at

2017

74.37

283.46

As at

2016

3'l 5.39

192.75

T

March

357.83 508.14

As at

March 31, 2018

418.44
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22. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES R in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 1,2016

Deferred lncome 6.33 33.31 60.30

Security deposit received 0.53 1 6.81 1 6.81

Total 6.86 50.12 77.11

23, IINANCIAL LIAB!LITIES.BORROWINCS(CURRENT) (t in Lakh)

Particulars As at
March 31,2018

As at
March 31,2017

As at
April 1,2016

Secured Borrowings
Loans repayble on demand

Working Capital loans from banks (Refer Note no a,b,c below)

Unsecured Borrowings
from related party -body corporate & directors

Unsecured loans from others

2 5,380.3 3

255.69

225.00

1 9,383.49

3 70.00
225.00

17,541 .79

90.00
250.00

25,861.O2 19,978.49 17,881.79

Detail of securities :

A) ln case of Holding Companyr
a) Working capital loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of all stocks (except the stock of raw material already pledge with

third parry), present and future of stores, spare parts, packing materials, raw materials, finished goods, goods in transit/process,

book debts, outstanding money receivable, claims. bills etc. and second charge by way of joint equitable mortgage of immovable
properties of Company.

b) Personal guarantee given by promoter Director & Mrs. Manju Oswal. (related party)

c) lncludescreditbalanceincurrentaccounts.
B) ln case of Subsidiary Company i,e F.M. Hammerle Textiles timited

a) Working capital Loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of all stocks present and future, stores, spare parts, packing
materials, raw materials,finishedgoods,goodsintransit/process, bookdebts,outstandingmoniesreceivable,claims,bills
etc. and second charge by way of joint equitable mortgage of immovable properties of the company.

b) Corporate guarantee given by Vardhman Polytex Limited, holding company.

c) Personal guarantee given by promoters Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal & Mr. Adish Oswal.

d Collateral securiry of residential flat situated at Vasant Vihar, Delhi held in the name of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal.
e) ln the earlier years, the bank had classified the accounts as Non Performing Asset (NPA).

24. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: TRADE PAYABLES (t in Lakh)

Particulars As at

March 31,2018
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

April 1,2015

Due to Others+

Due to related parties
4,939.86 8,1 63.53 7,678.62

Total 939.86 1 53.53 7

+The information as required to be disclosed under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 ("the Act")
has not been received so far, so the disclosure requirement for balance outstanding, interest paid/payable as at the year end as
required by the Act has not been given.

25, OTHERFINANCIAITIABILITIE}CURRENT R in I akh)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1,2015

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings(Refer Note 20)
lnterest Payable
Creditors for services & contracts
Trade deposits & advances
Capital payable

Employee related
Trade Expenses payable

Liability for Corporate Cuarantee
Others*

7,054.O2
6,085.37

298.79
91.04
8.76

1,074.80
1,448.38

4,532.50
5,467.44

220.99
90.47
21.O9

974.42
1,069.83

4,937.12
3,882.08

261.58
88.71

33.07
736.60

r,016.28

975.68

* lti Rs 348.25 Year NIL) against enhancement

1,176.25

1117,156.02 14,202.99 11,
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26. OTHER CURRENT TIABILITIES (t in Lakh)

Particulars As at
March 31.2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1,2016

Advances/deposits from customers 82.59 192.12 81.12

Statutory dues* 265.35 237.81 233.20

Others 66.41 86.44 83.06

Security deposit received 29.03 27.04 27.82

Defened lncome 26.98 26.98 26.98

Total 471.18 570.39 452.18

.lt includes contribution to ESlc, EPF, TDS, TCS

27. PROVTSIONS(CURRENT) (t in takh)

Particulars fuat
March 31,2018

As at
March 31, 20'17

As at
April 1,2015

Employees Benef it-Leave Encashment

Premium on Redemption of FCCB

Provision against forfeiture of MIDC Land

Provision against Tuffs Subsidy

Provision against advance given to contractor
Employees Benef it-C ratuity

Others

8.O7

136.00
206.45

51.20
18.98

413.93

10.71

38.68

127.90
134.19

39.36

Total 834.63 49.39 301.45

28. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS ({ in Lakh)

Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March
31,2018 31,2017

i) Sales of Products
- Crey Yarn
- Dyed Yarn
- Carments
- Waste Sale
- Traded Goods
- Real estate plots
- Fabric Sale

ii) fob char8es lncome
Total

Less: Rebate and Discount
Net Sales

Other Operating lncome
iii) Export lncentivdBenefits

42,306.03
10,094.88

659.80
5,167.25
3,504.17

1,469.92
449.75

63,651.80
(84.79],

51,567.O1

436.57

56,173.79
12,589.41

860.96
4,950.31
9,653.57

6,038.94
525.23

90,792.21
(131.r0)

90,561.1 1

1,479.74

ii) Gain on foreign currency transaction and translation (net) 92-87 408 40

Total U,O95.45 92,549'25

Note: ln case of holding company during the current year, the company has entered into arranBement with few vendors, from whom company is purchasing

raw materials and in tuin, procesiingthe same and seilinB the finished output backto them. Thus the sales figure in the statement of profit & loss comprises of

sales of Rs. '10896.66 Lakhs which was sold to the said vendors, from whom raw material was purchased.

29. OTHER INCOME (t in Lakh)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended March

lnterest income on Bank deposits & others

Provision no longer required written back

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Rent received
Miscellaneous lncome

Profit on buyback of FCCB

Total

201

22.25
38.09

140.86
213.55

3 2017

218.17
167.58

1.71
1 34.33
351.42
396.44

568.27 1,269.67

25.13 60.28

Total Other lncome 543'14 1,209'39
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30. COST OF MATERIATS CONSUMED

Particulars Year Ended

2,758.85

2,966.33
1 , r 80.60

March 31 2017

39,696.76

6,433.65
6,777.98

2,025.17

Cotton

Cotton Yarn

Synthetic Fibre

Dyes & Chemicals

Total 42,673.88 54,933.56

The above consumption figures are disclosed on the basis of derived figures and are after adjusting excess and shortages ascertained on physical count,

unserviceable items, etc.

Value of indigenous & imported raw material consumption

year For the year ended

31 March 2017March

Rs. in lakh
39,077 .73

3,596.1 5

42,673.88

91.57

8.43

100.00

Rs. in

49,223.86 89.08

5,709.70 10.92

54,933.56 100.00

lndigenous

lmported

31. PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

For the year For year ended
Particulars

31 March 3l March 2017

3,410.66

1 ,597.82
3,684.63

3

538.34
Fabrics

Yarn

Conon

Total 4310.64 8,693.1 1

32. CHANCES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED COODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK !N TRADE

Year

March 31,2018
Year Ended

March 31,2017

Closing inventories
Finished goods (lncludinB waste)

Work in progress

Opening inventories
Finished goods (lncluding waste)

157 t .09

1043.54

3122.38

2520.38

3122.38
2520.37

2829.72
2252.14Work in

(lncrease) / Decrease 3,O28.12 -560.89

33. EMPTOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(t in Lakh)

Particulars

Salaries, Wages & Other Benefits 5,582.73 6,255.45
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 476.19 551.36

326.73 451.53Stdff Welfare txpenses

Trtrl Erpl"y* 8"r.

34. FINANCE COST R in Lakh)

Year Ended

March 31, 2018

Year Ended

March 31, 2017

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

2018 March 31 2017

lnterest Expense

-Term Loan
-Working capital bonowings
- Others

Other Borrowing Cost

3,845.87 3,768.39
2 ,447 .7 5 2 ,51 7 .37
1 ,766.45 929.20
210.86 91.48

8,270.9t 7,306.44
25.13 60.28

Total
Less: lnterest on Marqin

Total

Note 29)

8,245.80 7,246.16

(< in Lakh)

Year [nded
March 31.20I8

(t in Lakh)

(t in Lakh)

(t in Lakh)

Particulars
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35. OTHER EXPENSES (t in takh)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Packing Material Consumed
Power & Fuel
Processing Charges
Repairs and Maintenance:
Plant & Machinery
Building
Ceneral
Electric
Rent

Rates & Taxes

lnsurance
Travelling & Boarding Expenses
Legal & Professional

Sundry Balances Wriften Off
Provision for doubtful debts
Commission on sale
Delivery Expenses (lncluding Freight, Ooroi & Others)
Rebate & Discount
Loss on sale of investment
Bank Charges
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Miscellaneous Expenses

1,O47.40

32.60
157 .45

10.38
.133.22

79.36
r 20.95
160.86
329.88

22.86
218.17
237.06
962.01
350.3 5

818.69
49.O2

246.09
27.56

146.95
10'l .81

144,48
224.27
20r.65
148.67
235.14
401.01

1,676.49
72.92
8.60

429.43
30.46

693.s4

203.85
22.74

2,179.88

839.45
6,682.sl

1,158.72
9,323.89

343.99

Total Other Expenses 14,O22.22 16,483.38

Note: Miscellaneous expenses lnclude payment to statutory auditor the details of which are as follows:

Particulars Year Ended

March 31, 2018
Year Ended

March 31,2017
fu auditor:

-Statutory audit feer
-Tax audit fee+

Other services

-Reimbursement of expenses

Total

10.50

1.79

0.19
1.76

14.24

1 1.78

2.87
4.31

1.55

20.52
* Previous fee includes service tax and in current fee doesn't include CST

Value of lndigenous & lmported Stores & Spares Consumption*

Particulars For year For year ended

3l March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. in Lalfi % Rs. in l-akh olo

lndigenous 1 1 15.29 86.68 662.79 67 .77

lmported 171.36 13.32 315 28 32.23

Total 1285.65 100.00 978.07 100.00

+ The break up of stores & spares have been disclosed in various heads of note 35 above as per details given below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017

Repai rs and maintenance{eneral
Repairs and maintenance-Plant & Machinery

Repai rs and maintenance-Electric
Packing charges

Power & fuel

Others

126.30
979.76

8.73
r 3.20
3.28

I 55.38
1r285,55

162.26
673.09

23.04
48.35

5.80
65.53

978.07

36. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (t in Lakh)

Year Ended Year Inded
Particulars

Provision Against Corporate Gurantee to Subsidiary

2018 2017

203.1 3 0.00

Total 203.1 3

March 3

0.00
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FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

This financial statement is the first financial statement that has been prepared in accordance with lnd AS together with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended 31 st March 201 7, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The transition to
lnd AS has been carried out in accordance with lnd AS 101- 'First time adoption of lndian Accounting Standards' with 'lst April 2016 as

the transition date.

This note explains the exemptions availed by the company on first time adoption of lnd AS and the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its lndian CAAP financial statements as at 1st April 201 6 and financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 st

March 201 7 in accordance with lnd AS 101 .

EXEMPTIONS APPTIED

lnd AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under lnd AS. The
Company has, accordingly, applied fol lowing exemptions:

a) The Company has elected to consider carrying amount of all items of property, plant and equipments measured as per lndian
CAAP as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition, as deemed cost at the date of transition. The effect of
consequential changes arising on the application of other lnd AS has been adjusted to the deemed cost of Property, Plant &
Equipment.

b) The Company has adopted to measure investments in subsidiaries at cost in accordance with lnd AS 27 and therefore has

measured such investments in its separate opening lnd AS balance sheet at carrying amount as per lndian CAAP at the date of
transition in accordance with lnd AS 1 01 .

c) The Company has availed the exemption of fair value measurement of financial assets or liabilities at initial recognition and
accordingly will apply fair value measurement of financial assets or liabilities at initial recognition prospectively to transactions
entered into on orafter0l stApril 2016. However, the transition from lndian CAAPto lnd AS has not had a material impact.

d) The estimates at l st April 2016 and at 31st March, 2017 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with
lndian CAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from the following items under lndian
CAAP did not require estimation:

- Fai r values of Financial Assets & Financial Liabi lities

- lmpairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

- Discount rates

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with lnd AS reflect conditions as at 1 st April, 201 6 and 31st
March,2017.

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2O17 and Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st
March 2017

I. PROPERTYPTANTANDEQUIPMENT(INVESTMENTPROPERTY)

The Company has identified building property categorised under Fixed Asset as per lndian CAAP located in Maharashtra, Delhi &
Punjab amountingto <524.74 and Rs. 514.90 as on March 31 , 2016 and March 31 , 2017. The same has been reclassified to
lnvestment propertyas per lnd AS.

II. FAIRVATUATION OF INVESTMENTS

Under lndian CAAP, investments in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long term investments or current
investments based on the intended holding period and realisability. Long term investments were carried at cost less provision for
other than temporary diminution in the value of investments.

Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. lnd AS requires such investments to be measured at fair value
except investments in subsidiaries, associates and .joint venture for which exemption has been availed. The transition from lndian
CAAP to lnd AS not had a material impacton fairvaluation of investments.

III. FINANCIALINSTRUMENTSMEASUREDATAMORTIZEDCOST

Under lndian CAAP, interest free loan to employees and such assets are recorded at their transaction value. Under lnd AS, these
loans are to be measured at amortized cost on the basis of effective interest rate method. The transition from lndian CAAP to lnd
AS not had a material impact.

rv. BoRRowrNGs

Under lndian CAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised upfront and charged to profit or loss
for the period. Under lnd AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to
profit or loss using the effective interest method. There are no material upfront charges paid for the acquisition of the borrowing.
Therefore lnd AS transition has no impact on transaction cost of Borrowings.

V. CAPITATGRANT

Under lndian CAAP, certain capital grant received from Covernment as 'Promoter Contribution' is shown under the head
'reserve & surplus as capital subsidy'. Under lnd AS, such grant is treated as deferred income and is recognized as income over the
useful life of the assets for which such grant is received. This grant of pertains to the assets which has been fully depreciated before
1 April 2016 hence, the same has been transferred to retained earnings as on 

.l 
April 201 6.
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vt.

vil.

vil.

tx.

x.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBTICATION

Under lnd AS, remeasurements i.e actuarial gains and losses are to be recognized in 'Other comprehensive income' and are not to
be reclassified to profit and loss in a subsequent period. Under the lndian CAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the
profit or loss. Therefore, actuarial gain/loss amountinB to {41 .59 Lakhs for the financial year 201 Gl 7 has been recognized in OCI
which was earlier recognized under Employee benefits expense. However, the same has no impact on the total equity as at 31st
March,2017.

SALEOFCOODS

a. Under lndian CAAP, sale of goods was presented as net of excise duty. However, under lnd AS, sale of goods includes
excise duty. Thus, sale ofgoods under lnd AS has increased by t1 .08 Lakhs with a corresponding increase in other expenses.

b. Under lndian CAAP, turnover discount was shown as expense. However under lnd AS revenue is to be shown as net of
turnoverdiscount.Accordingly,turnoverdiscountamountingto{1 31.1.1 Lakhshasbeenreducedfromrevenuewitha
correspondingadjustment in otherexpenses.

c. Foreign exchange income on forward contracts and exchange fluctuation amounting to {408.40 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2017 has been shown under the head under Other income as per lndian CAAP however as per lnd AS same is
reclassified under lncome from Operations as other operating income. However, there is no change in the equity.

INTEREST INCOME

lnterest income earned from excess of the funds out of borrowings are parked in the form of fixed deposit for short tenure. This
interest income is netted offwith the interest expense incurred on such borrowings. Therefore, the interest income amounting to
160.28 Lakhs as on 3-l st March 2017 has been netted off with interest expense with a corresponding adjustment in interest
income. However, the same has no impact on thetotal equity as at 3l '' March,2O17.

DEFERREDT \X

Despite the fact that the net worth of the Company has been fully eroded in the current year, the Management is of the view that
the company is an operative company and with all necessary steps and continuing professional management, sufficient taxable
income will be available in the specified period against which deferred tax asset would be adjusted. ln view of the same, the
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

STATEMENT OF CASH FI.OWS

The transition from lndian CAAPto lnd AS has not had a material impact on statement of cash flow,

Reconciliation of Equity as on 31st March 2017 and 1st April 2016
({ in Lakh)

Particulars
Note As per lndian As at As per lndian As at
No. GAAP Reconciliation March 31,2017 CAAP Reconcilialion April 1,2015

I ASSETS

I Noft{ulrent assets

a) Property, plant and equipment

b) lnvestment Property

c) Capital work-in-progress

d) Other intangible assets

e) Financial assets

i) lnvestments

ii) Loans

iii) Olher financial assets

0 Trade receivable

g) Defened tax assets (net)

h) Other non<urrent assets

Total Non Current Assets

2 Current assets

a) lnventories

b) Financial assets

i) lnvestments

ii) Trade and other receivables

iii) Cash and cash equivalents

iv) Bank balances other than above

v) Loans

vi) Other financial assets

c) Current tax assets

d) Other current assets

Total Current Assets

35,956.1 6

666.61

315.92

0.62

35.00

95 02

5,016.1 8

1 ,124.26

(s 1 4.90)

514 90

1524.74)

524.74

35,682.06

524.74

663 57

547.78

0.62

35.00

294.37

35,441.26 36,206.79

5 r 4.90

666.61

315.92

0.62

35.00

95.02

o.62

35 00

294.37

5,0r 6.1 8

1,124.26

5,01 6.1 8

1,505.45

663.57

547.78

5,0r 6.'18

1,505 45

43,209.78 43,209.78 44,269.78 44,269.78

8,834.00

5.78

8,s82.80

344.52

564.07

35.53

1,103.44

434.95

2,417.09

8,834.00 8,596.82

5.78

8,582.80

344.52

564.07

35.53

1,103.44

434.95

18.34

9,088.63

455.68

473.47

46.31

1,434.27

474.74

8,596.82

18.34

9,088.63

455.68

473.47

46.31

1,434.27

47 4.74

2,417.09 2,69s.89 - 2,59s.89

22,322.18 22,322.18 23,284.15 23,284.15

65,531.96 67,553.93 - 57,553.93TOTAL ASSETS 65,531.95
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{a ln

Particulars
Note As per lndian As at As ptr lndian
No. GAAP Reconciliation March 31,2017 CAAP Reconciliation

As at
April 1,2015

il EQUTTY AND UABIUTIES

1 EQUITY

a) Equity share capital

b) Other equity

c) Preference Share Capital

Total tquity

I.IABILITIES

2 Non<urrent liabilities

a) Financial liabilities

i) BonowinBs

b) Long term provisions

c) Other non<unent liabilities

Total Non Current Liabilities

3 Current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities

i) Bonowings

ii) Trade payables

iii) Other financial liabilities

b) Other current liabilities

c) Short term provisions

Total Current tiabilities

TOTAT EQUITY AND TIABILITIES

27,658.66 33.31 27,691.97

2,232.54

18,517.79)

1220.75

(60.30) (87.271

(5,064.50) (50.30) (5,124.80) (1,740.09) (87.2n (1,827.38)

27,284.02

2,232.54

(8,s 78.09)

1,220.75

2,232.54

(s,1 93.38)

1,220.75

2,232.54

l'5,280.671

1,220.75

27,284.02

357.83

16.81 33.3 1

357.83

50.1 2

30,550.89

508. r 4

16.81 60.30

30,5s0.89

s08.14

77.1.1

31,075.84 60.30 31,136.15

19,978.49

8,1 63.53

14,202.99

543.19

49,39

19,978.49

8,r 63.53

14,202.99

570.39

49.39

26 99

17,881.79

7,678.62

1 t,931.1 1

42s.20

301.45

26.97

17 ,881.79

7,678.62

11,931.11

452.18

301.45

42,937.80 26.99 42,964.79 38,218.17 26.97 38,245.16

65,531.96 65,531.96 67,553,93 67,553.93

Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive lncome for the Year Ended March 31,2017
R in Lakh)

Particulars Notes No. As per lndian
CAAP

lnd AS

Adiustment
For the Year ended

March 31,2017

Revenue from operations

Less Excise duty

Other income

Total lncome (l)

Expenses

Cost of Material consumed

Purchase of traded goods

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Excise duty on sale of goods

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Tolal exp€nses (ll)

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l - ll = lll)
Exceptional item (lV)

Profit before tax (lll - lV = V)

Tax expense: (Vl)

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the period from continuing operations After Tax (V - Vl = Vll)

Other Comprehensive lncome (Vlll)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period (Vll + Vlll = lX)
(Comprising Profit (Lms) and Other Comprehensive income for the period)

(3,303.s9) (41.s9)

vil
vil

vil,vilt

vil

vilt

vlt

92,271.95

(1.08)

1,678.06

277.29

1.08

1468.67)

92,549,25

1,209.39

93,948.93

54,933.56

8,693.1 1

(s60.89)

7,216.75

7,306.44

3,047.84

16,614.43

(190.30)

1.08

41.59

(60.28)

(r 31.r 1)

93,758,64

s4,933.56

8,693.1 I

(s60.89)

1.08

7,258.34

7,246.16

3,047.84

1 6,483.38

97,251.25 (148.71) 97,102.59

(3,302.32) (41.s9) (3,343.95)

(3,302.32) (41.59) (3,343.9s)

1 .27 1.27

(3,345.22)

41.59 41.59VI

(3,303.59) 0.00 (3,303.63)
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38. F!NANCIAT INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY

The carrying value and fair value of the financial instruments at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Notes

At cost At
Amortised

Cost

At At
P&t ocr

Designation Mandatory Designation Mandatory
upon initial upon initial
recognition recognilion

Carrying Value
value

No

Assets:

i) lnvestments (Non Cunent)

ii) Trade receivable (Non Current)

iii) Trade and other receivables (Curent)

iv) Cash and cash equivalents

v) Bank balances other than above

vi) Loans (Cunent)

vii) Other financial assets (Current)

Total

tiabilities:
i) Eorrowings (Non Current)

ii) Bonowings (Cunent)

iii) Trade payables(Curent)

iv) Other financial liabilities (Cunent)

Total

As at March 3.112017

Assets:

i) lnvestments (Non current)

ii) Loans (Non curent)
iii) Other financial assets (Non current)

iv) lnvestments (current)

v) Trade and other receivables (curent)

vi) Gsh and cash equivalents

vii) Bank balances other than above

viii) Loans (current)

ix) Other financial assets (current)

Total

tiabilities:
i) Bonowings (Non cutrent)

ii) BorowinBs (Cunent)

iii) Trade payables ((Cunent)

iv) Other financial liabilities (Curren0

Total

tu at April 1,2016
Assets:

i) lnvestments (Non current)

ii) Loans (Non current)

iii) Other financial assets (Non current)

iv) lnvestments (Current)

v) Trade and other receivabJes (Cunent)

vi) Cash and cash equivalents

vii) Bank balances other than above

vii) Loans (Current)

ix) Other financial assets (Curent)

Total

[iabilities:
i) Bonowings (Non Cunent)

ii) Borrowings (Current)

iii) Trade payables (Current)

iv) Other financial liabilities (Current)

Total

3

6
't1

12

14
't5

0 062 0.62

279.23

2,841.20
107.28

281.99
16.86

296.27

0.62

279.2)
2,841.20

107.28

281.99

16.86

296,27

279 23

2,841.20
107.28

281.99

16 86
296.27

20

23

24

25

20

23

24

25

20

23

24
25

3,822.83 0.62 3,823.45 3,823.45

21,943.47 23,943.47 23,943.47
25,861 02 25,861.02 25,861.02

4,939 86 4,939.86 4,939.86
17,156.02 17,156.02 17,156.02

- 71,900.37 71,900.37 71,900.37

0.623

4
5

10

1l
12

13

14

15

3

4

5

10

ll
12
't3

14
't5

35 00
95.02

8,582.80
344 52

564.07

35.53

1,103.44

578

0.62

35.00
95.02

578
8,582.80

344.52

564.07

35.53

1,103.44

0.62

35.00

95.02

5.78

8,582.80
344.52

564 07

35.53

1 ,103.,{4
1 0,760,38 0.62 5.78 10,766.78 10,766.78

27,284.02
19,978.49

8,1 63 5l
14,202.99

27,284.02 27 ,284.02
19,978 49 19,978 49

8,163.53 8,r63.53
14,202.99 14,20299

69,629.03 69,629.03 69,629.03

9,088 63

455.68
473.47

46.31

1 ,434.27

0.62 0.62

35.00 35.00

294.37 294.37

18.34 18.34

9,088.63 9,088.63

455.68 455.58
473.47 473.47
45.31 46.31

1,434.27 1,434.27

0.62

35.00

294.37

18,34

11,827.73 0.52 18.34 't1,846.69 11,846.59

30,550.89
17 ,881.79

7,678.62

452.-18

30,550.89 30,550.89
17,881 .79 17 ,881 .79

7,678.62 7,678.62

452.18 452.r8

56,563.48 56,563.48 56,563.48

Fair Value Measurement

(i) Fair Value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 
.l that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - lnputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

38 (b)
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(ii) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value: As at 31st M"t.h 20r8,.,n,"un,

Particulars

Long Term lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (designated upon initial recognition)

Current lnvestments
Fair Value through Profit and Loss

(ii) Thefollowingtablepresentsfairvaluehierarchyof assetsandliabilitiesmeasuredatfairvalue: Asat3lstMarch20l7

0.62

0

(t in Lakh)

Particulars tair Value measurement using

r
Long Term lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (desi8nated upon initial recognition)

Current lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Loss

(ii) Thefollowingtablepresentsfairvaluehierarchyofassetsandliabilitiesmeasuredatfairvalue: AsatlstApril 2016

5.78

0.62

(l in Lakh)

Particulars Fair Value measurement usinB

fair Value Ievel Level 2 level 3

Long Term lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (desi8nated upon initial recoBnition)

Current lnvestments

Fair Value through Profit and Loss

39. EARNING PER SHARE

0.62

18.34

R in Lakh)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

The basic and diluted earning per share is as under:

Net Profit after tax (Rs. in lakh)

Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding

Nominal value of per equiV shares (in Rs.)

Basic earnings per share (Rs)

Diluted eamings per share (R$

(17,166 841

22,290,957
l0

(77.01]'

\77.01].

\3,34s.21\
22,290,957

10

(1 s.o1)
(1 5.01)

40. CONTINGENT TIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR IN RESPECT OF (< in Lakh)

Particulars

Claims against the Company not acknorvledged as debts 18.09 221 25

Bills discounted with bankers. - 7,572.81

Letter of credit & bank guarantee issued 228.65 229.00
Enhancement Compensation on VTM land+ - 174.01

lncome Tax demands under appeal 953.01 774 64

Service Tax demands under appeal 12 70 12.20

Demand of PSEB for voltage surcharge and DSA - 104 56

Subordination letter for not to withdraw the loan from foreign subsidiary until negative equity 237.33 237.33

situation reverses

Liability on EPCC license pending export fulfillment 132.95

Corporate guarantee given on behalf of Holding Cornpany 1 600 I 600

TITIGATTON STATUS OF THE COMPANY AS ON 31ST MARCH 2018 ARE AS FOIIOWS:
Holding Companyr
a) The following is a summarized status of pending litigation involving Vardhman Polytex Limited against the Company:

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 ttrtarch 2017

41.

tn

)

Nature of Dispute Name of Statute Amount
lnvolved

Provision Made Disclosed as Contingent

tiabilitv
Amount Deposited

Under Protest

lndirect Taxation Central Excise Act 2002

Service Tax Act

Punjab Vat Act

417.21
(572.67)

1 5.38
(33. s3)

196.12
(200.94)

300.30

158.52
(1 s8.s2)

42.34
(220.79).

14.11

(14.1 1 )

18.09
(0.46)

42.34

142.34)

1 .41

(1.91)

8.33
(s.48)
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Nature of Dispute Name of Statute Amount
lnvolved

Provision Made Disclosed as Contingent
tiability

Amount Deposited
Under Protest

ii)

iii)

iv)

Direct Taxation

Labour laws

Commercial matters

lncome Tax Act

Wealth Tax Act

ESI Act

PSEB

1,274.26
(1,O94.97)

2.11
(2.1 1)

2.20

Q.20)

(104.s6)

953.02

1774.641

0 04.s6)

220.O0

(220.00)

2.20

,2.20],

(1 04.56)

Total 1 ,907.28
(2,010.98)

458.82
(1 s8.s2)

1 ,O27.56
(1.1 r 4.56)

274.28

076.49)
Figures in brackets in aforesaid note represent previous year figures

b) The followint is a summarized status of pending litigation involving Vardhman Polytex Limited by the Company:

Figures in brackets in aforesaid note represent previous year

Subsidiary Company (F.M.Hammerle Textiles Limited):

The following is a summarized status of pending litigation involving F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited (Formerly Known as Oswal F.M. Hammerle Textiles
Ltd) against the Company;

42. OBTIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING:

s,

No.

Nature of Dispute Amount

lnvolved

Provision Made Amount Decreed in

favour of the Company
(under execution)

Balance Amount

Still contested by the

Comoanv

s53.55 518.90 44.651 Commercial matters - Legal cases customers

i.334.75]. (1 s1.71) (1 83.04)

s.

No

Nature of Dispute Name of Statute Amount
lnvolved

Provision Made Disclosed as

Contingent l-iability
Amount Deposited

Under Prolest

l

2

Direct Taxation

Under Section 397, 398 of the Erstwhile

Companies Act 1956

Total

lncome Tax Act

Punjab & Haryana

High Court

0.85
(0.8s)

0.85
(0.85)

0.72
(0.72]|

0.72

0.721

Particulars As at

31 March 2018

{ in Lakh

a) Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided

for (net of advances)

b) E(imated value of contracts remaining to be executed on other than capital account and

21.26 22.54

2,782.47 7,839.92

not provided for (net of advances)-Pending conon purchase commitment

DERIVATIVE HEDCED INSTRUMENTS AND UN-HEDGED FOREICN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

a) Particulars of hedged foreign currency forward contracts and derivatives outstanding at the balance sheet date (Holding Company)

Particulars Currency tu at 3l March 2018

ln million { in Lakh

tuat 31 March 2017

ln million { in Lakh

43

USD

2.98 2,073.12

Fonryard cover (trade receivables)

Total

2.98 2,073.12
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+Vardhman Polytex Ltd the holding company had filed a petition u/s 397, 398 of the erstwhile Companies Act,1 956 in the Hon'ble Company Law
Board, Principal Bench, New Delhi against Maschinen Umwelttechnik Transportanlagen Cesellschaft mbH, Austria (one of the shareholder), lRlS

Textile CmbH(erstwhile foreign Collaboratod, Mr. Josef Hahnl, Director and Mr. lshwinder Maddh (erstwhile Alternate director to Mr. Josef
Hahnl) alleging that the activities and acts of Mr. Josef Hahnl and Mr. lshwinder Maddh are oppressive to both to the Company and Vardhman
Polytex Ltd (holding company). lt had also filed case under Section I 1 1A of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The said cases had been
dismissed/disposed of by the Hon'ble Company Law Board vide its order dated 1 3.08.201 5 and certain compensation had been awarded to the
opposite parties. The Company had filed appeals against the above said order of the Hon'ble Company Law Board which are pending
adjudication before the Hon'ble High Court of State of Punjab and Haryana at Chandigarh which is yet to be admitted. The amount of
compensation is not determinable at this stage.

As at

31 March 2017

t in takh
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b) Particulars of foreign currency exposure un-hedged at the balance sheet date (Holding Company)

Particulars Currency tu at 3l March 2018

ln million t in taltfi
fu at 31 March 20t7

ln million t in Lakh

Trade Receivables

Loan (including interest, current year-Nil,

previous year-Rs. NIL)

Total USD

USD

USD 0.55 365.04

3.90

0.55

2,535.30

370.73

365.04 4.45 2,906.03

Un - hedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date (Subsidiary company) i.e. F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited.

a) Trade receivables

0.55

Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2018

ln foreign cunency { in Lakh

As at 31 March 2017

ln foreign currency { in l-akh

Trade receivables

Total

b) Trade Payables

USD

EURO

1,516.45

47,501.31

0.70

31.25

209,013.83

48,725.08

1 35.54

33.64

49,017.76 31.95 ,738.91 1 69.1 B

R in Lakh)

Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2018
ln foreign currency t in lakh

As at 31 March 2017

ln foreign currency t in l-akh

Trade Payables USD 28,035.29

EURO

Total

c) Detail of Unhedged foreign currency exposures Advances at balance sheet date

7.94

5.54

13.48

12,241,46

9,878.07

7.94

6.82

22,119,53

(l in Lakh)

Particulars As at 31 March 20lB
ln foreign currency { in lakh

As at 31 March 2017

ln foreign currency { in lakh

Trade receivables (Advances)

Trade receivables (Advances)

Trade payables (LC) (Advances)

USD

EUR

USD

13,250.62 8.71

3,964.40 3.12

622.10 0.47

13,872.92 9.17

44.

45.

ln case of Group,lnventories, loans & advances, trade receivables and other current / non-current assets are reviewed annually and in the
opinion of the Management do not have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, less than the amount at which they are

stated in the Balance Sheet.

EMPTOYEE BENEFIT OBTIGATION

HoldingCompany
Defined Contribution Plan

Part cu ars For the year ended

31 March 2018
( in Lakh

For the year ended

31 March 2017

t in Lakh

i) Employer's contribution to Provident Fund

ii) Employer's contribution to Superannuation Fund

iii) Employer's contribution to Pension Scheme

170.17

84.M

6.30

208.1 8

7.95

96.42

Defined Benefit Plan
The Employees' Cratuity Fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligations.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars tor the year ended

3l March 2018
( in l-akh

For the year ended

31 March 2017

t in Lakh

Defined benefit obligalion at the beginning of the year

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Aouarial Sain / (loss)

Benefit paid

Past Service Cost

409.50

55.96

29.09

14.85
(142.00)

502.49

56.16

35.70
(89.1 0)

(9s.75)

Defined obligation at year end

10.00

377.41 409.50

14.76
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets

Particulars

tair value of assels at Year

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain / (los)

Fair value of plan assets at year end

Reconciliation of fair value of assets & obligation

Particulars

Fair value of plan assets at the end

Present value of obligation

Net asseV(liability) recognized in the balance sheet

(a) Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

Cunent service cost

lnterest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Past Service Cost

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & los

(b) Other comprehensive(income)/expense(Remeasurement)

Actuarial (gain)/loss obligation
Actuarial (gain)iloss -plan assets

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & los

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below :

Particulars

Discount rate

Attrition rate

Expected rate of retum on assets

Mortality rate

Salary rise

Amount for the current year and previous 4 years in respect of gratuity are as followsr

For year

31 March 2017

t in l-akh

491.66

38.1 0

3.14

532.90

I

For year

31 March 2017

t in Lakh

For the year ended

31 March 2017

{ in lakh

56.1 6

35.70
(38.1 0)

53.76

For the year ended

31 March 2017
( in takh

(89.1 0)

(3.14)

(92.241

For lhe year ended

31 March 2017
{ in takh

7.750h

5.00%

7.75%

lALM 2006{8
Ultimate

5.00%

tor the year elded for the year ended For the year ended For the year ended tor the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 3.1 March 2015 31 March 2014

f in hkh t in takh { in lakh t in lakh t in lakh

Defined benefit obligation 377.41 409,50 502.4! 453 54 398 94

Plan assets 569.52 532.90 503 18 419 88 380.96

surplus/(deficit) 192j1 123.40 0 69 (33 66) 123.63)

Experience adju$menton plan 11.24) 3.14 (1.70) i3.27) 3.21

assets

Experience adjustment on plan

liabilities (l 1 7.1 5) (l 58,96) 4 90 (1 1 .85) 31.23

tor the year ended

For the year ended

569.52 532.90

409.50

123.40

Particulars

Particulars tor the year ended

14.85
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3l March 2018 31 March 2017

t iir takh t in Lakh
Defined benefit obligation at the besinning of the year 49.27 2 I 3 08
Current seruice cost .15.35 

12.43
lnterest cost 3.5O 15 14
Actuarial (gain) /loss 18.09 (36-06)

Benefit paid 137.78) (1 55 32)
Defined obligation at year end 48.43 49.27

Leave Encashment (unfunded)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation

Reconciliation of fair value of assets & obligations

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2017

tin

Present value of obligation 49.27
Amount recoBnized in balance sheet 49.27

(a) Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

Particulars For year
2018 3I March 2017

t in takh
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Expected return on plan assets

Amount reco8nized in the statement of profit & loss

-t2.43

15.14

27.56

(b) Other comprehensive(income)/expense(Remeasurement)

Particulars For the year ended Fo. the yeliiilE-
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

{ in takh t in Lakh

Actuarial (Bain)/loss -obligation 18.09 (36 06)
Actuarial (Bain)/loss -plan assets

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss 18.09 (36.06)

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment for the Company's plans are shown below :

Pa rticulars
For yeal

31 17

45.

Discount rate
Aftrition rate
Expected rate of return on assets

Mortality rate
Salary rise

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLICAT!ON (CONTINUED)

Subsidiary Company i.e. F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited

Defined contribution plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan recognized as expenses for the year are as under:-

Particulars

a) Employer's contribution to provident
b) Employer's cont{ibution to superannuation fu nd
c) Employer's contribution to pension scheme

7.75.t"
s.00%

NA
IALM 200648 Ultimate

5.00%

As at
3l March 2017

{ takh
45.16

54.43

Defined benefit plan

The employees' gratuity plan for the company is a defined benefit plan where the annual contribution on the actuarial valuation is
charged to the statement of profit & loss. The present value of obl igation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected
unit crdit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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For th€ year ended
31 March 2018

t in Lakh

Fair value of plan assets at the end
48.43
48.43

I in talh
15.35
3.s0

For the year ended
31 March 20'18

7.75.h
5.00%

NA

5 009^
ALM2006{SUtmate

As at
31 March 2018

t hrh
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation
Particu lars As at

31 March 2018
t Lakh

As at
31 March 2017

( Lakh

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Acturial gain / (loss)

Benefit paid

Defined obligation at the end of the year

Reconciliation of fair value of assets & obligation

322.14
42.76
24.16

4.43
(33.1 1)

360.39

232.12
43.01
16.25
47.30

( r 6.54)

322.14

Particulars As at
31 March 2018

t Lakh

As at
3l March 2017

t takh
Fair value of plan assets at the end
Present value of obligation
Amount Recognized in balance sheet

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

360.39
360.39

322.'14
322.14

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

t lakht
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Acturial (gain)/loss recognized in IVP

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

42.76
24 16

443

43.01
-t6.25

47.30
71.35 r 06.56

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the company's plans are shown below :

Particulars For lhe year ended For the year ended
3 l March 2018 31 March 2017

Discount rate
Attrition rate
Expected rate of retum on assets

Mortality table
Salary rise

Amount for the current year and previous 4 years in respect of gratuity are as followsr

7.50%
7.OO"t"

0
IALM 200ffi8Ultimate

10.00%

7.OO%

15.00%
0

IALM 2006{8Ultimate
10.00%

Particulars For the year ended for the year ended for the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

{ takh
31 March 2010

t takh
31 March 2017

t takh
31 March 2016

Defined igation 360.39 322.14 232.12 232.12

1 85.86
5r.21

60.82

Plan assets

SurpluV(deficit)
Experience adjustment on plan assets

Experience adjustment on plan

liabi lities

360.39
4.43

322.14
47.30

212.12
2.19

1 05.66
16 02

Leave encashment (unfunded)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation

Acturial (gain) /loss
Eenefit paid

Defined obligation at year end

(44.691
(15.39)

2.22
(r 4.96)

29.97 3 5.81
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Reconciliation of fair value of assets &
at

Fair ue assets at
Present value of obligation
Amount rtroBnized in balance sheet

Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

Particulars

Current ce cost
lnterest cost
Aaurial (gain)/loss recognized in IVP
Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment for the company's plans are shown below :

Discount rate
Attrition rate
Expected rate of return on assets

Mortality rate
Salary rise

Amount for the current year and previous year in respect of leave encashment are as follows:-

As at
31 March 2017

t takh

35.81
35.81

For year
3'l March 2017

t takh
6.4-l
7.17

(44.691
(31.11)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

7.OO"L

15.00%
0

IALM 2006{SUltimate
10.00%

For the year ended
31 March 2017

t
benefit obligation 1 02.31

Plan assets

Surplus / (deficit)
Experience adjustment on plan assets

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities

35.81

ln previous year, acturary had given the disclosure table for long term provision only in respect of gratuity & leave encashment in the

certificate however we have recognised the short term provision & long term provision in the books as per the index summary given in

acturial certificate.

Disclosure in respect of previous three annual periods as requi red by Accounting Standard-AS-1 5 "Employee Benefits" is not presented as

the manangement consider its impracticable in absence of requisite information

46, RELATED PARTY DISCTOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS-24 'RELATED PARTY'' r
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2018 For the year ended 31 March 2017

a. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

b Relative Of KMP

Enterprise over which KMP is able
to excercise significant influence
exercise signifi cant influence

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal

Mr. Adish Oswal

Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal (Upto 31.03.20'18)

Mr. Sushil Sharma (upto 5th July, 2017)

Mr. Pankaj A8anryal (w.e.f l st November, 201 7)

Mr. Kuldeep Singla

Ms Avne€ Mehra (upto. 11.O9.2Un
Mr. Vipan Kumar Sharma

Mrs. Manju Oswal

Mr. Abhinav Oswal

Mrs. Rakhi Oswal

Ms. Aketa Oswal

Panchsheel Textile Mfg & Trading Co.Pvt Ltd

Enakshi lnvestments Private Limited.

Lib€rty Mercantile Co.(P)Ltd.

Allepy lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd

Kent lnvestments Private Limited.

Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal

Mr. Adish Oswal

Mr. Ashok Kumar Coyal

Mr. Sushil Sharma

Mr.Parvinder Singh (upto 3'lst August 2015)

Mr. Kuldeep Singla (w.e.f I st September 201 6)

Ms Avnee Mehra lw.e.l. 17 September 2016)

Mr. Vipan Kumar Sharma (w.e.f. 15 February, 20'l 7)

Mrs. Manju Oswal

Mr. Abhinav Oswal

Mrs. Rakhi Oswal

Ms. Aketa Oswal

Ms. Shruti Goyal (upto l 6th July 201 5)

Panchsheel Textile Mfg & Trading Co.Pvt Ltd

Enakshi lnvestments Private Iimited.

Liberty Mercanti le Co.(P)Ltd.

Allepy lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Kent lnvestments Private Limited.

c.
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10.00%
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Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2018 For the year ended 31 March 2017

Ruby Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Boras lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Cagan Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Pioneer Mercantile lndia Private Limited.

Adesh lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Calgary lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Oswal lnfratech Pvt. Ltd.

Oswal Tradecom hn. Ltd.

Oswal Holding M. Ltd.

Nightangle Dealcom Pvt. Ltd.

Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd

Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd

Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Private Limited

Ruby Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Boras lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Cagan Mercantile Co. Private Limited.

Pioneer Mercantile lndia Private Limited.

Adesh lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Limited.

Calgary lnvestment & Trading Co. (P) Ltd.

Oswal lnfratech Pvt. Ltd.

Oswal Tradecom hrt. Ltd.

Oswal Holding Pvt. Ltd.

Nightangle Dealcom Pvt. Ltd.

Alma Assets Consultancy (P) Ltd

Altfort Merchanrs (P) Ltd

Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Private Limited

Vardhman Amarante hn. Limited

ii) Transaction with related parties during the yearr
R in Lakh)

Nature of transaction
Relative of KMP

Enterprise ove which KMP

is able to exerciseKMP Total

45.

Loan received

Loan repaid

Advance received against goods

Sale of goods

Purchase of goods

Advance given against goods

Expense reimbursement (Receivable)

Rent paid

Job charges paid

lnterest paid

Rent received

Remuneration

Managerial Remuneration

Outdanding balance at year end

lnvestment in equity shares

Amount receivable from company
under same management

Amount payable on account of
unsecured loan

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSUREST

Transactions during the yearr

a) Loan received from KMP includes loan received from Mr Ashok Kumar Oswal of t Nil (previous year {539.50 lakh) in case of
holdign comapny and loan received from enterprise over which KMP has significant influence is Rs.46.50 lakh (Previous year-

t65.50lakh)from Altfort merchants (P) Ltd., <1 554.06 lakh(previous year{127lakh) from Vardhman Amarante Pvt. Ltd

b) Loan repaid to KMP includes loan repaid to Mr Ashok Kumar Oswal Rs. 160.8'l lakh(previous year <325 lakh) from holding
company and t Nil (previous year {91.50 lakh) from subsidiary company i.e. FM Hammerle Textiles Limited and Loan repaid to

enterprise over which KMP has significant influence is (1 554.06 lakh(previous year {127.00 lakh) to Vardhman Amarante Pvt. Ltd

fromholdingcompanyand{Nil(Previousyear?1 5.50 lakhs) incaseofsubsidiarycompany i.e.F.M.HammerleTextilesLimited.

c) Rent paid to Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal {49.52 lakh (previous year Rs.40.85 lakh)

d) Advance received against goods includes advance received from Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Ltd. oft Nil (previous year{649.04
lakh)in case of holding company.

e) Advance given against goods includes transactions with Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Ltd.of t Nil (previous year t644.35 lakh) in

case of holding company.

fl Expense reimbursement includes transactions with Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Ltd.of t Nil (previous year{4.69 lakh) in case of
holdingcompany.

d Job charges includes paid to Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Private Limited t2.28 lakh (previous year {29.63 lakh) in case of holding

company.

40.05

16.76

44.86

193.49

41 6.50

900

254.50

18.05

I 'r 5.50

29.63

8.00
't.31

192.50

142.50

649.04

399.47

644.35

4.69

0.09

10 07

vuo

Signilicant lnfluence

2017-18 201G17 2017-18 201G17 2017-18 201G17 2017-18 201G17

1 600 56

49.52

2.28

98 64

0.48

44.16

399.47

1,600 56 732W

0.r18

0.09

19.07

370.00

0.09

27.31

255.69
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47.

h) Rent received includes rent from Oswal lndustrial Enterprises Private Limited t0.48 lakh (previous year t1 .31 lakh) in case of
holding company.

i) lnterest paid includes interest paid to enterprises over which KMP has significant influence includes tl 5.23 lakh (previous year
t5.95 lakh) to Altfort Merchants (P) Ltd and t64.87 lakh (previous year{l .22lakh) to Vardhman Amrante Private Limited in case of
holding company and {Nil lakh(previous year {0.83 lakh) to Alfort Merchants (P) Ltd in case of subsidiary company i.e F.M.
HammerleTextiles Limited and interest paid to KMP includestlS.54 lakh (previous year?16.76 lakh)paid to Mr. Ashok Kumar
Oswal in caseof holdingcompany

j) Remuneration includes transaction with Mr. Abhinav Oswal T5..19 lakh (previous year {18.05 lakh), Mr.Kuldeep Singla t1 7.19
lakh (previous yeart9.85 lakh) & Mr. Sushil Sharma {3.62 lakh till 5th July,2018 (Previous year 13.95 lakh), Pankaj Agarwal T3.95
lakh(w.e.f l st November,2018) in case of holding comapny and Remuneration of tl 3.49 Lakh includes (0.88 Lakh of Ms Avnee
Mehra(previousyear{1 .26 lakh),tl2.61 lakhofMrVipanKumarsharma(previousyear{1.41 Lakh) incaseofsubsidiarycompany
i.e F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited

k) Managerial Remuneration{107.96 lakh(previousyear{193.49 lakh) includestransactionswith Mr.AshokKumarOswal t29.27
lakh(previousyear172.06 lakh),Mr.AdishOswal t24.38 lakh(previousyear170.74 lakh) andMr.AshokCoyal 154.31 lakh
(previous year {50.69 lakh) in case of holding company.

n) Saleof goods includestransactionsof (656.82 lakh (Previousyear-{394.43 lakh) with Oswal lndustrial Enterprises(P) Ltd incaseof
holding company and t8.96 lakh (previous year{5.04 lakh) in case of subsidiary company i.e F.M. HammerleTextiles Limited

o) Purchase of goods includes transactions of ?315.71 lakh (Previous year-Rs. Nil lakh) with Oswal lndustrial Enterprises (P) Ltd in case

of holding company and {0.72 lakh (previous yeart Nil lakh) in case of subsidiary company i.e F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited

Closing balance at the year endr

a) Amount payable on account of Unsecured loan includes payable amount of {162 lakh(Previous year t1 15.50 lakh) against lWs
Alfort Merchants Private Limited and the t93.69 Lakh (Previous year {254.50 lakh) of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal in case of holding
company.

b) Balance due from company under same management includes tl8.31 Lakh (Previous year '10.07 Lakh Lakh) of Oswal lndustrial
Enterprises Private Limited in case of subsidiary company i.e F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited.

Financial Risk Management

The principal financial assets ofthe Company include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances that derive directly
from its operations. The principal financial liabilities ofthe company, include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and the
ma in purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the day to day operations of the company.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of
these risks and that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.

This note explainsthe risks which the company is exposed to and policies and framework adopted by the companyto managethese risks:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values of futu re cash flows of a financia I instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans & borrowings and deposits. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as

at 3l March 2018 and 31 March 201 7.

(i) Foreign Currency risk management

The company undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
anse.

(iD lnterestRateRisk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
debt obligations with floating interest rates.

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt
obligations with floating interest rates, which are included in interest bearing loans and borrowings in these financial statements. The
company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the
carrying amount northe future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instrument is at its fair value:

Particulars

rate

LonB term borrowings

Current maturities of long term debt

Short term bonowings

As at 31st March 2017

27284.02

4532.s0

19978.49
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings
affected. A change of 1 00 basis points in interest rates for variable rate instruments at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased)
profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown below. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is

affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

fu at 31st 2017

lncreasd (decrease) in 100 basis point 517.95

tiquidity Risk

The Company's principal sources of Iiquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The

Company has outstanding bank borrowings. The Company is passing through a phase of liquidiry stress and there is a mismatch in cash

flows. Due to this, the capacities of the Company are running at sub-optimal level. The Company is working towards devising a plan

which would correct the cash flow mismatch. The Company believes that the Company would be able to generate enough cash inflows
to meet its working capital requirements in the medium and long run. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate

reserves, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company.
Credit risk has always been managed by the company through credit approvals. establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the credit worthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of
lnd AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company has exposure to credit risk

from trade receivable balances on sale of Yarns & Readymade Carments. The Company ensures concentration of credit does not
significantly impair the financial assets since the customers to whom the exposure of credit is taken are well established and reputed

industries engaged in their respective field of business. The creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit in the

normal course of the business is monitored regularly.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as disclosed at Note 6 & 'l 1 .

Writeoffpolicy

The financials assets are written off in case there is no reasonable expectation of recovering from the financial.

47A. Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. The director's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain

future development of the business. No Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31st March
2018 and 3l st March 201 7.

48. Details relating to Net Assets and Profit or Loss in respect of Subsidiaries are as follows:

The Holding Company is paying rentals for office premises taken on rent which are not in the nature of operating lease agreements.

Therefore, disclosure requirements of IND AS-1 7 are notapplicable.

Name of the entity Year Net Assets Share in profit or loss

Subsidiaries Amount
(Rs. in [akh)

tu%of
consolidated

net assets

Amount
(Rs. in takh)

tu%oJ
consolidated
profit or loss

A. Parent

Vardhman Polytex Limited Current Year 131,679.92)
'141.81% 142,422.49) 246.56.t"

Previous Year 10,743.O1 -209.65"t. 22.62 {.68Y"

8. Subsidiaries

Indian Subsidiaries

F. M. Hammerle Textiles Limited Current Year (1 0,932.1 9) 48.94'1" t4.446.78) 25.85'1"

Previous Year (6,485.42). 126.56't" (3,332.37\ 1 00.877"

Oswal lndustrial Enterprises hrt. Ltd Current Year 0.00"/. 0.00%

Previous Year 0.00% 0.00%

Foreign Subsidiaries

F. M. Hammerle Verwaltung GmbH Current Year 1291.71) 1.3r % (9.ss) 0.06%

Previous Year (232.92\ 4.55.L 6.15 -0. r 99"

Less: Minority lnterest in all subsidiaries

Less: Elimination / Adiustments Current Year 20,563.90 -92.O5'h 29,673.36

Previous Year 19,149.02) 170.54"k

Total Current Year (22,339.92\ '100 00% (17,205.461 100.00%

Previous Year (5,1 24.34) 'r 00 00Y" (3.303.60) 100.009"

I ,,1 
I



Vardhman Polytex QlUO
ln accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standard on impairment of Assets, ( IND AS-36), the management has made assessment

ofassets in use & consideringthe business prorpectt related thereto, no provision is considered necessary in these accounts on account

of impairment of assets.

ln subsidiary company i.e. FM Hammerle Textiles timited

a) The Covt. of Maharashtra had sanctioned value added tax (Vat) subsidy in the form of lowertax rate underthe mega project scheme.

b) Under mega project scheme, Covt of Maharashtra has sanctioned subsidized power in power loom area of the plant and electricity

duty exemption from the period 01 .08.2008 to 3 'l .O7 -2023

c) Under the Textile Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFF) the company is not eligible for a 5% interest subsidy on term loans as during

the previous year all loin accounts had been classified as Non Performing Assets (NPA) by the bankers or financial institutions'

d) During the year 2009-10, the company had received capital subsidy ot1276.17 Lakhs on specific items of fixed assets in process

house /dye house machinery.

49(A) The details of prior period expenses in case of Holding Company-Vardhman Polytex Limited are as follows:

R in Lakh)

for the year ended
March 2017

0
Bonus
Total

Following disclosures in respect of noncancellable operating lease as per IND A$17 "Leasesn given below:

ln case of Subsidiary Company-F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited [t in Lakh)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 2017

45.14
Lease payments for year

Future Minimum Lease Payments tor the year ended For the year ended
7

Not one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

Total

28.66
96.30

12.23 124.96

50.

51.

ln case of Subsidiary Company'F'M. Hammerle Textiles [imited

As per Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, specified companies shall have at least tvvo

lndlpendent Directors. After the re;ignation of Mr. Purshotam Lal Singla, lndependent Director w.e.f. 1 7.09.2016, the company has

only one independent director. The Company is in violation of the p ovisions of the Act in relation thereto.

Corporate debt restructuring (Holding company)

i) The credit facilities of the Company were restructured under CDR mechanism vide LOA dated 2811212012. The Company

complied with the conditions stipulated in the LOA. Reserve Bank of lndia, vide its circular d aled 1210212018 has withdrawn the

Corporate Debt Restructuring Scheme. The accounts ofthe Company have been declared NPA by all of its lenders. Refer Note 20

for further details.

iD As the company accounts have been declared as NPA, therefore no interest in being charged by the lenders post the NPA

classification. Keepingthe accrual concept in consideration, the company has provided for interest based upon terms ofthe CDR

package.

Corporate debt restructuring (Subsidiary company)

i) The Debt Restructuring Scheme (the 'scheme') under CDR mechanism was approved and letter of approval issued on 9th

February' 20,| l. The scheme inter-alia included restructuring of repayment schedule, interest funding, reduction in interest rates

and additional security in favour of CDR lenders by pledge of shares of promoters stipulated.

Master restructuring agreement ("MRA") was executed on 1 8th March'201 'l with the lenders. The impact in terms of the approved

Limited - Consolidated

o.72

(B) The details of prior period expenses in case of Subsidiary Company-F.M. Hammerle Textiles Limited are as follows:

For For

Duty drawback
Export commission
Others
Total

396
0

2.3-l
6-27

7.29
0.75

1 1.80
E8-82



Vardhman Polytex Limited - Consolidated

scheme has been given in final balance sheet.

ii) lnterest has been accounted for based upon terms of package/confirmations received from the bankers.

iii) The credit facilities/loans under CDR are further secured by unconditional & irrevocable personal guarantee of CMD Mr.
Ashok KumarOswal & Director Mr. Adish Oswal and corporate guarantee of A,Vs Vardhman Polytex Limited, holding company.

iv) Other conditions as stipulated underthe scheme are not being due (delay in payment)

Vardhman Polytex Ltd, holding company has filed a petition uls 397 ,398 of the erstwhile Companies Act,l 956 in the Hon'ble Company
Law Board, Principal Bench, New Delhi against the company, Maschinen Umwelftechnik Transportanlagen Cesellschaft mbH, Austria
(another shareholder), lRlS Textile CmbH(erstwhile foreign Collaborator), Mr. Josef Hahnl, Director and Mr. lshwinder Maddh (erstwhile
Alternate director to Mr. Josef Hahnl) alleging that the activities and acts of Mr. Josef Hahnl and Mr. lshwinder Maddh are in the manner
oppressive to Vardhman Polytex Ltd. The said petition is at the stage of arguments. The Company has filed case under Section 1 I 1A of the
erstwhile CompaniesAct, 1956, the Hon'ble Company Law Board Decision is pending.

ln view of continuous losses suffered by the FM Hammerle Textiles Limited (Formerly Known as Oswal F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd), the
subsidiary company's accumulated losses are <15,452.51 lakh which has eroded 100o/o of the of share capital. As per Sick lndustrial
Companies (Special Provision) Act (SICA) of 1985, the company is now classified as "Sick Company" and required to file an application
to Board for lndustrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR).

Minority interest has not been computed due to losses at consolidation level.

The com pany has given loans / advances to various compan ies. Amount outstanding at year end is as follows:

R in Lakh)

52.

53.

Description

Opening Balance
Add:Civen during the year

Less: Rereived back during the year

Total

The above loans have been given for business purposes as interest free

Previous year figures have been regrouped./ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year classification

As at March 31,2017
Rs. in Lakh

1 35.00

(1 00.00)
(2s.00)

10.00

As per our report of even date
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:{00711N

sd/-
Ruchir Singla
Partner
Membership No. 519347

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Managing Director
(Business & Corporate Affairs)

(DlN-00009710)

sd/-
Pankaj Agarwal

(Company Secretary)

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DrN{0009403)

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

(Chief Financial Officer)

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POLYTEX LIMITED

Place
Date

Ludhiana
30th May 2018

114

10_oo



Vardhman Polytex Limited

Form AOC-I
(Pursuant to first proviso to subsection (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 201 4)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companiesfoint ventures

Pant u A"t Subsidiaries

Note: 1. Nameof the subsidiarieswhich areyettocommenceoperations- N.A.
2. Namesofsubsidiarieswhichhavebeenliquidatedorsoldduringtheyear:-Nil

Pant "B"z Associates and loint Ventures: Not Applicable

Note: The above statement also indicates performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiary.

({ in Lakh)

Sr. No, Particulars tu on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2018

Name of the subsidiary company F.M. Hammerle Textiles Ltd.
(Formerly: Oswal F.M.

Hammerle Textiles Ltd), lndia

F.M. Hammerle Ven,valtungs
GmbH, Austria

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company's reporting period

Not Applicable Not Applicable

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries.

Not Applicable 1 EURO : Rs.80.62

4. Share capital 't2,386.7s 22.54

5 Reserves and surplus (23,318.94). (314.251

6. Total assets 11,733.04 44.53

7 Total Liabilities 't't,733.04

L Details of lnvestments (except in case of investment in
the subsidiaries)

9. Turnover (Net) 1 ,997.38 21 .41

10. Profit before Taxation (4,442.3s) (8.23)

11 Profit after Taxation (4,446.78) (9.ss)

12 Proposed Dividend (including tax thereon)

% of shareholding 81 .73"1o
.l00Yo

sd/-
Kuldeep Singla

Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
Pankaf Agarwal

Company Secretary
(ACS-26877r'

sd/-
Adish Oswal

Director
(DlN-00009710)

sd/_
Ashok Kumar Oswal

Chairman & Managing Director
(DtN_00009403)

Place : Ludhiana
Date : 306 May, 2018
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FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOAR,D OF DIRECTORS OF VARDHMAN POTYTEX LIMITED



O,CIO Vardhman Polytex Limited

NOTICE TO Att SHAREHOLDERS HOTDING SHARES IN PHYSICAI FORM

Re: Restriction on transfer of shares in ohvsical form

Dear Shareholder(s),

ln terms of Regulation 40 of Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, as amended, which states that with effect from 5s December, 2018 requests for effecting transfer of shares of
listed companies shall not be processed unless the shares are held in dematerialized form.

Therefore, all the shareholders are requested to get the shares converted into dematerialized form for effecting any transfer of
shares in the future.

Dematerialization is a process by which shares held in physical form (Share Certificates) are converted to an equivalent number of
securities/shares in electronic form. Some of the advantages of holding shares in dematerialized (Demat) mode are as under:-

1. Asafeand convenientwayof holdingsecurities.
2. lmmediate transferof securities.
3. Nostampdutyontransferof securities.
4. No chances of cou nterfeit certif icates, forgery and si gnatu re m ismatch etc.
5. No risk of loss, mutilation ortheft of certificates.
6. Online tradingfacility.
7. Fastersettlementcycle.
8. No odd lot problem, even one security/share can be traded.
9. Change in address recorded with DP gets electronically registered with allthe Companies in which investor holds securities.

thereby, eliminatingthe need to correspond with each of them separately.
'10. Regular accounts status updates available from the DP at any point of time.
1 1 . Faster disbursement of cash and non cash benefits like dividend, bonus securities etc.

ln view of the above, shareholders are advised that to facilitate transfer of shares of the Company, the same require to be

dematerialized. The key steps involved in dematerializing shares are:

1 . Open a demat account with a Depository Participant (DP)

2. Submit physical share certificate(s)to the DP along with a Demat Request Form (DRF)

3. DP would inform the Depository (NSDL or CDSL) regardingthe demat request
4. TheDPwouldthereaftersubmitthesharecertificate(s) alongwithDRFtotheRegistraroftheCompany
5. The Registrar would validate the documents and convey Acceptancey'Rejection of the demat request to the

concerned Depository
6. Upon successfuldematerialization of the share(s), the Registrarwould updatethe Registrarof Members.

7. The concerned Depository would also update its record and inform the DP

8. The DP would then creditthe share(s) into the demat account of the investor.

The shares of our Company are compulsorily traded in Demat mode and more than 90% of our equity shares have already been

dematerialized by the shareholders. The shareholders holding shares in physical mode are therefore, requested to get the shares

dematerialized till 5* December, 2018 for effecting any transfer of shares in the future.
For any assistance in the mafter, you may please communicate with Company's Registrar at:

Alankit Assignments Lim ited
1Ul 3, Alankit Heights, Jhandewalan Ertn., New Delhi- 1 10055.
Phone: 01 1- 41 540060-63
Fax: 0.f 1- 4'1540064
E-mail: rta@alankit.com

With Regards
For Vardhman Polytex Limited

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Oswal
Chairman & Managing Director
Date: 14s August, 2018
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Vardhman Polytex Li m ited (Cr N: Ll 7 1 22PBr s8oPLcoo4242)

RegisteredOffice:VardhmanPark,ChandigarhRoad,Ludhiana-141 123,Puniab(lNDlA)
Phones:0161-6629888 Fax: 0161-6629988 Website: ww.vpl.in, E-Mail: info@vpl'in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

3SsAnnual Generat Meeting - 24'h September,2OlE

lcertifythat lam a member/ proxy forthe memberof the Company'

I hereby record my presence at the 3gh ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of vardhman Polytex Limited at Registered office: Vardhman Park, Chandigarh

Road, Ludhiana -141 I 23, Punjab (lNDlA), at 11.00 a.m. on Monday, 246September, 2018 '

Name ot tne memoer/ proxy : (in Block letters)

No. of Share(s) held: Folio No. / DP lD and Client lD
Signature

Note: p/ease fill up this anendance slip and hand it over at the entnnce of the meeting hall. Members are rcquested to bring their copies of the Annual Report

to the meeting.x
Vardhman Polytex Limited (CtN: Lr2122PB1 s8oPLcoo4242t

RegisteredOffice:VardhmanPark,ChandigarhRoad,Ludhiana-141 l23,Puniab(lNDlA)
Phones: 0161-6629888 Fax: 0161-6629988 Website: www.vp[.in, E-Mail: info@vpl in

PROXY FORM

lpursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 201 3 and Rule l9(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

Name of the Membe(s)

Registered address

E-mail ld

l/We, being the membe(s) holding ...................equity shares of Vardhman Polytex Limited, hereby appoint:

Email lD

Signature

Email lD

Signatu re

Folio No. / DP ld and Client lD

1. Name

Address

2. Name

Address

3. Name

Address

or failing him/her

Email lD

Signature or failing him/her

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mdus and on my/ou r behalf at the 38'h ANNUAL GENERAT MEETING of the Company to be held

at Registered Office: Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana -1 41 123, Punjab (lNDlA), at 11'00 a.m. on Monday, the 246 day of September,

2018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Signed this day of ................................ 201 8 Affix
Revnue
Stamp
Re. 1/-

Signature of Proxy holde(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than

48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Signature of Members(s)

Resolution No. of the Resolution For Against

Business

1(a) Adopti on of Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31't March,

2018, together with the RePort of Auditors and Board of Directors thereon; and

1(b). ndoCIion of nudited Consolidated Financial Statements of the

ended 31 'r March, 2018, together with the Repq4 ql4lCllgll
Company for the financial year
thereon.

2. of appointment of Statutory itors of the Company

3.

rector rn ace Mr 0), res n

accordance to Article of Association and eligible, offers himself for

4 To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mr. Ashok Kumar Oswal (DlN: 00009403) as

Chairman and Managing Director of the Company

5 Ratification of of Mr. Adish Oswal as Director (Business & Corporate Affairs)

6. ngh Sobti as an lndependent Director.

7 Ratification of appointment of Mr. Harpal Singh as an lndependent Director.

8. Ratification of appoi ntmeni oIMs. Aarti Rawat as an lndependent

9. To ratify the of Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2019.

For E-voting the EVSN of the Company: 180823041

or failing him/her.

Ordinary
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Financia! Highlights for Five Years

Equity shares data for five years

87,BOB.92

38,245.2'l

901.64

901.64

3,720.06

59,832.75

24,53O.72

2,232.54

10,742.18

62,697.83

1.82

0.62

94,241 .29

43,237.25

(2,880.20)

(2,231.93)

(2,578.37)

s87 72.20

26,194.95

2,232.54

12,862.35

70,2'18.50

1.83

0.77

85,647.84

32,062.60

22.52

22.62

2,087.67

62,246.8O

24,897.44

2,232.54

'10,743.O1

62,564.75

1.53

o.57

Gross sales and operating income

FOB value of Exports

Net Profit

Profit Before Tax (PBT)

Cash Profit(PBT + Dep.-Excep. ltems)

Cross Block (FA+ CWIP)

Net Block (NA+CWIP)

Paid up Share Capital

Net Worth

Capital Employed

Long Term Debt Equity Ratio

Current Ratio

2017-18

62s56.41

11,964.97

(42422.49)

(42422.49)

(10493.89)

61,591.98

22,675.47

2232.54

(31679.92)

39536,72

(o.42)

o.17

2015-16 2014-15 2013-'142016-17Parameters

(( in lakh)

92,272.44

44,123.61

477.51

332.23

3,598.O7

57,823.O3

29,088.6't

1,985.24

1 1,888.88

7'.\ ,924.O9

2.20

o.74

(14.02\

(14.O2)

(10.41)

(2.72)

(3.67)

0.66

57.70

2.59

2.28

16.-t4

s9.99

14.47

2.O5

0.55

(229.91)

7.62

1.41

48.19

0.30

0.30

8.97

4.O4

4.04

't6.69

48.19

9.38

2.27

0.79

Book Value per share K)

Earning per share (()

-Basic

-Diluted

-Cash

Dividend per share (O

P/E Ratio

Price to Cash Earning Ratio

Price to Book Value per share

2015-16 2014-15 201 3-l 42017-lA 2016-17P.tr.uncl crs

(142.12)

(0.09)

(0.10)

(0. r 3)

(190.15)

(190.16)

(180.95)
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Panoramic view of Spinning & Dyeing Processes

E

+

€
I

Ir
fr

iiiiii

t
,

€-'..-. -..'j

lrl

i----

rl

'+ l-
-=. 

-tF-tta a
IL

a

-t.-

ri
I I

r
a

ti I >t=__

a

t

tl
T&. r

-:. --

I\

)

I

\
.-

t
t

\ Ii



Vardhman Polytex Limited L

Panoramic view of Spinning & Dyeing Processes
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Vardhman Polytex Limlted
An Oswa! Groupo Company

CIN : t17122P81980PtC0U242

REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

Vardhman Park, Chandigarh Road,
Ludhiana-141123 (lndia)
Ph: + 91-161-6629990
Fax: +91-151-5629988
Emai: info@vpl.in

DETHIOFFICE
305, 3rd Floor, Ansal Bhawan 1.5,

Kasturba Gandhi Marg
New Delhi-1.10001 (lndia)
Ph : + 9 1-1 1-23317582, 2331247 8
Fax: +91-11-2331 2471
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www.vpl.in




